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do munming for us to pick dlems up, 1
§.  Was he an electrician? I s
A . i
0. Tid he Zave wy professiseal lcammre? %
A T have oo idea, ]
(. Did you know Ricfand Shade back in 13937 | B
% | 7
2. Did you ad Hehard werk together? |3
A tes | 3
3. Whers wera you wericing in 13937 Like, wiers was yowr I:B
atsice? | 1
A Ve woved three diflcrent times, I don't zecall the 2
£onkset. afdens, B
Q. o of the three glaces thet ym hed ooved fo or frem, 1
15 shers were they? [13
i 4. 1den't recall the adimsses, s
9 Doy bave -- wers they in fas Vegas? | 7
A, Tes. 118
G Were all three in lag Yegas? I u
A fes, | 22
Q. 30 -~ juat give ma tha gper of yeirs, You moved thres | 1L

Cees 1o [ag Veges in 1301 or wes thiz over a paried of hime?

Page 28

p using i different «- 3 name chat we were familiar wits,

2. Wi ls 'ee™?

) Me, Termy long, Zob Riersjcayk, Dave Eselian,
iom: Yolbelm, Jeray Anderson, Brian Cuonclly,

U. Row many of the people that you just mared were
azaociatad with the, quts, marots, dead M Ark}

A Three ouybe four.

. hhich cnes?

Ao 3ob Tievejonvk, Don't ask we ta epel) it becmss I
still can't, Jeremy -
L kava got it hesa g ikt 2.
Jereny Mrcersom --
%o zhwad, Jeremy Ardersan, Beb Rlerejcuyk?
That's about it
Fow abeat Terzy lomg?
Hell, Terry long, yes,
hrd you, corTect?
Coprect,
Weat abeut Duste Conbents?
I balieve he vorked as o smlesen, ves,
At tha cld AC Art and the cew A Apt?
B worked at the old asany and the v company,

Pt = = - e S Y

3 coanmt.

{. Okay. Hov shout Dema fosg?
A, Dera long, a8 Far as [ can reeall, cever worked at the

A, T'tlnenafu.,t‘fﬂthatlm in Laz Vemas, |3
= starting in 1987, was the office in Les Yegas? 4
Tes, i ®

|

) Fage 27|
2. And Bien if moved -- when was the Fizst Lime that ymm E 1
toyed? 2
2 [ have ao idea o the dates. ‘ 3
9. Be vails you werz at Ad Art in the 15902, yoo moved 4
thres timaa in lag Vegest | &
A Corpect. | §
Q. Al then you Taft A4 At in abont 1539 or 2008 to work | 7
at 0.8, Biges? a
A, As @ estimate, yes. i
2 Ard vhers ls 0.3, Sims located) 10
A Eudm, Toss. i
2 ﬁndonymwoﬂedm*nfhnstm,;m far U.5. 8lgns |12
until about 2005 when you - 113
A, T vorked qut of f=nter -- 4
2. ~- starting serking for Ad Art, Inc.? 15
A, T worked out of Deton, Texas, 1%
2. For 0.8, Sigme? 17
A fem. 15
Q. Ind then shoub 2005, did yom sove from Dentom, Tuems, 13
to where you'rs at now or what happensd? 0
A, You bmow, Idon't recall exactly. I believe the fizer | 2L
office I worked with the new Ad Art ves o Mloser Mound, T=xas. 5]

0. Now, uhy do yon pay the *new Ad Ast.? What do you mean |23
by that? | M
B, The old company was dead for years, and we started it Izr}

Bage 239

old company,

0.  ¥hat =boot David Esajian?

A Tdm't knov,

¥. Bt he currently works at Ad Ars mow?

A, Ee wirks ab the oew cowpany, yes

Q. Bud yo den't kmow 16 5s worked et the qucts, waquate,
ald company?

A, Mo, Iapmot.

Q. How abeak Brian Comselly, did be wark for both?

A I heve no idea if Brian worked foz hoth,

0. Oy, In als blo it says, Srian 5 1 qrachata of
Rutgers Tniversity, with a dagres in mainees, marketlcg acd has
besn with &3 Art sinca 1357,

A [ didn't fave anything ko do with the bio, s0 I bava ro
fdea if that's acowrste, Crubhixl or amthdrg abowt it,

Olmy. Fair enongh, How about Lord Yolbaim?

A Idon't jmow if sha vocked for the old Ad Art,

9. Do yoa boow Lozi}

A Ves, Ido.

2 Heak does Lort o for the cospeny now?

A She's = szlesparsen,

#hat shout Furt Muellari

A, Rt Meller 19 a project merager.

0. bnd wes he with the old Ad Axt and the oew ad Ar}
A T dont recall him af the old A4 Art,
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Page 30 Pags 32
1 3. Ewcuse za? wWhat did you gay? 1 E, Am faras I omn orecall, he was based out of Fresng and
F) A T den't recall We st the old Ad Art, ? b=l mothizg %o do wath the qob,
1 0. Okay. How zbout Jack Dibods, D-0-3-0-£-57 3 Q. at skowr Duans Cebento?
1 A e | 4 A, [uane Coptento, az T racall, vas 3 salegnan ot of !
5 g Has he ab the old A4 2ty | 5 Lus Augeles,
H 4. e s ab the old corpany. 1 i 8. forod
T 2. Modmoye's with the osw compeny? i 1 A o
g A Yom, e s, |8 G- dersry Aodersoo?
3 Q. How about Michas] Timineriz f 4 A Jexeay Acderson, T dm't evea reeall him workdog for
10 A Wnat is bhe cuestion? E 0 the old company,
1L 0. Mas fe vith the cld Ad dxv? | 2. Jack Dubois?
i B 13 A, 1 pesd bo loov whac Bop guestion fa.
i3 Q. 5ut he'g with the nee Ad Are? 1 §.  Did 5m awer haye my invelvenent, to your knewledga, in
14 A o | 3 the imstallatiom of tha KR pylan?
1z 0. Michasl 19 oot with the corzens A Axt? |15 Ao M.
18 A He's not woth the cov corzany, Mo, he i3 gk, | 1i Q. Bow oy hmow bhak?
17 ¢ Did Michuel lears? | A, He's an artist
3 A D'maet sue of the tire Erame, | L Q. Broume bl
13 Q. Bur he Md werk 2z Ad At Sor eome Lime? 118 A, He'z af artist based our of Stockion, Califarnia.
bl A, e did vark for ad Rr- at ore time. [ Q. 54 what does Jack do?
a1 9 To ym Imow why 2a lefc? ! A, #'s anarkist,
P A T beliewe it wms for 2 oetter nosition. 7 2. S0 vould he draw the sketches for the signg? Yhat doas |
izl Q. Wher yon 1=ft, oiote, weuats, Ad At or tha dead T ke do?
i A At in roughly -- and ir's m aporocimation -« 1959 or 2000, kil A He's a desigmer,
15 aroud that btipe, shen you left M Art, vy did you lsave Ad Axt? iES 2 Do you ioow if he desigeed the MM slon?
Page 31| ~ Page 34|
1 K. gecsuss I dide't ike the publie corpany. ] 1 A ¥o, Idomect.
i 2 Ard dhen you left dn 1989 er 2000 or aroved that i Q. Do you know whe designed the MY siga?
3 lime -- 1 koow it's = approximation -« wers yom of the ! 3 A %o, Idomet,
1 mderstardicg that the compamy that you wers werking for was 4 Q. ¥ho else waz the designor fer A4 Art Awing bhe bme of
5 called pd Ari? 5§ ths constrction of the MAY pylen?
H A I belagve the company 1 worked Sor was called B A, There vas mrchably 1% deaioners,
7 Csplay Techmclogizs, |0 2. Do you koov Wto weuld nave beer assigned the MM pylon
| Q. hen did that coow to be? Wheo did you Eixat B job cut of Las Vegast
4 yrnderstand that yoa ware vorking for Maplay Technologies? 9 A 1 have no idea.
10 k. ihen they bought bhe cld, cead Ad Art 11 g Do you keow anythleg abegt A4 Arc's assets puschased by
n Q. Acd vhea wes that? | 1L ¥asec?
12 A T'most ewe of the yer. 2 A ®Idwxt
13 §. I it Falr ecovgh to say that was prier o yow leaving | 13 ¢.  You mlerstand that Kasco and B Art have offices right
14 in 1859 or 20067 1L pest to ooe mother in Stockben?
15 A IE's feir enugh to sey that it wes prior to my 15 A, 1 wderstamd Uhat we lese propecty from Resco,
16 lesvirg, and I'n oot swe of the year, 18 Q. Zo it's your orderstmedlog that in Stockton, Hm
17 2. Mre you familiar with a company by the nama of ¥asco 17 puilding that Ad Art works out of en Ad Act Scad is owmed by Masco
18 Eiectrle Sim Corpany, 102 |18 M leased by Ad Arc?
19 A, [ an faniliar with the copany cellsd Raseo, 12 A, Leased or rented, correct,
b} Q. ©id you ever work for that company? n 0. Avd 1t'3 located oo M Art Road in Stockecn,
i A, W, 1L Celifomia?
2 G Do you kmow -- I toow we jad llated Gordeo Kitko, 22 . Correct.
23 lymo Weaver, Tercy Loug in relabion to tha installation of the MM | 71 Q. hed Nepeo i 2lso oo Ad Brt Road in Stockten,
24 pyien in Law Vegas, but do you lkoow if B Kdavejcrpk, 1f hs had 2 Califomday
25 any invelvesent with the MY mylo alge? 2 A Idon't Joow their poineupal sdivess, oot the offire
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Page 34 I Page 38

L owak Uleor of ds on & At #oad, yes, [l A, 1 omly ko --

2 . Do you bawa any inforsatlcn abott wbo Fes -~ exvude me, | 2 ¢ You can g ahesd and seer the queskicn.

3 2kziks bhat | 2 3, oenly ke ib's owo peces of alumimm with niker

4 Do yu bave wy infummation as to vho was the 4 bavwcer them That's i

3 insuzaove cacrier for Ad Art ¢ she Pime of the MM i 3. o you know whe or 4f anviody ab M At exder=d

§ omstrustion -- pylen corpbruetion? | & alvrchond for ves oo bhe MR pylen?

1A ol b1 Bt iavem id

E 3. During the fime of the 32 mylm constouctisn, whers ] KE. FLMTRR: Gject (o fomm,

§ vould the dowrenta pertalning o the curebriction of the MO ] A, [ lave mo idez.

1 pylea be keptt |10 U (By ¥r Rrmstbmer) In it fair to say that Gk |
1 A St |11 Zikta woudd heve that infomation? !
i1 & 8 evan thougn the constructicn wag baking placa in 1 Ao @ den't krow iF Gordom #itto has the informaticn,

1 ias Vegue, Neveda, the dommemta reqemiirg that sonsbruskion wars | 13 5o Would ambody alsa, other than Cordon, hava that

14 kept In Stockbea? U informtion?

Bo e sica was mot constructed in Las Vesss, ag far 25 -+ [ 15 A lot to oy kacklede.

14 3. Tea glge was inatalled in lag Vegasi 1 2. Do you loow AF K A hae gurchazed alusobord From

] A Comedt, 17 either A Cowposites or amy othsr cowary sines ymi have heen with
] Q. lipere wag Lt coastructed? 18 ti= old B4 Ark or the oew Ad Art?

13 4. Bofar ag I cam revell, Stockion, falifomia, bL] A 1have > idea.

b} 0. Bod were you lovolved in that soostrustlon or that 2 0. Woat 3d &t now 1a resposible for prochasing the
ol budldioy pressse in Stockiam? 21 makariala far wae @ giqus?
2 A, &, ki A He do wob marufacture aige now.
FA] % Doyou mave any infemmtion za to how it was 2 Q. Heen Ad Art did camfagture signa, whe was do charge of
24 cocstrueted? Was it constructed in phases sod sSiipoed cus to # crdering the materiala for thoss algns?
25 Las Veges or did they build the whole thing is Steckion md then | 25 A, Onthe old, dead comany --

Paga 335 Page 37

1 sbipped it out o Lag Vegas? I mean, bow did thak popcess work, 1 W, AR Object, fomm

2 i you know? i A Onthe old, dead coopany, | believe it was

3 A 1 hava 5o idea. 3 Sordon Hitko,

4 9 Wi wedd oo ¢ . (By Mr. Ecametommer) Anybody else?

3 A, Sordos fitto, | & A Hot thdt [ cam recell,

& Q. Raybody alser § {Interference in proceedinge. |

7 A I doen't howe keowledge of wio eise wadd now, i Recans baken Do 3:08 to 3:i15.)

3 . How mamy perple wers working cut of the Stockean 4 BY MR, SRAETIAUER:

3 Factory or plant thac wes bullding the ¥R pylcs in Steckben? i Q. ¥ov ¥r, Head, X reallze that you des't have much of a
18 A Prchably T8, 19 recollection of the constrastion of the M3 sign in the 3308, mut
11 0 Waoat bhat tize in miiding the M3 pylen in Stockbon | 11 yeu do -~ you do hava a Teeollpction thak Bhe ctapany you weze
12 would hava been respnsible for scquizing the materials for that | 11 werking for &t che tee did build and fnatall the MM pyln in
13 koild? 13 las Vegas, carrsot?

e A Izelieve Zordon Ticto, {13 A The oid conpeny built and installed Che B pylon,
i5 @ Are you faxiliar wich 1 saterial by the mme of 15 that's correce,
12 alucobead? 18 Q. Fow, do you koow 1f the crepany that you're referring
17 L l'maare of the material called aluzsbond, |11 to #id agy revisians bo that pylon or vag their job just to
1B 0 o you kow e ssmfactires aluobond? {16 comstruct it and fmstall it7
% A hwem ids 19 A oy kowledge, a1l ve &id Es comstruct 1t and imtall
1 2. what do you kmov abeut 2locohnd? 2 ik
1 M. SIVEREN; Ubjection. This is eddy a G You don't bave any kmowledge of Xd Art perfoming
2 Silverman, ooupsel for JA. I jusk object o the extent that it 2 rovisiens or updates to the ¥ pylm wiile yoo wers with tha
23 callg for spemiation, i3 cenpeny?
1 4. (By ¥x. Bramstbmuer] I'm asking for your pecsonal b & Mo, nase.
35 fmoededge about the alwobend, b 9. Do you hava any knowledge about revisicns done to the
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Page 40|
A 2zt 4n ths 15908, who was respopsible for cometmuoting end

1 ¥R pylen aster it vez constructad by ad Art back in che 1390 and | 3
t inscalled? | 1 instaliing the WO gylen, did thab ccopary costroch signs?
1 Ao Wl Tloowvhen ve - the old Ad Art did the sgn, it | 3 A V=g
« badacbeonit, deovit des b, Iiveroideasdodidzhe | ¢ Q. Md T e - I mow y'all ko or cemecber a visle lot |
5 revision, T just boos thac 1Y oo lerger faw a e, .. i abcut the codsbructicr of the MM sign, but begicaily, 4t waa
i 0. 2oy otber reviaims that yeu ara mwers of? | 6 it was cemstxucted or builk io Stroitem and breusht to La Vegas
i B bk Erat T an pire of, 7 acd installed; is that carrast?
B 3 3t vou did anderstard vhen it wea originally i A 7 bsiiem twat is comrest.
3 cemstructed ad irstalled by ad art, It bad & cube gt the bep, ad | 4 (- inidoyou kmow 15 M &t 244 the instellatim eor if
W0 it mo lenger has a cwbe. 8o fust by victus of tha cube awrmtly ‘ 10 ey hired mother company to do the inatallatien?
1L Yeing qume, souchody revised It, righi? LI A T om't imow who did the dnstallation, f v himd
12 A Tlaow that the old corpany hed @ obe m b, and e |13 amyoody to aseist, tub I know that ¢ Arc tmd imscallers there,
13 guibe dces mot axdst now, 13 the ald 24 Are,
bt 2. Aod yon don't imow the nape of the cwwamy tat teck | Y 0. Okazy. Tha old Ad Act had inatallers in Laa Vegs
15 e oute off? 15 during the thwe of the Installatls of the W3 pylac was
T A K TGt I-'ii cccurring; is that correct?
17 § Tid you york for any other sigu wmaniz that did wark | U7 3. Cormct.
1 en the ¥ pylon in Lag Vegas, Hevada? 1 ¥ #hoelee -~ or who would have been am installer Ltk
13 A 1 worked for the old comeny, 1 M art would heve hired back In the -- in the 1990a when you
b0 . Cther than that «« T gues vhat T'n ssying do: Yo |30 worked fox - for taem In fas Vegas?
2 worked also for 0.3, Sigus, corzect? (2 & 2 hmew i
2 A, Tuat's correct. | 2 @ fbo alge would they rmgeh st Bn or conbrack with to
B ¢ Did U3 sime do anythivg with the K pylen dn |23 istall signa, such 18 che M3 pyln?
24 Las Vegas, Navada? | 24 A ImEwe o idea.
bz ] B ] 11 9. Were there other copanies in Las Veges or - that
Pace 30| “Page 41 |
i §-  Okay. Before you joloed Ad Axt, the comamy that | 1 yould coe bo Las Veqsa to axadst in the installation of the pylan
2 ymu've referring te as the dead company, who wers you werking forg 1 signs st eitber the MY, the Mirage, the Rio, amy of those?
i A The Oxibed States oy k| A I bave o dea,
¢ 0.  Clkay. 5o is it faiz %o aay tha® your sxpecience mthe | 4 0. bid ad Art ab the bins bhat ¥3{ pvlon war being
§ 2ign building ox glgeage Indvstry i3 Mmited to your time at 3 comatructed, did it do i3 own Eabrication?
£ M Mt, the oldsr comeny; U.8. Signs; and now A Art, as it i 4, The gld coepany ¢id its oem fabrizabion,
T curzeatly exiats? 7 % o the old company wald have Fabrimated the aid M
| 3 R, My history, I bave - the old, dead company 1 worked i pylay is that correct?
i for, I#es in sales 3% met so moch mewfacturing, bet I imow | 8 A s farag | know, s,
13 basins, i 9o I'm just reading through my votes. 3ear withme for a
1 1.5, Bigns dees oot build signs, and T lesmed bow |11 fer almtos.
12 o buy signs. 1 Faya you ever dope busizess or purchased {hems
b} &d the Tew oompany, wiich coes pob build sieps, 1‘13 frem 3A Composites?
14 we buy 3igna, and -- so the huirding isn't an issus here, bt} A Kol bmab T doow of,
15 ¢ bBoat ths amrent AJ Art, you doo't -- you donct build | 15 2. So just by reviewing thess reccrds - I just want to
16 pigms? You buy theap 1§ v LIE you bave oy understandipg a9 ta this -- the pemit to
i7 & ‘That is corrsct. 17 build the sign, which is Platatiff's Béhinit 1, wes isousd in
18 4. Bolain to = tow that works, 18 Cckober of '53. Do you ses bbat?
13 k. %e bave iclesals conpactors who hudld signs for e |12 A, Idon't kmow if thig was the sign. I just know that
20 cuptoness, Afler we ceelun Lhem, we got permits {or them. Ke |30 this was the MM, and it wes 4 billkcard. That's all T foow
21 kave kired Installers to instail chem, and thez we bdld then 21 Pecause I'm reading it, and that's what it says.
2 3. kre you famlar with 2 copeny called Display Ad, n Q. And then we have a — 1'11 just reprosst to pom that
23 Ing,? |33 wa have a puchase order from 33 for aluccherd Sor uge o the MM
2 v o |24 sigo In 1o Vagas that came Lo about 1994, Do you undsrctand vy
i B Back when you worked for the company you refer to as thare wetrid be a delay or why there i3 2 permit in 193 bot o

25
|
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Tags 4z |
arder for alucobend dn ‘587

mf L'm pat,

Page 41

www.litigationservices, com

3 A Tom parmit that howed -- 2 If wa can take a quick five mimitws, It11 lgdk Hirownh
3 MR, FRTER: Dojection; {alls for geculaticn, 3 my motes, 1'il likely nct have any muze questiomns. Chazy,

¢ k. T permit chat you showed e ds For foundation ondy 4 M, Haad?

5 The 21g2 itself, I tave mo ide o caleréd - or few Lbowes g B problem. T'w have.

6 beilt. Twes't inolved | & . EmETAlE: Al cight. 111 be ride back
] 3. By Mr, frzosthager) In your -- jusk besed wpon your l ? {Pecess taleen from 2:27 ko 3:29.)

3 ‘mowladge of now thase sigma are Imilt lo wor work histery wich | 8 MR, GRESETEMER: [ thirk I'mall deme. Idmit
§ tala comany, M Art, how log does it typleally taks for a aign, 3 have any farcher questicms.

| 10 euach 22 the M pylan, fo be consbrucked and then installed? | 10 ¥, HIRTFR: Thie is Tim Hinter, and #')0 gead

] 11 A Ik would take -- 11 and misn. Ti cam be seab divectly to re,
iz MR, HCmM:  Chjectlor: Vogwe, amigums, calls 1 MR, RRAVERMER: 23y, &id vou heve any
i} for speenlatisn, | 11 questioea?

[ 14 A U3t mw s lrg this sign fock the old comany o | T4 W STERAEN: Mo qesrions, and | don't need 2
15 Tudld bur -» 135 treuscmph, Thark o, 1
1é b By ¥r. Frazetbanes) Do you have an setimate? 18 ind of mroceedinoe at 3:29 g '
17 A ¥exnths. n
i 2. Do pou beow LI M or the cliont was bagoy #ith the el
13 prodact that M Axt had -- had Built for ther? f 12
bl A Dioww they paid we. Thet's all T know, |20
n Q. Did they ever make zy coplaints to M Art mprding | 2
1 the sig? b
2 A ek thek T em sware of. | 2
i Q. ¥o would be awars of that, if chosa coplalzte werm | &

25 aver made; g a5 .
Paga &3 Page 45‘
1 Ao Thab woukd be Tarry Lorg. 1 CHANGES AFC FIGVATORE
: ¢ Areyou fadliax with a coopany called Meon Lighting & | ¢ ¥IDVESS Num: DITE OF DEPOSTITON: ____
1 3igre? 31 BagE LIRE CHARGE BERECH
1 A Tee e i4 Fandliar, {
5 0. Wb -- sty ig 3 faml)ian [
: They ware 2 sign corpany sesed in Las Yesas, | @
1 0. D you ever vork mm projects with Heen Lightiey & ¥
4 8ign widle you were In las Vegas? 8
3 A Yo, never did. 3
10 Q. At ary tlee have you ever worked with or ccnsulted with | 12
1 or been &3 & project wdth Wico Lighting & Sign? S —
12 A B 13
13 Q. Zow about Interstate Zlectrlc Cowpany, do you mow thac [ 47 =
14 carpany? 1%
5 A, I'pfamiliar with the oame. 1%
1§ 9. My is Lal? 1=
17 A, Becaise T have heard che neme Interstate Ela;.-:,::ic 17
12 §.  Have you ever worked with or comanlted with, acdered EL
13 frem, third partied or sibeontracted with Interstata Slectric 13
10 Cormamy? 10 A
271 A T hewe mt perstmlly, eo a
b Q. Has anybody &t X Ari? 22
| A I bave 1o de. 4
i G Mme you fardiiar with a cogany by the peme of Lesm, 3
25 I-B-H-2M a5
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wn

-

Dage ¢ |
1. DOUGLAS AZAR HEAD, hawe vaad the forsgning depemition and

nerehy af2lx ny mopacure that same is true and eoreeet, dxespt as

nobed atove

e —

FUUGLAS ALAN MESD

THE STATE 0F
COUNTY OF
Safors na, — , 9n this day

perzanally appeaved BUUGTAS ALAN TERD, Inem to ta (cr proved b

se mder path or thoougn ) iduseription of
ideacity cazd or cther dwcassot) Tz bi bhe fersca whose nese i

suERoThed ta tha foregoing lostrueent and ackuouledged ke e chat
they executsd the same for tha purpacss and considsrasiosm thersin

Exprasgad,
Eivay uner my hand axd senl ef office this
cay =i 4

FOTREY SRLIC I8 MNAL FUp foE
STATE 42 t8tas

B e —

i

ATATE OF TRAAS |
COUNTY OF DALEAS |

I, JRE PATZ, Ceviilled Shorthand Reparter, in and for the
gtatz of Texas, do herety certify that the [oresping deposition of |
DOUCLAS ALAN 5220, vas taken befows me ac tha tlee and place
therain a=t forth, =t phach timp the witneus wds put Inder oubh by
]

That tos testimomy of the witness and all mads 3% the kiwe of
rhe examinabion wers ravorded stecographicaily by ms, wase
charasttar tragscrived under my dlrection and superviaico aod that
the foraqoing i & tres yeoccrd of Jume,

I Eurther cextify that I om oeither cmimsel Sor nor reluted
1o goy paxty te said acltion, nox in any way Inberssced {a thz
cuteons therest,

IN WITHEES WEERECE, I have subscribad my name this
ASLE day of Hay, 2017.

QFM*_Quw
JUTE PATE, Tewas C3E 4385
Bsplration fate: 11-31-1C
LITIEATION SERVETES I
3770 Joward Bughes #azkeay |
Suite 300
L4 Vegas, fewads  F9169
&00-3130-1111

Litigation Services

|

800-330~1112

www.litigationservices.com
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Parioway, Suite 250
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Las Vegas, Nevada 89113

Telvpone No. (702} 473-4350
Faeaimile No. (702) 270-4602

Ray Lego & Associates

Ta450 Arroyo Crgas

ANS

TIMOTHY F. HUNTER, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 010622 ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
RAY LEGO & ASSOCTATES 10/17/2016 10:39:26 AM

11 7450 Arroyo Crossing Parkway, Suite 250

| Las Vegas, NV 89113

Tel:  (702) 479-4350

[Fax:  (702) 270-4602

| tfhunter{@travelers.com

Attorney for Defendant,

AD ART, INC.
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
CHARLES SCHUELER, | CASE. NO.: A-15-722391-C
Plaintiff, DEPT. NO.: XVII
V.

MGM GRAND HOTEL, LLC, a Domestic
Limited T.iability Company d/b/a MGM
GRAND; MGM RESORTS
INTERNATIONAL, a Foreign Corporation !
d/b/a MGM GRAND; AD ART, INC,, a|
Foreign Corporation; 3A. COMPOSITES USA
'INC., a Foreign Corporation a'k/a
ALUCOBOND TECIINOLOGIES
COROPORATION; DOES 1 - 25; ROE
CORPORATIONS 1 --25; inclusive,

Defendants.

DEFENDANT AD ART. INC.’S ANSWERS TO PLAINTIFF’S INTERROGATORIES,
SET TWO

Defendant AD ART, INC. (“Defendant”) by and through their counsel, Timothy F,
Hunter of Ray Lego & Associates, hereby answers the second sef of Interrogatories propounded
by Plaintiff CHARLES SCHUELER (“Plaintiff”) as follows:

1. Defendant objects to Plaintiff’s Interrogatories to the extent they seek documents
or disclosure of information that is protected from disclosure by the attorney-client privilege in
accordance with Rule 26 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure and NRS 89.095.

% Defendant objects to Plaintiff’s Interrogatories to the extent they seek documents

1
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or disclosure of information that is protected from disclosure by the work-product exemption in
accordance with NRCP 26(b)(3) and applicable case law.

3. Defendant objects to Plaintiff’s Interrogatorics to the extent they seck documents
or information protected from disclosure pursuant to the consultant/expert exemption in
accordance with NRCP 26(b)(4) and applicable case law.

4, Defendant objects to Plaintiff’s Interrogatories to the extent they scek trade
secrets, commercially sensitive information, or confidential proprietary data entitled to
protection under NRCP 26(¢)(7). 4dlso yee NRS 49,325

5. Defendant objects to Plaintiff’s Interrogatories pursuant to NRCP 33(d) in that
documents Defendant has already produced to Plaintiff herein.

6, This response is made on the basis of information and writings available to and
located by Defendant upon reasonable investigation of records. There may be other and further
mformation respecting the Discovery propounded by Plaintiff of which Defendant, despite
reasonable investigation and inquiry are presently unaware. Defendant reserves the right to
modify or enlarge any respomse with such pertinent additional information as may be

subsequently discovered.

:ﬁ s No incident or implied admissions will be made by the Answers set forth hercin
i below. The fact that Defendant may answer er object to any Interrogatory, or any part thereof,
shall ot be deemed an admission that Defendant accepts or admits the existence of any facts set
forth or assumed by such Interrogatory, or that such response constitites admissible evidence.
The fact that Defendant answers any Interrogatory is not deemed a waiver by Defendant of its
abjections, including privilege, to other parts of such Interrogatory.

8. Defendant cbjects to any instruction or Interrogatory to the extent that it would
impose upon Defendant greater duties than those which are set forth under the Nevada Rules of

Civil Procedure. Defendant will supplement its answer to those Intenogatorics as required by

NRCP 26(e).
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9, All answers are made solely for the purpose of this action. Each answer,
inchiding any answers to any Interrogatory, or document produced in lieu of a written
ANSWER TO same, will be subject to all objections as to competence, relevance, materiality,
propricty and admissibility, and to any and all other abjeclions an any ground which would

require the exclusion from evidence of any statement heretn if any such statements were made

by a witness present and testifying at trlal, all of which objections and grounds arc expressly |

' reserved and may be interposed at such hearings.

10.  Defendant adopts by reference the above-objections and incorporates sach

objection as if it was fully set forth below in each of Defendant’s answers.
SPECIFIC OBJECTIONS

Wherever Defendant objects to an item of discovery on grounds that said item of
discovery is unduly burdensome and oppressive, Plain(iff’s attention is directed to the following
cases: Riss & Co v. Association of American Ratlroads, 23 FR.D. 211 (D.D.C. 1959); United
States v. Loews, Inc., 23 FR.D. 178 (SDN.Y. 1959); Green v. Raymond 41 F.R.D. 11 (D.
Colo, 196€); and Flour Mills of America, Inc. v. Pace, 75 F.R.1D. 676 (D. Okla. 1977).

Further, wherever Defendant objects to an item of discovery on grounds of vagueness
and overbreadth, Plamtiff’s atiention is directed to the following cases: Jewish Hospital Assn,
of Louisville v. Struck Construction Co., 771 F.R.D. 59 (D.C. KY, 1978) and Stovall v. Guif &
So.Am. 88, Co., 30 FR.D. 152 (D. Tex. 1961).

Wherever Defendant objects to an item of discovery on grounds that said item of
discovery is irrelevant and not caleulated to lead to admissible evidence, Plaintiffs atteation is
directed to the following cases: Green v. Raymond, 41 F.R.D. 11 (D.Colo. 1966); Burroughs v.
Warner Bros. Pictures, 15 F.R.D. 165, 166 (D. Mass. 1963).

Wherever Defendant objects to an item of discovery on grounds of attorney-client
privilege, Plaintiff’s attention is directed to the following cases: Sperry Rand Corp. v. IBM, 45
F.R.D. 287 (D. Del. 1967), and Jewish Hospital Assn. of Louisville v. Struck Construction Co.,
77 FR.D. 59 (D.C. KY. 1978).
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ANSWERS TO INTERROGATORIES

INTERROGATORY NO. 40:

Please list the mames, business addresses, and positions of Defendant’s corporate

directors and/or corporate officers from the date of incorporation to present.

| ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 40:

Defendant incorporates each General Objection hy reference herein. Defendant further

| objects fo this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to

this intcrrogatory on the grounds that the term “position” is vague and ambiguous, and on that
basis uncduly burdensome and oppressive. Subject to and without waiving the foregoing
objections, Defendant responds as follows:
The following individuals have been corporate officers and/or directors from the date of
incorporation to the present:
¢ Tery Long, CEOQ/Chairman — 150 Executive Park Bl., Suite 2100, San Francisco,
CA 94134;
o Jeremy Anderson, VP, Secretary/Treasurer, Director — 150 Executive Park BL., Suite
2100, San Francisco, CA 94134; and
* Robert Kierejczyk, President, Director — 5090 Fruit Ave., Suite 101 — San Francisco,
CA 93711,
The following individoals are Defendant’s current corporate officers, but did not hold
those positions at time of incorporation:
« Dana Long, Vice President & General Counsel — 150 Execative Park Bl., Suite 2100,
San Francisco, CA 94134,
s David Hsajian, Branch Manager & Director — 5090 Fruit Ave., Suite 101 — San
Francisco, CA 93711;
e Duane Contento — Executive V.P,, Director, 2321 Rosecrans Ave., Suite 1250, El

Segundo, CA 90245; and
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e Doug Head — V.P, Director ~ 700 Parker Square, Suite 205, Flower Mound, TX

75028.

INTERROGATORY NO. 41:

For each corporate director listed in Interrogatory No. 40, please list the names and
addresses of any other corporations and/or entities in which they have ever been a corporate

director and/or corporate officer, including the pame of the corporation and the dates they held

each position.

ANSWERS TO INTERROGATORIES NO. 41:

Defendant incorporates each General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further
abjects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to
this interrogatory on the grounds that the term “position™ is vague and ambiguous, and on that

basis unduly burdensome and oppressive. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory on the

| grounds that it is frrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible

| evidence. Accordingly, Defendant interprets this interrogatory to request information related to

whether the individuals listed in Interrogatory No. 40 were cotporate directors and/or officers of

any corporation or entity that builf, or was in the business of building, the sign at issue in

plaintiff’s Complaint. Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, Defendant

responds as follows:

Terry Long - President, Ad Art Electronic Sign Corp. (beginning in or about 1985-2001)
Director, Display Technologies, Inc, (fka La-Man, Inc.) (1998-2001)

INTERROGATORY NO. 41: |sic|

From the date of incorporation to the present, please list the names and business
addresses of all of Defendant's sharcholders, stockholders, partuers, and/or owners who/which
own at least 5% of the shares, stock, or voting stock of Defendant's corporation and/or
who/which own at least 5% of the corporation - including the percentage owned by each and a
description of what is owned (e.g. percentage of the corporation, shares, voting stock, etc.).

{1/
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ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 41: |sic]

Defendant incorporates each General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further
objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to
this interrogatory on the grounds that the phrasc, “and/or who/which own at least 5% of the
corporation” is unintelligible. Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objectious,
Defendant responds as follows: Defendant is a California C corporation with one class of stock.
Rounded to the nearest percentage based upon currently issued shares, individuals owning
greater than 5% of Defendant’s stock is listed as follows:

e Terry Long (and spouse) - 22%

e Robert Kiergjezyk (and spouse) ~22%

* Duane Contento — 22%

o Jeremy Anderson —11%

* David Esajian — 6%

e Doug Head (and spouse) - 8%

From the date of incorporation to present, please list the physical address(es) where your
products are fabricated, engineered, manufactured and/or produced.

ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 42:
Defendant incorporates each General OQbyjection by reference herein. Defendant further

objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to
this interrogatory on the grounds that it is overbroad, and on that basis unduly burdensome and
oppressive. Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, Defendant responds as
follows: At all times since its incorporation in 2003, Defendant has never owned a facility that
fabricates or manufactures its products, Defendant’s products have been fabricated,
manufactured and/or produced by third party subcontractors, vendors and/or suppliers.

I/
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INTERROGATORY NO. 43:

For cach such location listed in Inferrogatory No. 42 above, please indicate whether
Defendant built the structure on the land itself or whether the structure was pre-cxisting. If the
struclure was pre-existing, please indicate who/which entity Defendant purchased/leased the
staucture from and what the structure was used for by its previous oceupants.

ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 43:

Defendant incorporates each General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further
objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to
this interrogatory on the grounds that it is overbroad, and on that basis unduly burdensome and
oppressive.  Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, Defendant responds as
follows: Not applicable.

INTERROGATORY NO. 44:

Please indicate whether Defendant assumed any debts of any other corporation at or

‘around the time it was incorporated. If so, please describe such debts and who/which company

owed the debts,

ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 44:

Defendant incorporatcs each General Objection by refercnce herein, Defendant further
objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to
this interrogatory on the grounds that it is overbroad, and on that basis unduly burdensome and
oppressive.  Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, Defendant responds as
follows: Defendant did not assume the existing debt of any other corporation at or around the
time it was incorporated.

I
/11!
{1
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| INTERROGATORY NO. 45:

Please indicate whether Defendant acquired, obtained, purchased, leased, and/or
otherwise obtained any client lists, customer lists, business contact lists, trade sccrets,
proprietary business information, and/or other confidential information from any other

company/corporation (whether active or inactive) at or around the time of incorporation. If so,

| please indicate which company/corporation such information was obtained from.

ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NOQ. 45:

Defendant incerporates each General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further

| objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to

| this interrogatory on the grounds that it is overbroad, and on that basis unduly burdensome and

oppressive. Subject to and withoul waiving the foregoing objections, Defendant responds as
follows: As set forth in prior responses to discovery, Defendant acquired naming rights,
website address and telephone number from NASCO at or around the time of its incorporation

through a written agreement previousty produced to Plaintiff.

INTERROGATORY NO, 46:

Please indicate whether Defendant obtained, purchased, leased, procured, acquired, |
inherited, and/or otherwise received any intellectual property from any other
company/corporation (whether active or inactive) at or around the time of incorporation. If so,
please indicate which company/corporation such intellectual property was obtained from.
ANSWER TOQ INTERROGATORY NO. 46:

' Defendant incorporates each General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further objects

to this inferrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to this
inferrogatory on the grounds that the phrase “intellectual property” is vague and ambiguous.
Defendant further objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is overbroad, and on that
basis unduly burdensome and oppressive. Subject to and without waiving the foregoing
objections, Defendant responds as follows: Other than as set forth in response to Interrogatory

No. 45, Defendant did not acquire any “intellectual property” at or around the time of
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| and supplies.

incorporation.
INTERROGATORY NO. 47:

Please indicate whether Defendant obtained, purchased, leased, procured, acquired,

inherited, and/or otherwise received any physical property from any other company/cotporation
(whether active or inactive) at or around the time of incorporation. If so, please indicate which
company/corperation such physical property was obtained from.

ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 47:

Defendant incorporates each General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further |

objects to (his interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to
this interrogatory on the grounds that it is overbroad, and on that basis unchaly burdensome and
oppressive. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is irrelevant 5
and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Subject to and
without waiving the foregoing objections, Defendant responds as foflows: At or around the
time of incorporation, Defendant purchased and/or leased certain physical property from third

parties associated with sefting up offices, including but not limited to computers, office furniture

DATED this_{7 "y of October, 2016,
Respectfully submitted,

RAY LEGO & ASSOCIATES

L;/Mﬁ/ﬂdfﬁ ﬂ é’.@@l‘» #14BY

fﬁﬂ TIMOTHY F. HUNTER, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No. 010622
7450 Arroyo Crossing Patkway, Suite 250
Las Vegas, NV 89[13

Attorney for Defendant, AD ART, INC.
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YERIFICATION.

STATE OF NEVADA ER SR WS
58 - d
COUNTY,OF CLARK. . ) g 3 "

..Dana Long, Esq., being first duly swom, deposes and says: I am an. employce of the

named Dcfendant. in the: abu\rccnmlcd action, 1 have read the. foregoing. ducumem entxﬂed

DEFENDANT AD ART, INC.'S ANSWERS TO PLAINTIFF'S WIERROGATOMES o i

SET TWO and know the contents.ther¢of; and that the same are true of- my own persona}

knowledge, except for those matters therein stated on information and belief :uld. as to thus:

/ Ly LA . q
LONG, ESQ.*

matters,-.-l..hehcve themn (o he true,

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to befors me
this - day of October; 2016,

Namry Publ_lc inand for sard County 5 4

*

10
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A notary public or other officer completing this certificale verifies ony the identity of
the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and nof
the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California },
County of C,:/‘{_Q T 5

f
20 “ﬂ by

Subscribed and sworn to {or affirmed) beforz me en thisl

o
+

tay of _ (. ;

_Da W G LU,E"H - . :

befora me.

o

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evi

ice to be the person(s) who appeared

MAAK FUNG-HING LAU
Commission # 2032435
Notary Public - Californta £

San Francisco County x
My Cormm. Expires Jul 29, 2017

DESCRIPTION OF THE ATTACHED DOCUMENT

B = - -
LN ¢d frl'fLiC}“’L

(Titte ar duseip St af mmcérmd)

(Ve or deseppion of attached desument confinied)

Numter of Pages _____Decliment Data

Defmomi KL Bk T

Addillonst infarmation

&_wﬂ‘mg o ?(QIWT?H* $
Mle ryogqafories | Set
N u

2018 Verslon www NolaryClasges,com &30-873-0865

Sighatare NV (Seal)
OPTIONAL INFORMATION INSTRUCTIONS

Tie wneming of all Jurats compiatect in CoMormia affer Janvary 1, 2015 must be i the T
a8 saf forth Within s Joraf. Thers are ro excepiiens. If'a Jural fo be complited doay pal
fnkw dhis farm), tha nalery most saireat tha vediags by wsing 8 furdt sizmp canisining i
comeet wardog or aaghing & separaia fural form sl as fis am8 with does canfaln the
propor woming. &y additon, the rofary musl requis an oath or affmaton fom tho
dosument signar megaralng the Muthfuless of e cortenis of e document Thy
dociment st be signed AFTER Hie oath or afifmatin. ! the decument was praviocspy
sighetl, dmusst be r-signad [n franl af the nofaty gubdc duing tis furd procsss.

» State and county Informatian must ke the slate and county whera the

document signer(s) personally appesred bafors the notary public.

Date of nolarizatlos inust be the date the sinaps) personally

appeared which must ala be the same dala the jurat process s

completed.

Prnt the nameis) of the document signer(s) who personally appear af

the me of notanzatian,

Signalure of the nolary publie must malch tha signalurs an Ba wiih the

offica of the county clerk,

s Tha notary seal Inpression must be clesr and phofegraphically
reproducibla. Impression must not cover text or lines. If seal Impreasion
smudges, ra-saal if a sufficlent area permits, othsmwise complete a

ditferent jurst fom.

+  Addlional informaflon s nol required but could heip
io ensure this jurat 18 not misused or attached to &
different document,

< Indicate titls or type of aflached docament, number of
pages and date,

Sacurely attech this documant to the sluned dacument ufth a stanle.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), [ hercby certify that I am an employee of RAY LEGO &
ASSOCIATES and that on the A‘:théy of October, 2016 I caused the foregoing
DEFENDANT AD ART, INC’S ANSWERS TO PLAINTIFF’S INTERROGATORIES,
SET TWQ 1o be served as follows:

_X__ pursuant to N.E.F.C.R. 9 by serving it via electronic service,

To the attorneys listed below:

| Ryan D. Krametbauer, Esq., #12800 P: 702/385-3300
| BRENSKYE & ANDREEVSKI F: 702/385-3823
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 4500 Attorneys for Plamtiff, CHARLES
Las Vegas, NV 89169 SCHUELER
!
k

An employee of RA

10
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i Nevada Bar No, 6]2091

Adtorney for Defendant/Thind-Pany

Electronically Filed
06/05/2013 02:25:34 PM
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MICHAREL R. HALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 003978 CLERROF THE CAURY

TOR G. SELIM, ESO.

isehmilawhic com

Hatl Jasre & Crayron, LLP
A0S FEAK DRIVE
LAS VEGAS NEVADS 89723
{702) 3184 113
FAX (2623159114

PlaintilComiter-Defendan! i

ShowEX, Inc. i
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

SAMMY WALTENS, an individual, and
HYUNSOOK WALTENS, an individual,
CASE NO. A-11-637991.C

Plamtif, DEPT NO. XXXIi
¥s.
ORDER GRANTING DEFENDANT
SHOW FX, and DOES I.X and ROE SHOWEX'S MOTION FOR PARTIAL
CORPORATIONS X, inclusive. SUMMARY JUDGMENT RE PLAINTIFE'S

. STRICT PRODUCT LIABILITY CLAIM
Defendants,
Date of Heaving:  Apvil 25,2013
Tinze vf Heaving: 9:00 wnu

AND RELATED THIRD-FARTY AND
COUNTER CLADMS.

On Mareh (3, 2013, Defendani ShowFX (“ShowFX") Bled & motion for partial summmacy’
judament as (o Plaintiffs” Sammy Walters and Hyunsook Wallens (eollectivaly referred to as “Plainliff?)
claim for strict product Hability, O e about April 1, 2013, Plaintif filed mz opposition io the motion, On
April 18, 2013, ShowFX filed its reply to s opposiitan. Third Pty Defendant Cirgue du Soiail, Tie, and

Cirgue EPE Las Vegas, LLC (“Cirgue™) filed no brief in connection with the moticn,

2 '
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On April 25, 2013, this Honoruble Cowst, Judge Rob Bare, presiding, held 4 hearing
with respect to the motion for partial smvmary judgimest. Plantitf was represented at e henring
by Christopher M. Kelier, Esq for Chad Bowers, Fsq.: Cirque was represented ar the hearing by
Brian K. Terry, Esq. of Thorsdal Arntsirong Delle Balkepbush & Eisinger: and ShowrX was
tepresenied al the bearing by Michel R, Hall, Esq. of Hall Jafie & Clavion, LLP.

After having duly considered the parties’ moving, oppasing, and reply briefs, the
vartous documents submitted as exhibits, the arguments by counsed at the hewringregarding the égat
standurd for what is o “preduct™—citing Calloway v. City of Rono, 116 Nev. 250, 269, 893 P 2ad
F259, 1271 (2000} (overruled oa piher grownds) - 4n the context of strict produet lHability claims,
discusaing Plaintiff's request for leave to conduct additional discavery under NRCP 56{0), and

considering the alternale theory ollered by Plaintill having o do with the way die alleged “protuct”

] was designed and created, the Court findy:

[ Plaintifs does vot have a legally cognizable eausc of action for stricet produet
Hability; and
¢ The subject jukebox set prece, as a whole auid with respect to its individaal

parts, g not a “product” within the coutext of the strict pradhct tiability dostring.
Based upon the foregoing, it is hereby QRODERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED

thar

1 Show¥#Xs Maotion for Partis! Sommary ludgmentve Plaintif*s Strict Product

Liability Claim s GRANTED; and,

o

363



(P

~N D kn

o

D

e

PREIUDICE,

Respectiully subunitted by:

| HALL JAFFE & CLAYTON, LLD

o
)

MICHAEL K. HALL, ESQ.
Mevada Bar Ne. Q05978
TAYLOR G. SELIM [SQ.
Nevada BarNo. 012091
7425 Peak Drive

Las Vegas, Nevada 89428
Attorney for Defendanis

i
Dated this _/ i day of May 2613
CHAD A. Bg}i{ﬁ}g&,;ﬂ!'!).

ol

4 h..‘..--‘l_l_,\.-_:mqW.\..m.“w___m..w.

Chad A, Bowers, Fsq.

Nevadg BaerNo, 007283

3202 West Charleston Boulevard
Las Vepas NV 89(02

Fax: (702) 457-8006
Atioraeys for Pfrs‘:'m’[f/&
Sammiy Waltens apd Hyimsook Waltens

ang,
Dated this day of May 2013

THORNDAL ARMSTRONG DELK
BALKBENBUSH & EISINGER
o
'

7
Brian K. Terry, Esqf
Nevada Bar No, 003171
Gregory M. Sehuliman, Esq,
Nevada Bay No, 005766
1100 E. Bridger Avenue
Las Vegas NV 8910]
Attorieys for Cirgue Du Soleil, I,
and Cirgue EPE Las Vegas, LLC

Dawd this _dayof

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT:

2 Plaintift’s cruse of action for strict product Liabitity is DISMISSED WITH

BISTRICT COURT JUDGET
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2 Plaimtiff's gause of action for strict prochuct Hability is DISMISSED WITH
PREJUGICE.
5
Dated this _ o _dayaf

‘_.._-'"'-?—M‘" R e e s
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
Hespecthsliy submitied by:
pecthtliy sy fred by RO BARE T
HALL JAFFE & CLAYTON, LLD JUDGE, MSTRICT COURY, DEPARTHERS =2

e » L5 My
L N B e

w2 e ) vt el

f\ll£ iI’hEL, . HALL, LSQ
Novada Bar No. 605578
TAYLOR G, SELIM ESQ,
MNevada Bar No, §12091
7425 Peak Drive

Las Veges, Nevada §97128
Altaraey Lor Defendants

AIFROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT:
Dated this day of May g{a&:@'

s
CHAD A. BOWERS, LTD

'
-

s

Chad A, Howers, Hsg?
Nevads Bar Neo. 0972383

3202 West Chasfeston Houlevard
Las Vepas yysamz
Fax: {T02)457-8006

ARerngys for Plainiffs
Sangy Weltens qind Hyuwnsook Waltens
o

caw

o,
Dated this_{ 3 day of May 2013

THORNDAL ARMSTRONG DELK
BAL lng‘iliSIb&"/J’S!M JER

;. F# .f'r e
’f‘ j o L L.‘;jf

i 8}11{5 Tmr}g Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 00317
Gregory M. Schulmags, Fsq,
Nevada Bar No, 005766

1104 E. Biidger Avenue

Las Vegas NV 89101

Attoreeys for Cirgque Dy Sofeil, e,
and Cirgue EPE Las Vegas, LIC
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e Doug Head — V.P.,, Director — 700 Parker Square, Suite 205, Flower Mound, TX
75028.

INTERROGATORY NO. 41:

For each corporate director listed in Interrogatory No. 40, please list the names and
addresses of any other corporations and/or entities in which they have ever been a corporate
; director and/or corporate officer, including the name of the corporation and the dates they held

each position.

ANSWERS TO INTERROGATORIES NO. 41:

Defendant incorporates cach General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further
objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to
this interrogatory on the grounds that the term “position” is vague and ambiguous, and on that
basis unduly burdensome and oppressive. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory on the
grounds that it 15 wrelevant and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible
evidence. Accordingly, Defendant interprets this interrogatory to request information related to
whether the individuals listed in Interrogatory No. 40 were corporate directors and/or officers of
any corporation or entity that built, or was in the business of building, the sign at issue in
plaintiff’s Complaint. Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, Defendant
responds as follows:

Terty Long — President, Ad Art Electronic Sign Corp. (beginning in or about 1985-2001)
Director, Display Technologies, Inc. (fka La-Man, Inc.) (1998-2001)

INTERROGATORY NO. 41: |sic]

From the date of incorporation to the present, please list the names and business
addresses of all of Defendant's sharcholders, stockholders, partners, and/or owners who/which
own at least 5% of the shares, stock, or voting stock of Defendant's corporation and/or
who/which own at least 5% of the corporation - including the percentage owned by each and a
description of what is owned (e.g. percentage of the corporation, shares, voting stock, ete.).

[t
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Las Vegas, Nevada 89113
Telephone No. {702} 479-4350

Ray Lego & Associates
7450 Arroyo Crossing Parkway, Suite 250
Facsimile No. (702} 270-4602
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ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 41: [sicl

Defendant incorporates each General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further
objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to
this interrogatory on the grounds that the phrase, “and/or who/which own at least 5% of the
corporation” is unintelligible. Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections,
Defendant responds as follows: Defendant is a California C corporation with one class of stock.
Rounded to the nearest percentage based upon currently issued shares, individuals owning
greater than 5% of Defendant’s stock is listed as follows:

e Terry Long (and spouse) - 22%

e Robert Kierejczyk (and spouse) - 22%

« Duane Contento —22%

e Jeremy Anderson—11%

e David Esajian - 6%

¢ Doug Head (and spouse) - 8%

INTERROGATORY NO. 42:

From the date of incorporation to present, please list the physical address(es) where your

products are fabricated, engineered, manufactured and/or produced.

ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 42:

Defendant incorporates each General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further
objects to (his interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to
this interrogatory on the grounds that it is overbroad, and on that basis unduly burdensome and
oppressive. Subject to and without waiving the forcgoing objections, Defendant respands as
follows: At all times since its incorporation in 2003, Defendant has never owned a facility that
fabricates or manufactures its products. Defendant’s products have been fabricated,
manufactured and/or produced by third party subcontractors, vendors and/or suppliers.

11

291




Las Vegas, Nevada 89113
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| INTERROGATORY NO. 43:

For each such location listed in Interrogatory No. 42 above, please indicate whether
Defendant built the structure on the land itself or whether the structure was pre-existing. If the
structure was pre-existing, please indicate who/which entity Defendant purchased/leased the
structure from and what the structure was used for by its previous occupants.

ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 43:

Defendant incorporates each General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further
objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further abjects to
this interrogatory on the grounds that it is overbroad, and on that basis unduly burdensome and
oppressive. Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, Defendant responds as
follows: Not applicable.

INTERROGATORY NO. 44:

Please indicate whether Defendant assumed any debts of any other corporation at or

around the time it was incorporated. If so, please describe such debts and who/which company

owed the debts.
ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 44:

Defendant incorporates each General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further
objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to
this interrogatory on the grounds that it is overbroad, and on that basis unduly burdensome and
oppressive. Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, Defendant responds as
follows: Defendant did not assume the existing debt of any other corporation at or argund the
time it was incorporated.
fltl
1
1
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INTERROGATORY NO. 45:

Please indicate whether Defendant acquired, obtained. purchased, leased, and/or
otherwise obtained any client lists, customer lists, business contact lists, trade secrets,
proprietary business information, and/or other confidential information from any other
company/corporation (whether active or inactive) at or around the time of incorporation. If so,
please indicate which company/corporation such information was obtained from.

ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 45:

Defendant incorporates each General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further
objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to
this interrogatery on the grounds that it is overbroad, and on that basis unduly burdensome and
oppressive. Subject to and without waiving the foregoing objections, Defendant responds as
follows: As set forth in prior responses to discovery, Defendant acquired naming rights,
website address and telephone number from NASCO at or around the time of its incorporation
through a written agreement previously produced to Plaintiff.

INTERROGATORY NO. 46:

Please indicate whether Defendant obtained, purchased, leased, procured, acquired,

inherited, and/or otherwise received any intellectual property from any other
company/corporation (whether active or inactive) at or around the time of incorporation. If so,
please indicate which company/corporation such intellectual property was obtained from.

ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 46:

Defendant incorporates each General Objection by reference herein.  Defendant further objects
to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to this
interrogatory on the grounds that the phrase “intellectual property” is vague and ambiguous.
Defendant further objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is overbroad, and on that
basis unduly burdensome and oppressive. Subject to and without waiving the foregoing
objections, Defendant responds as follows: Other than as set forth in response to Interrogatory

No. 45, Defendant did not acquire any “intellectual property” at or around the time of
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incorporation,

INTERROGATORY NO. 47:

Please indicate whether Defendant obtained, purchased, leased, procured, acquired,
inherited, and/or otherwise received any physical property from any other company/corporation
{whether active or inactive) at or around the time of incorporation. If so, please indicate which
company/corporation such physical property was obtained from.

ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 47:

Defendant incorporates each General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further
objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to
this interrogatory on the grounds that it is overbroad, and on that basis unduly burdensome and
oppressive. Defendant further objects to this interrogatory on the grounds that it is irrelevant
and not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Subject to and
without waiving the foregoing objections, Defendant respends as follows: At or around the
time of incorporation, Defendant purchased and/or leased certain physical property from third
parties associated with setting up offices, including but not limited to computers, office furniture
and supplies.

DATED this J'_Z'_ﬁ”d‘ay of October, 2016.

Respectfully submitted,

RAY LEGO & ASSOCIATES

o domonitia, . 6l “1%

TIMOTHY F. HUNTER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 010622
7450 Arroyo Crossing Parkway, Suite 250

Las Vegas, NV 89113

Attorney for Defendant, AD ART, INC.

294




|70%] 479-4350

Nevads BG113

bone No.

P
Pacsimile Nu. (T02] 2704602

Los Vegas,

Tele

7450 Airoyo Crossing Packway, Guite 260 -

‘Ray Lego & Associates

VERIFICATION . -

STATE OF NEVADA o T i BBl e o a
ol ")SS. AN ; e ! ‘
|| COUNTY,OF CLARK . | ) i T g W !

. Dana Long, Esq., being first duly sworn, deposes and says:- I am an: cmplcyec of

|| SET TWO and know. the contents.thereof; and that the same are true of my own p:rsonat:f

knowledpe, except for those matters therein stated o information and belief m_l__:l, as to those

i matters, I:believe them to be true. S

/ u Fbe . : -
| L
SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me -
this - day of October; 2016. -
Nmary Fublic i in and for. sa[d Cnunty &

: and State

10
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A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of
the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and rot
the truthfulness, accuracy, or validify cf that document.

State of California

County of g{.‘i‘r\ k-:YU.W;};{ o

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) bafore me on thlS\ l day of C}C;{/

wlbw_ Dana Lovg

proved fo me an the basis of satisfactory evidepce te be the persen(s) who appeared

before me.

MARK FUNG-HING LAU
Commission & 2032435
Notary Public - Cafifarnia 2

§an Francisco County z

My Comim, Expires Jul 29, 2017

OPTIONAL INFORMATION

DESCRIPTION OF THE AFTACHED BOCUMENT
.r\ - =
AN 4 (asttom

(Tid2 or deseriptordaf attached docrmant)

(THs ar désr:fbdon of atlached documeni continued)
NumberofPages ___ DocumentDals_
: » 'La & Q
4 _ Mdiidonal infarmation
blatntif 3
i< JCX YYC jc{(@wfﬂ; j et
=~ U

INSTRUCTIONS

Tha wnling of af Jurals compleiad in Catfomia affer January 1, 2015 must be i the form
a5 saf forffi wiifin this Jurst Thers are ro 2xcepiions. 2 JAral o be compleled doss ot
Iniaw Mis orm, tha notary must comect the verllags by using 2 jurst sfamp contaiming the
corroct wording or afteching a sepala Jurst Brm such as ihis ans wilh doas coofsin the
penpar werdig, I ardifion, the nofary mist requite an oalf or affimation fom the
docwnant signar regarding the (nitfiinass of e confamis of e documant The
dosumsnt must b sigred AFTER the oath or affrmation. [Fthe dscument was pralously
sigred, ¥ must be re-signad in fonf of the nolary puble dung tha furat procass.

Stale and county Information must be the sata and county whera the
decument signer(s) parsenally appeared bafore the notary pubils,
Cate of notarzatlon must be the date the slgner(s} personaily
appeared which must also he the same dala the Jurat process is
completed.
Prini the name(s) of the documant signer(s) who personally sppsar at
the time of notarization,
Signature of the nolary public must match the signafure an flo with the
office of the county clark.
Tne notary seal impression must be clear and photographically
reproducible. Impression must not covar texd or nes. If seal Impreasion
smudges, ra-seal if 3 suffclent area permits, otherwise complefe a
differant jurat fom.
% Addlbonal information Is not raquijed but could help
to ensure thfs jural s not misused or attached to a
different documant. ;
< Indicate ts or type of attached document, number af
pages and dala,
Securaly attach this dacument to the signed document with a sfapls.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that [ am an employee of RAY LEGO &
ASSOCIATES and that on the _!_]i%y of October, 2016 I caused the foregeing
DEFENDANT AD ART, INC.’S ANSWERS TO PLAINTIFF'S INTERROGATORIES,
SET TWO to be served as follows:

X pursuant to N.E.F.C.R. ¢ by serving it via electronic service.

To the attorneys listed below:

Ryan D. Krametbaucr, Esq., #12800 P: 702/385-3300

BRENSKE & ANDREEVSKI F: 702/385-3823

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, #3500 Attorneys for Plaintiff, CHARLES
Las Vegas, NV 89169 SCHUELER

_/ s
A i ptd 7R
An employee of RAY LEGO & AS SOCIAT%S
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CHARLES SCHUZLER, CASE NO.: A-15-7223391-C

Plaintiff, DEPT. NO.: ZXVIT

VS. Job No.: 378149
MGM GRAND HOTEL, LLC, a
Domestic Limited Liability
Company d/b/a MGM GRAND; MGM
RESORTS INTERNATIONAL, a
Foreign Corporation d/b/a MGM
GRAND; AD ART, INC., & Foreign
Corporation; 3A COMPCSITES USA
INC., a Foreign Corporation
a/k/a ALUCOBOND TECHNOLCGIES
CORPORATICON; DOES 1 - 23; ROE
CORPORATIONS 1 - 25; inclusive,

* H ok ok F ok R o+ o A Ok K % % X % % % %

Defendants.

Thkkhkhkrkdbhrrhdrdbkdkdrtrrrdrrdrhdrrrrrrx

ORAL DEPOSITION OF
DOUGLAS ALAN HEAD
APRIL 27, 2017

khkhkkhhkdkhbdhddbrdhdrha bttt hkrrdrrrdrx

OFAL DEPOSITION OF DOUGLAS ALAN HEAD, produced as a witness
at the instance of the Plaintiff, and duly sworn, was taken in the
above-styled and numbered cause on the 27th day of April 2017,
from 2:19 p.m. to 3:29 p.m., before June Pate, CSR in and for the
State of Texas, reported by machine shorthand, at the Regus
Business Center, 405 State Highway 121, Suite A250, Lewisville,

Texas, pursuant to the Nevada Rules of Civil Preccedure.
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DOUGLAS ALAN HEAD - 04/27/2017
Bage 2| Paga 4
-1 APSCARANCES L PROCERDINGS
1 FOR THE PLAINTIFF: N e
1 Mr. RanD. Kramethauer 2 {Exhibit ¥os. 1 and 2 marked.)

(Pppear g Talechonica Lyl . - S nraw s

4 IPENGKE & ANREEVSKI 5 DRARIaYS B S,
G iff’-‘ ’*;:—"5 Hughes Parkuay 4 having besn duly sworn, testifisd urder cath as Follows:
5 Sulce

Lay Vegas, Nevada 39169 5 EERNTNTTON
5 T32-385-33C G T

i e § 8Y VR, (RAETEMER
. 7 @ ¥r. Eead, can you hear ms okay?

A TR THE DEFEMANT 2D 3R, O
§ M- Timothy F. Hunter 8 A.  Yes, T can.

\Aopearing Telechanicaily) | e i 1 1
Tl iy |9 0. I got achance to briefly introduce myself off the
- "’:ﬁi '“;"EPD Crossing Parieay 10 record. ¥y rame is Ryan Rramethauer. I'm from the law Eirm of
& Suiza 2 i

Las Vegas, Mevada 39113 | 11 Brensks & Andreevski here in Las Vegas, and we represent the
il |12 Plaintiff in this case Charles Schusler.

13 = 13 Can 1 gat you to plaase state and spell your name
14 ' 14 for the racord?

Mr. faa . T —— ooy s T s
G O B e A B 3 3. Couglss Alan Head, D-0-T-G-i-3-3, A-L-AN, H-E-A-D

{Appearing Telsphomcaily) 18 §. 13 it ckay if T call you Mr. Head?

16 AD AR, I
150 Bvecutive Park Soulevard 17 A.  That's perfect.
17 Suize 2100 ! - e .

;un iﬁmm Caii formia 94134 118 2. Ckay. Have you ever had your depositiom taken before?
18 315-363-5868 13 A, Yes.

dara. lengiadart .com :

13 i 2.  How many timss?
20 FOR THE CEFENDANT 34 COMPOSTTES USA, INC.. . i
2L M. Bivard Silverman 2L A. Thres,

(Arpearing Teleghonically) 1 Q.  When was the last time that you had your decosition
22 ALVERSON, TAVIOR, MCRTENSEN & SANDERS

7401 West Charleston Soulevard 23 baken?

23 Las Vegas, Nevada B9117-140% g

700-182- 7000 24 X, Prcbably over ten years age.

3% SRR 25 @ S it has been a while. What I'm going to & ia, real
[ - Page 3 ) Page 5
1 DD L briefly, I'm going to try to get through all of =y questicns here
2 FCOBETANCER, . . ik ik i hen e e s e e R A A e G 1 today because we have cply got 2 limited amount of time, So I'm

3 DCICLAS ALAN HERD: 3 trying to take Mr, Terry Long's depositiom this aftemncen at
3 Examinaticn by Mr. Xramebaier. . oovieiiiiinenninicines 4 § 2 o'clock our time. Sc what I'm going to do ig briefly go thrcugh
5 Hgmors g :E_D“QES | 5 kind of the ground rules of a deposition. Okay? Obvicusly, there
e e § is a court reporter there making a written record of everything
,; 1 that we're going to ssy Rere today, including your testimeny and
3 eyTaTTS 3 the cbjections of the lawyers. There are lawyers here for beth
s =
i £ e .
{0 0. DRSCHTETION PACE 3 3A Composites, and for the company that you werk for, Ad Ak,
1 i e T

11 DeposiCion BEUEDIE 1. vovvnrveiirisisiisieniinnienn 1 10 Theyare: goiel 't he adicteiy ebjactions daring Kk~ daring £

Clark County Building Department Permit 11 deposition process, but I'm enkitlad to your answer, sven over
12 1) their chjection, unless your lawyar specifically instructs you oot

DetretETon BHIRREE B0 o s i e s s s 1 11 o answer the question. OCkay?

13 2d At Executive Jomuittes 14 A Dray.
14 15 0. Now, dome a favor -- and ths first couple of times it
13 15 happens, they are coing to cbject, and I'm going to still want
18 17 your amswer to that question, unless they have specifically
s 18 instructed you nob to answer -- just go abead and take 2 pauce,
ii 13 let everybedy get their cbjections out and then go akead and
’; 20 apswer the question, because we don't want us talking over ome
.2'1 21 ancther. It's bad enough when we're in persom, but it's even
» 22 worse when we'te over the telephome. And let's just do the court
o] 23 reportar a favor by all I'1l speaking ome at a time, Okay?
2 s A, Oxay.
25 5 Q.  3ecauss it's a written record, answers llke "uh-huh" or

Litigation Services
www.litigationservices, com

| 800-230-1112
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DOUGLAS ALAN HEAD

- 04/27/2017

He & Pagse 8§
1 thub-uh' agen't going to make a clear reccrd. Even umffé; 1 §.  Mr, Head, what doouments, if amy, have you reviewg in
3 tell by the inflection in ymur voice you ey be answering with a ¢ preparaticn for this depceiticn today?
3} yea or no by using an "up-hwh® or “huz-ch," it coesc't make a 3 A Neme.
4 olear record whem I go o read the transcript later co. So do me 4 Q.  ¥ou haven't read amy of the Intsrrogatories in this
5 a favor and try to use yes or 2o type answers, and then, of 3 case?
o tourse, alaborate the questicna that call for you to elaberate, f A Yo
T okay? bi Q.  Have vou read the affidavit of Terry Long?
2 8, Ok, i3 i M
3 Q. Idm't know or T don't remember are perfactly | 3 Q.  Have ycu read any of the depsifion testizeny in this
10 reascnable answers, if those are the kruth. Chay? 11 case?
11 A, Chay. 11 A Mo
12 Q. Oreof the most important rules about a depositicm, I | 12 Q. Have you raviewed any work orders or change orders or
13 want to zake sure you inderstand the question that is being asked |5 construction contracts, coptractor comtracts, anyfhing like that
14 beczuse if you answer cme of my questions, I'a going bo asmme | 14 1in tais case?
15 tmat you understood the questiem; is that fair? | 15 A M.
b A Yes, | 18 Q. Other than pessibly comversing wita counsal, did you
g Q. If you can't hear me because we'ra ovar the telephene |17 talk to amybody else regarding your depesitica tastimemy today?
18 or oy questicn was just 0 crazy that you don't understand it, 18 A Yas,
19 because thac's bappened befora, trust me, please ask ze to 19 Q. Whot
20 rephzase the question or repeat the questlm so that you can 0 4 My wife. She gave 7e directions here.
21 understand it fully, Okay? pil Q. I appreciate that, And your wife didn't talk -- didn't
2 A Okay. 22 talt about amything substantive regarding the casa, just the
a4 @. Do you understand that the cath you've just taken 13 directions to Regus?
24 carries the same weight ard vemalties of periury as if you were b A, Corract,
33 before a judge and a jury? L] Q. Ckay. Anybody else?
Bags 7 Page 3
1 A, Yes, 1 A tlo.
2 Q. Now, at the conclusicn of this depesiticm, you'll be 2 Q. Amybody at Ad Art that you talked ko, other than
3 given am cpportunity to read througn your depositicn transcript | 3 counsel?
4 ad make changes to it. Ckay? Now, if you make miner changes, 1| H A, We had a conference call with all partics at che sare
5 you 'mow, shout, like, days and time like that, you 'mow, later 5 time.
& oo, you Joow, your recollection is refreshed or, yout know, we ask 5 Q. %o was on that confersnce call?
7 for same further Information later cn and you need to oo back to 7 A, Myself, Terry Lorg, the attomey and Dara Long?
8 yowr office and get smething, that's fime, But if you change any | 8 Q. What is your pogitier with Ad Art curantly?
§ svhatantive tastimmy -- and the sxarple that we always like to 9 A, With the currenr -- the live Ad Art, I'm axecutive
10 use ir a plaintiff's peracpal injury world is, you know, an auto 10 vice-pregident.
11 aceident. The depcnent, such as yourself, teatified zhat the 11 Q. What iz your jcb degeripticn or the duty, what ig --
12 light is creen and then later on they read througa their | 12 what do you do from day to day?
13 deposition bramseript and they say, Mo, the light was red, that's |13 A, Mostly I handle the Dallas office.
14 a very substantive piace of informatiem that I can use to impeach | 14 Q. The Dallas filas?
15 your credibility ac the time of trial. 15 A.  The Dallas office, yes.
16 Do you understand that? 16 Q. Ckay. Dallas office. What type of projects in Dallas
by A, Yes, | 17 do you oversee?
18 2. I wamniymu to make -- I want to make sure you're Bt A.  Charmel letter jobs like Men's Warshouse, things of
19 comfortable during this depositicn process. So if you need o 19 Chat mature,
20 take a break, please just let me lmow. We can go ahead and go off | 20 Q. o you still -- do you oversee pylm sign comstruction?
21 the record for a few minutes. You can take a restroam break of 21 L. Mo
4 get a drink of water, or what have you. [ just ask if there iz a | 22 Q.  #ho does in the Dallas office?
2] question pending, please argwer my questios, and then we'll go | 2 E.  Fe build very little pylors in the Dallas office.
24 ahead and qo off the record. (Okay? 24 Q.  when ig the last time that you were imvolved in tha
5 A, Yo problem. Thank you. I conatruction of a pylon?

‘35
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DOUGLAS ALAN HEAD - 04/27/2017
Page 1C Page 12

1 A, Probably six ysars aco. 1 0. And there ig a aignature there, and it then saye,

2 Q. hat was the project? 2 ad art 8ign, Inc.?

2 A, Itwes -- I Zon't remesber the name of the project. It | 3 A, Yes.

1 was in Horth Carolina. That's what I remenfer. 4 Q. Do you imow whose signature that is?

§ Q. Aod vhen I say "a pylen sign,® I'm chvieusly referring | 5 A, Ipelieve ic's Richard Shade.

5 bo something like the M sigm in question. Do you undarstand | & Q. Who is Righard Shade?

7 what I'm sayisg? I 7 L Ye was somecte wno worked for the old, dead cempany.
3 A hell theplonazcraMMisacneof akind andwe | 8 Q. Ard what company i3 Enat?

3 dea't do anything Yike thar ever. L9 A, Well, Tlmew it as Ad Art Siges.
11 3. Chay. But the MM sign, which is the subject of this S| Q.  But at the rime of the buildirg pemmit, it says the
11 litigation that is -- we can refer to that ag a pylon sign: i3 | 11 comtractor is Ad Art, Inc.; 15 that correct?
11 that fair? 12 A, That's whac this dooument says. That's correct.
13 A, Yes, 13 Q. And what is the pame of tha company that you werk for
] Q. What is your understanding -- what is your 14 aow?
15 understanding about the allagatioms in this lawsnit? 15 A, Ad Art.
13 A. T have nn idea. 16 0. It's not officially callad Ad Art, Inc.?
17 Q. Do you krow what this lawsuit is about? i7 A You know, I dom't know how it's chartered.
15 B. I wnderstand that screcne who worksd for apother sign 18 Q.  ‘fould you have any reasen to disagres withoe i I
19 company didn't have 3 safety belt on and fe2l off the sign 19 represented to you that the current corperation of Ad Art is
10 That's what I hoow. 0 called Ad Art, Ine.?
i Q. Ckay, And do you kmow who built the sign? il MR. HINTER: Cbjection: Calls for spemiation.
32 A.  Yes, the previcus old desd Ad Art built the sigm. 2z 2. By ¥r. Krametbauex} You can answer.
23 Q. When did 2d Art build the sign? 2 A4, I have no idea.
kLl A.  I'mnot sure what year. i Q. Bub as we sit heve today, locking at a docwment
25 Q. If you could leok at Plaintiff's Exhibit Mumber 1. Do | 25 regarding the -- well, let's back wp.

Page 11 Page 13

1 you have that document in front of you? 1 S0 the permit on this Bxhibit 1, it's for a

2 A, Yes, Ido 2 gign-billboards; is that correct?

3 Q.  Have you sver geen this decument? 3 A, It says a billbcarg, yes.

1 A, Bo, [ nave act. & Q.  And ths contracter is listed as Ad Art, Inc.?

3 Q.  Clark County tuilding permit -- or exmuge me -- Clark 5 A.  Well, ic's listed as 3 Art, Inc, It's listed with two
§ County Building Department Permit. Do you ses that at the top? | & difEerent names hers.

7 A Yes, Ido. I 0.  What ig the other name?

g Q.  Youunderstand that -- that the MM aign that was built | § A, Ad At Sign, Ire.

3 onor around, ym Jmow, the 1993, 1994 era is in Clark Coumty. Do | & Q.  and that's -- that was written in by Richard Shade?
16 you understand that? 19 A Correct.
1 A, I belisve it was in Clark Comty, ves. 1L Q. Iz Richard -- whare ig Richard today?
12 Q.  Ckay. S5cas I lock at this buildicg permit, you sse 12 A, Ze's dead
13 the property owner ig M3 Grand Hctel, Ine.? 13 Q. When did Richard -- I'm sormy to hear that. When did
1 Ao tes | 14 Richard die?
15 Q. And do you see the comtractor is Ad Ark, Ine.? l15 A.  Approximaceiy -- I only heard through the grapevine

] A s | 16 maybe five years age, but I'm only quessing,
i7 Q. And the date this parmit was pulled or issued was 1 Q. 3o now let's take a look at Exhibit 2. This is -- it's
18 Cctcber of '337 18 called Schusler Research, and it's got my chicken scratzh at the
13 A, Yes. 13 top apd then --
20 Q.  Now, down at the bottam, there is a Licensad il A Uh-hun,
31 Contractors Declaraticn. To you see that? b3 Q. -- and there is Ad Art. Do you see that?
2 A.  Oaper-Builder Declaration, is that the ome -- ckay. 1 | 22 A Y,
31 ses that. Yas, 2 Q.  And then it lists the exacutive commithes?
4 Q. Yeah, it's shove that, 4 a. Dh-huh,
2 A, Yes, 25 A, Do you see about five names down it lists you?
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1 A, Yes. 1 4} Who did you deal with om the MGM side?

3 Q. It says you'r2 axecutive vice-president naticmal salss. | 2 A, Ncbedy.

3 s that still your pesition? | 3 0.  Excuse ze. On the MM sids, wio with MR &d yeu deal
4 A = [ 4 witk?

3 Q. But you really only handle the Dallag office; is that |5 A. I dealt weth nebody.

§ corvect? I ] Q. oo at Ad Art dealt with MR

7 A, Ths Dallas office handles mational zales. T A, Terry leng.

B Q.  Chay. 7air esough. Now, Zere it sayd that you have g c. 36 when this -- this prizteut Erom Ad Art's website

3 been with tha convpany for mora than 35 years; is that right? 3 talxed about your time or your advanceent in various capacities
1 A, No. It =ays ['ve besn in the sign industry 35 years. 13 at d Art, what is -- what was vour involvement with the M3 or
1 Q.  That's correct. I apolegize. I kind of jumped ahead | 11 the construction of the M3 pylon, other than with the salas?

12 of myself. He's advanced in various capacitiss at Ad Act, 12 A, I wasn't Imvolved in the sales nor the Installation of
13 includes a ten-year stratzh ag managsr of a Las Vegas divisicn 13 the M3 pylon.
14 during which time it installed the ¥, Treasure Ialand, Rio and | 4 Q.  Ckay, Who 2lse was involved in the installaticn, other
15 Yirage pylona. 15 than Gordon Xitts?
15 Do you sem =hat? 15 A. 1 dornet recail.

17 i Ttes 17 Q.  What was Gorden Xitio's job at Ad Art during this time?
13 Q.  So were you part of the cean that installed the M3 | 18 A,  Production mapager.

13 pylom? E 1y ¢.  Is Lynn Weaver still alive?

X A K. n A. I lmveno idea.

i Q. Who was? 1 Q. Do you know whers Lymn Weaver i3 now?

2 A, Gordon ¥itke, s A 1 bave no idea.

43 Q.  Can you spell his last came for me? Pk} Q.  Wheo did Lynn Weaver leave the campany?
% 4, KIT-I- 2 A [ have no idea.
5 Q.  Is Gordm gtill with Ad Art? 25 MR, HUNTZR: Cbjection bo fomm, vague and

Bage 15 [ Fage 17

1 A, No. He's dead, 1 arbiquous as to the ceriain company.

] G, Woen did Gordm Kltto die? 2 Q.  (3y Mr. Xeametbauer) What wes Lynn Weaver's job during
3 A.  Mayte -- I'm only speculating — elght years ago. 3 the ingtallation of the MM gylon?

1 Q.  All right. Who else was part of the Las Vecas division | 4 4. I'mnoot even sure she was working for us during the MR
3 when the MM eign was involved? § pylon, I she was a salespersmn that worked for us in Las Vegss

8 MR. HNTER: I'mgeing to chiect as vaque and & at cae time.

7 ambiguous. 7 Q. Ard what was Tarry Leng's positice during the

9 Q. {By ¥r. Frametbauer] You can answer. § installation of the MM pylen?

9 A. T was more involved with the sales end of it, I cant 9 A, I belisva he was president,
10 t2ll you & couple -- Lynn Weaver was @ salesperson ac the time, I | 10 Q.  And from 1993 to 1938, what ccopany were you working
11 think, and mavbe nct even then, Mavbe that was later. Tersy Long | 11 Zor or companies, rather?
12 came cown. I can't really tell you, You kmow, we had Iots of 12 A, I koew it as Ad Art,

13 installers. We had lots of that, but most of my cime I gpsnt with | 13 Q. So you were working for Ad Act in 13837
14 the salespecple, 14 A, Yes,
15 Q. Azd that would have had been Lyon Weaver and 15 Q.  Ard then in 1594, who were you working for?
16 Terry Long? | 16 A.  Bs far as I know, I have always worked for -- che old
17 A,  Yeah. There was cthers; but T can't remember ail of | 17 company, as far as I sver knew it, was callad A Art,
18 their names. 18 Q. Ckay. And then when did the old compary that you are
13 3. And when was -- when were you involvad in this? ILike, i 19 referring to beccme the new campany that you are referring to or
20 what years was this -- was this cccurring? | 20 the current compamy?
i K. I have no recollection of what years. I mean, it was 2L A. It never became --
22 all ancient history in the cld, dead company. I don't -- 2 ¥R, HUNTER: Obiect to form, vague and amoiguous.
23 Idon't - ' 23 Q. (By Mr, frametbauer] Go ahead.

b1 Q. Was it in the 13 -- ecarly 1990a? 24 A. It never became the rew comany. The old company died,
5 A. I already told you. I den't repember. 25 and I wasn't even with the old company when it died, so I dem't
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1 Jmow when it died. T Just kow that it did, |1 pylen,
2 3. So do you know when the old company died, in your own 2 A.  There wers 150 ewployess, my Juess.
3 wrds? | 3 0. Ard [ appreciats thab. I want to kmow the cnes working
4 A ¥ | 4 For the M pylen.
5 3. Where wers you when, quote, unguocte, the compasy diad? 5 A, Iden'trecall.
g A, [.5 Signs. 5 Q. Whera would that informacion be?
7 g, When 4id yeu lsave Ad Art ard work for U.5. Signa? 7 A. I have a0 idea. The company quide. The files were
8 A. I think -- if my memory serves ze right, possibly 3 thrown away. I fave no idea.
9 around 2000, 199, 3 Q. Who throw the files away?
i} Q.  About 1959 and 20007 | 10 A. I have no idea.
11 3 Someting like that, yes, Rl 0.  'Who would have that infommatien?
1 0. And how long were you ab U.5. Sigua? [ 12 A. Idon'timow. I wasn't wiih the coopany when ic
13 A, About two yesrs, T thiak. | 13 hagpened.
14 2. And where did you go after 0.5, Signa? L Q.  Howdo you kmow the files were threown sway?
15 A, [ started to work with the new Ad Art, 15 A, Becauss I have ashed and locked for -- foroid
18 Q. That was after the two-ysar stint at U.3, Signs? 16 documencs and could rever find Chem.
17 A.  Correct. i7 Q.  Who did you ask for old documwenta?
18 0. fo abeut 20027 18 A. T asked Terry for cld documents.
15 A. I have oo idea, 18 Q.  Amybody else?
20 2. 2003 20 A, Vg,
pil A. T have no ides on the time frame, Iwes cnly guessing. |21 Q.  What did Terry say when you msked him for old
22 9. I don't want you to guess. 22 decumerta?
3 A.  Ckay. Then ! have oo udea. ek A, He said ke had no idea where they wers at.
4 Q.  We can use your best estimaze. Do you have an estimate | 24 Q.  Apything elsel
35 when you jolned with Ad Art after leaving U.3. Signs? 25 A o
Page 19 Fage 71
1 A I tpink 2005, 1 Q.  What all documents were you locking for?
1 ] Ard what was your job for Ad Art in 200857 I 2 A, Afile on how a sign was tuilt. I don't recall the
3 4 Galesperson. | 3 name.
4 Q.  Have you ever had an cwmersiip interest in Ad Art? 4 Q. Do you koow the state that it was located in?
5 MR. HATER: Object to form, vacue as ko "M Art." | 5 A, I bslieve it was in Morth Carolina.
3 A, [ have -« T had no ownarshiz of the old, cead 3 Art. 6 0.  and how long ago did vou sake this request of Terry
T I have 3 stock owrarship in the new Ad Art, 7 regarding the old documents?
8 Q. (By Mr., Rrametbauer) Okay. So in ke Ad Art that | 8 A Years.
3 built the WM pylon back in the 13903, you did rot have an 1 3 Q More then five ymars ago?
10 ownership interest in that company; is that correct? 10 4, fes,
11 A.  That is corvect. 11 Q. Did you have any involvement in the Treasura Isiand
12 Q.  But you cowld have an ownership compeny - - excuse me. 12 pylen installatien?
13 Strike tmat, 13 A, No.
b} You do have owmezship in & coupany imown as Ad Axt | 14 Q.  Did you have any imolvement in the Rio pylon
15 today; is that correct? 15 ipstallatiom?
1 A, Corract. 18 A, No.
by ¢, Other than the pecple that we have listed, 17 Q. Did you have any involvement in the Mirage pylm
18 Gordon Kitto, Lyrn Weaver and Terry Long, who else, to the best of | 18 installation?
19 your knowiedge, wag inwolved in the installation of the MR pylem? | 135 A No.
20 A. T domet reall, 20 Q. ¥ho was involved with the Treasure Island pylon
i Q.  Any other nares of pecple working at Ad Art at the | 21 installaticn?
1 time? {22 A, Cordon Kitto.
1 A, 1don't kmow. Working for Ad At at the time, the old j 23 Q. W elie?
M dead M Art? l# A I don't know.
il Q.  Working for Ad Art during tha installation of tha M 25 ¢.  Who vas iovolved in the Rio pylon installation?
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1 4.  Gordon #icto. I 1 MR. HEWTER: Objection: Oalls for speculation.

2 Q. Ambocy else? iz A, Tampet -- I wasn't an osner, so I'm pot positive.

3 A Iden'timow, |[ 3 always saw himas a man of authority.

i Q. Who was involved in the Mirage pylen installatiom? i 4 2. (By ¥Mr. Rrametbauer)., But when you were working at

5 P CGordon fitto. ‘ 5 A Arr ab the tige of the M3 sign construction, you understood
5 2. Anybody else? § that Terry Long was an owner of that ccapamy?

T A Ldm't koow, 7 A, T understood that Terry was president.

3 Q. As far as the M pylen i3 concerned, ware thare any ] Q. Oxay. And who currently cwes Ad Ark, Inc.?

9 subcontractcrs hired by Ad Ark? | 8 A, T don't ‘mow who cwns --

10 A, I pave no idea. |10 WR. HIRTER: Cbjact to form, vague and arbigueus
11 Q. ‘Where were the materials purchased frem? | 11 as ko Ad Art.

12 A, T have o idsa. I 12 Q. (3y Mr, Zramethauer] I3 Terzy Lemg a current owner of
i Q. 2o you Jmow Lf tha Alucobond or any material from A i 13 3 Art, Ine.?

14 was purchased by Ad Art for the constructien of the aigm? 14 A, Terry is a current owmer of the Ad Art that sxists mow,
i3 A. I rave no idea, 15 Q. 30 that's a yea?

15 Q. Whaers would that information be? | 16 A, Idm't doow if it's M Art, Inc, So I'm telling you
17 A, Ther, Iwould kave no idea. Those records don't -- a3 | 17 be's an owner of the -- part owaer of the Ad Art now, 2

18 far as I ‘mow, don't exdst, 18 scockholder.
13 Q. Who would be the best persem to faik to sbout getting 19 . Ia ¥r. Lou Papais still alive?

20 those records? 20 A, Yes,

21 A. Ihaveno idea. I don't sven kmow iE they axdst. 1 Q.  #here ia ¥r. Papais, Lou Papals?
2 2. Would -- would it be Terry Leng? 22 A, The last time T heand, he was in the hospital.

1 4. T angvered it ones, 2 Q. Do you kmow what atate he lives in?
bl Q. Well, I'm asking you. Weo would be -- P! A, California.
5 A T have ro idea, |25 Q. When was the last tize that you talked to him?
Page 23 | Pags 25

1 Q. -~ the person at Ad Art to talk to about getiing the 1 A, (hristmastime last year,

2 dociments regarding pecple invoived with the M3 gylon i Q. Do you have any contact information?

3 installation? 3 3 Ne, I doast.

4 A.  The old Ad At -- 4 @ How about Jonn Papais?

5 MR, HINTRR: Chjection; Vagus and ambiquous as oo | 5 A4 Joha Pagals?

& "Ad Art." | 8 3. TIs e still alive?

T A, The old, dead A4 Art doesn't exist, and I have o idea 1 A, He's deceased,

8 where any records from the cla, dead Ad Art are, B Q. When did John Papais pass away?

3 Q. (By ¥r. Rrapstbaver] Lo you imow anything sbout the 3 A, 1donee recall the year, bub it was at least 20 years
10 liguidation of Ad Art, Imc.? 10 am.
11 A, ¥o. 1 Q. Eow about Dan 0...
12 Q. Do you kmew amything abeut the scquisition or purchase | 12 A.  Dan O'lagry, he passed away.
13 of M Art's assets? 113 Q.  CO'Leary. I can't read my own hardwriting.
4 A No 14 Is Dan O'Leary still alive?

15 Q. ho was the owner of Ad Art, Inc., when the MM pylm |1 A, Mo. He passed away alsc.
16 wag constructed? 15 Q. When did ha pass away?

17 A. 1 believe it wes Lou Pagais, Dan O'leary, Jomn Papais 7 A, I'mouessing maybe six or sever years ago.
18 and Terry long. 18 2. Aad Terry Lemg is atill alive, correct?
19 0. I apologize because the phome kind of cut out there, 13 A, Correct.
20 but you listed, I think, four pames. Can you give e it onemoxe | 10 Q. Aay other owners that you knew about at the time of the
21 time: Do your best n spelling their last name for ze, ] 21 MM sign comstruction?
22 4, Lou Papais, P-A-P-A-1-5; Johm Papals, sare spelling; 22 A N,
23 Dan O'leary, 0-L-2-A-R-Y; and Terry long. bi Q. I apologize, but we earlier talked about

2| Q. To the best of your knowledge, Terry Long was an owner | 24 Richard Ghade, What was his positicn with the campany in 19337
25 of the -- the Ad Art whe had built the M3 pylen? 28 A, As I recall, he did electrondcs, and ab time he would
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1 do rurming for us to pick items w. 1 up wsing a different -- a pame that we were famdiiisr with.
2 Q. Wag te ap electrician? - z Q. Wao i3 "wer?
3 A X 3 A, e, Terry long, Bob Rlerejezyk, Dave Zsajian,
i Q.  Did he have amy professicral licensura? 4 Zori Velkeum, Jaremy Anderson, 3rian Commally,
5 & I have o idea. 5 3.  How zary of the people that you just named yere
3 Q. Did you know Rlchard Shade back in 13337 5 asgeciated with the, quote, unquote, dead Ad Art?
7 A, Yes. ? &, Thrse, mayba four
3 Q. Tid you and Richard work together? ‘ 3 g.  Which cmee?
3 A, Ves. | 3 A, Hcb ¥erejczyk. Den't 3sk me to spell it bersuse I
1 Q. Where were you working in 13337 Liks, whers was your 19 still can't, Jeremy --
11 office? u Q. I have got it here cm Exhibit 2.
12 B, We movad tiwee diffsrenc times. I don't recall the 12 A, Jerzmy Arderscn --
13 comtact addrsss, 13 Q.  Goahesd. Jeremy Ardsrsee, Bob Klezejozy?
14 Q. S0 of tha three places that you had moved to or frem, 14 A, That's about it.
15 wkare wers they? | 13 Q.  TFow about Terzy Leng?
16 A. Icdon't rmcall the aciresses. | 15 A, %ell, Terry losg, y=s.
1 Q. Do you have -- were they in Las Vegas? |12 2. And you, corzeer?
18 A, fes, | i8 A Comect,
13 Q. Were all “hres in lLag Vegas? 13 2. Waat about Duane Coatento?
2) A, dem i A, I opelieve hie worksd as a salesmen, yes.
41 Qv 8¢ -- juat giva me the span of years. You moved three 21 Q. At the oid Ad Art and the new Ad Art?
i times in Lag Vegas in 1393 or was this ovar a period of time? 2 A, He worked at the old comgany and tha new conpany,
23 4,  The pericd of time that I uas in Las Vegas, 2} coreect.
2 Q.  So starting in 1992, was the office in Las Vegas? 24 2. Okay. ow about Caca Long?
25 B, Yes. 5 B.  Dans Long, as far as I can recall, pever worked at the
T -“Page 270 Page 29
1 2. And them it moved -- when was the first time that you 1 oid company.
2 moved? 2 2.  Wnat about David Esajian?
k| A, I have no ides on the dites. 3 A, Idm't laow,
i Q. S while you wers at Ad Azt in the 1330s, you movad 4 4. But he currently works at Ad Art now?
3 three times in Las Vegas? 5 A, He works aC the new company, yes.
5 A, Corpset, § Q. &nd yon den't know if e worked at the quote, unquote,
7 Q. Ard then you left Ad Art in about 1599 or 2000 to work 7 old compary?
3 at 0.9, Bigns? 3 A, Yo, I donot.
3 A, As an estimats, yes. 3 Q.  How about Brian Cormelly, did he work for both?
10 Q. Acd whexe is 0.3, Signs located? 1 A. I lave no idea if Brian worked Eor botk.
1% R, Houston, Texas. 11 Q. Ckay. Inhis bio it says, 3rian 15 a graduzte of
12 Q.  And se you worked cut of Houston, Texas, for U.8. 12 Rutgers University, with a deqree in business, marketirg and has
13 until about 2005 when you -- 13 been with Ad Art since 1397,
14 A, T worksd aut of Denton -- 14 A, Idide't have amything to do with the bio, so I have no
15 Q.  -- starting working for Ad Art, Inc.? 15 idea if that's accurste, truthful or anything about it,
13 &, T worked out of Dentcn, Texas. i5 Q.  Okay. Fair encugh., How about Lori Volheim?
17 g. Por U.3. Signs? 17 A. I don't inow if sha worked For the cid Ad Art.
13 a. Yas, 13 Q. To you imew Lori?
13 G, Ard then about 2005, did you move from Denton, Texas, 13 A, Yes, Ido
20 ‘to where ywu're at now or what happened? 20 Q.  Wnat does lori do for the company now?
2 . You lmow, Idom't recall exactly. I beliewe the fimst |21 A, She's a salasparscn,
22 office I worked with the rew 2d Art was in Flower Mound, Texas. 2 Q.  rhat about Kurt Mueller?
23 Q. Now, why do you say the "new 3 Art." What do you mean | 21 A, Huort meller is a project marager.
24 by that? | 24 Q.  And was he with the old Ad Art ard the new Ad Art?
% &, The old compeny wes dead for years, and we started it l 25 A. Idon't recall him at the old Ad Art.
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1 Q. Bxcuse me? What did you say? ¥ B, Rs far as I can recall, he was based out of Fresno and
F) A. T do't recall himat the old Ad Art, 2 had nothing &b do with the job.

] Q. Okay, How about Jack Dubois, D-C-3-0-1-87 3 " what about Duane Centento?

4 A Yes, 4 A, Duare Tortento, as I recall, was 3 salesman out of

5 Q. Wag 2@ at the cld Ad Art? 5 Los Ameles,

8 A, Hawas at the old company. 5 . Somo?

1 9. And new ka's with tha new company? 7 A lo.

;] A, Yo, he 1s. :] g,  Jeremy Acderson?

9 Q. How about Michasl Timineri? 3 A, Jeremy Anderscn, T don'h even racail him working for

10 A, What iz the quasticn? 13 the old company.
11 Q2. a3 he with the old Ad Art? n Q.  Jack Dubois?
12 a e 12 A Iread toiqoewhat the question is.

13 Q. 3ut he's with tie new A Act? 13 Q. Did he aver have ary involvement, to your knowledgs, in
14 A ¥ | 14 the irstallation of the M pylom?
15 Q. Michael 13 not with the current M Art? | 15 A Mo
15 A, He's gt with the new company. Mo, he is rot. 118 Q. How do you imow that?
17 Q. Did Michsel Leave? 1 A. He's an arkist,
14 A, I'm not sure of the bime frame. 18 Q. Excuse me?
13 Q. But he did work at Ad Art for scme fime? pl:} A, He's an artist based out of Stockton, Califomnia.
b A, He did work for Ad Art at one time, | 20 Q. 8o what does Jack do?
it Q. Do ym lmow why he laft? | pik A He's anarkist.
2 A, I believe it wes for a better positios. 2 Q. %o would he drew the shetches for the siqne? What doas
73 ¢, When you left, quote, urquote, Ad Aot or the dead | B he do?
24 A Art in roughly -- and it's an approximation -- 1989 or 2004, ‘ 24 i.  He's a desigmer,
25 arcund that time, when you left A Art, why did you leave Ad Art? | 25 Q. Do you kmow if he designed the MM sign?
Bage 31 o Paga 33

1 4. Becanse I didn't like the sublic company. 1 A, No, Idonct.

2 §.  And when you left in 1399 or 2000 or around that 2 2. Do you krow who designed the MR sign?

3 time -- I know it's an approximation -- were you of the ] 4. No, I do met.

4 understanding that the campany that you wers working for was 4 g.  #ho else was the designer for Ad Art during the time of
§ called Ad Art7 § tha comstruction cf the MM pylon?

[ A. I believe the company I worked for was callad £ L Thers was protably 15 desicrars.

7 Display Techralogies. 1 . Do you know who would have been assigoed the M@ pylen
a Q.  When did that core to be? When did you firat 8 qcb out of Lag Vecas?

§ understard that you were working for Display Technologies? ) A. I have no idea,
i0 A, When they bought the old, dead 2d Art. 10 Q. Do ym 'mow anything about Ad Art's assets purchased oy
11 Q.  And when was Ehat? 11 Fasco?
12 R, 1'm oot sure of the year. ; 2 A, Mo, I donot.
13 ¢.  Is it fair esough to say that was pricr to you leaving | 13 §.  You understand that Nasco and Ad Art have offices right
14 in 1599 or 20007 14 next to me another in Stockton?
15 A, It'a fair enough o say that it was prior to my 15 A. I understand that we lease property from Masco.
15 leavirg, amd I'm oot sure of the year. 15 Q. So it's your understanding that in Stockton, the
17 Q. Are you familiar with a company by the nape of Nasco 17 building that Ad Art wozks cut of om Ad Art Read ls owoed by Rasco
18 3lectric Sign Compamy, LIC? 13 but leased by AQ Art?
29 A. I am familiac with the corpany called Nasco, 13 A,  Leased or rented, corrsct.
b} 4. Ddd you ever work for that company? 2 Q. And it's located cn M Art Road in Stockten,
21 4. No. | 21 Califomia?
22 2. Do you know -- I Jmow we had listed Gerden Xitks, 22 A.  Correct.
2] Lyno Weaver, Terry Leng in relation to the installation of tha M3 23 Q. Ard Nasco is also on Ad Art Road in Stockbon,
24 pylon in Las Vegas, but do you know if Beb Xierejozyk, if he had 24 California?
25 any involvement with the M3 pylen sign? 25 A, Tden't kmow cheir orincipal address, but the office
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1 that I koow of is on Ad At Read, ves. i &  Ionly kow --

2 3. Do you have any infonmaticn about who Nes -- excuse ze. | 2 Q. You can go afead and amawer the question.

1 Strike that. | 3 A I omy kuow it's two pleces of aluminum with nither

4 Do you ave any informatiom a3 to who was the 4 ltetwsen tham., That's it.

5 inscrance carrier for Ad Arf st tha bime of the MM ‘5 3. Do you kmow who or if anyboedy at Ad Azt ordersd

§ comstructiom -- pylon constructiaon? ’ § alucchend for use on the M3 zylem?

? A, Mo idea 4, T have 1o idea.

8 C.  Duzing the tize of the MM pylon canstxueticn, where 8 MR, HONTER: (biject to fomm.

9 would the decurents pertaining fo the cemstruction of the M 9 B, T have 10 idea.

0 pylem be kept? [ 10 Q. By ¥r. Framethauer) Is i: fair to say that Gordon
1 A Steokton, [ 11 Ritto wuld kave that informatien?

12 §. S0 aven though the construction was taking place in 12 A, Idon't know if Gordon Kitto has the informatiom,

11 las Vegas, Nevada, the dooments regarding that constmuction were | 13 Q. Would anybody else, other than Gordon, have that
14 kept in Skocktor? | 14 inforsatien?

1 A, Ths sign was ot constructad in las Vegas, as far as -- I 15 R, Bot to my knowledge.

6 G.  The sign was installed in lLas Vegas? 18 3. Do you imow if Ad Art has purchased alucshond frem
17 A, Correct. 117 either 33 Composites or amy other carpany since you bave been with
bt G.  Whare was it conatructed? | 18 the old 2d Axt or the new Ad Art?
9 &, s far as T cap recatl, Stockiom, Califopmmia, 13 A. I haye oo ides,
0 C.  And were you involved in that constructicn or that 20 Q. Who at Ad Act mow i responsible for purchasing tha
21 building grocess in Stocktan? 21 materials for use on signs?
22 A, Mo 22 A, e do net rencfacture sigms now.
bk} ¢. Lo you have any information as to how it was I Q. hen A Art did manufscture signs, who was ip charge of
34 constructed? Was it comstructad in chases and shipped cut to 34 ordering the materials for those signs?
15 Las Vegas or did they build the waols thing in Steckbon and then | 25 A 0n the old, dead company --
o Page 35 Page 37

1 shipped it cut to Las Vegas? I maam, tow did that process work, 1 MR. HUNTER: Cbject, fomm.

¢ if you mow? 2 A.  Op the old, dead company, I believe it was

3 A, T have no ides, 3 Cordon ¥itta,

4 Q. Who would Jmow? | 4 Q.  (By Mr. Frametbauer) Amybody else?

5 A.  Cordon Ritto. 5 A.  Nor that I can recall

] Q. Amybody slae? g {Interfarence 1n procesdings.

7 A. I don't have knowledge of who alse would kaow, 7 {Recess taken from 3:06 te 3:15.)

] Q.  How mamy pecple ware working out of the Stockten § BY MB. KRAMETBAUER:

3 factory or plant that was building the M pylen in Stockten? g Q.  Now, Mr, Emad, I realize that you don't have much of a
10 A, Propaply 200, 10 recollaction of the construction of the M sign in the 13305, but
ih §. Who at that bime in bwildirg the ¥ pylon in Stockton |11 you do -- you do have a recollection that the company you vers
12 would have been responsible for acquiring the materials for that 12 working for at the time did build and install the MGM pylon in
13 build? 13 Las Vegas, correct?

14 A, 1 pelisve Cordon Hitoo, 14 4. The cld compeny puilc and installed the W4 pylon,

15 Q.  Are you familiar with a material by the name of 15 that's correct.

16 alucohond? 16 Q.  ¥ow, do you ‘mow if the conpany that you're referring
17 . I'mawars of the material called aluecohond. 17 to &id any revisicns to that pylem or was their job just to

18 Q. Do you know whe marufactuzes alwccbond? |13 comstruct it and install it?

19 A. 1 have no idea. 15 A, Tony knowledge, all we did is construct it and install
20 Q. What do yon mow abeut aluechond? 0 i
1 ¥4, SILVERMAN: Objection. This is Eddy 2 Q.  Yeu don't have amy mowledge of Ad Art perfomirg
22 Silverman, counsel for 3A. T just abject oo che extent that it 22 revisions or updatea to the M3 pylon while you were with the
23 calls for speculatiom. | 23 conpany?

1 Q.  (By Mz, Rrametbaver] I'm asking for your perscnal Pa A Yo, none.
5 5 Q. Do you have any knewledge aheut reviaicns dome to tha

knowledge about tha alucchond. |
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Page 38 |
WM pylon after it vas comstructed by Ad Art back in the 13303 and

Page 40
1 Ad Art in the 19903, who was responsiblas for constructing and

2 installaed? 2 installing the M pylon, did that cespany censtruct gigne?

3 B, Well, T koew when we -- the old Ad A=t did the sim, it | 3 A Yes.

4 rad a cube on it, and row it does wot. T have no idea whe did the ! 4 0. Axd Ylmow -- I know y'all imow cr remember a whole lot
5 revision. I just lwmow that 1t no longsr has a oute, | 3 sbout the copstruction of tha MM sign, but basieally, it was -
& Q. Aoy other revisions that you are gware of? | 5 it was constracted ar tuilt in Stockton ard brought ko Las Vegas
1 A, ot that I am aware of 7 ard installed; is that correct?

3 3. But you did understard when it was originally 3 A, 1 believe that is corract.

3 censtructed ard installsd by Ad Art, it had a cube ab the top, and | 3 % Ard do you kmow if Ad Art did the installazien or if
10 it mo lerger hag a cube. 30 just by virtue of the cube curramtly | 1) they aired anothar company to do the installation?

11 “eing gere, aomshody revised it, righti |11 A, T den't know sho cid the installaficn, if we hirsd

12 A T lowow that the old company had a cube on i, ard the | 12 arybedy o assist, but I xoow that Ad Art hed installers thers,
13 cube dees not axist now, 13 the old & Art,

14 Q. And you don't ‘mow the pame of the coppany that teok | 14 g.  Okay, The old 2d At had installers in las Veges
13 the cube off? 15 durirg the time of the installation of the ¥ pylon was
16 A Mo, I domet. 15 occourring; is that corzect?

17 @.  Did you wozk for any otler sign coopaniss that did work | 17 3. Corrsct

18 cn the M3 pylen in lag Vegas, Wevada? 13 Q. W else -- or #ho would have been an installer that
13 A. I worked for the old company. 15 Ad Art would have hired back in the -- in the 13209 when you

0 (.  Cther tham that -- T quesa what I'm saying is: You 20 worked for -- for them in Las Vegas?

21 worked also for U.8. Siges, correct? 21 &, I have ro idea.

2 A, That's correct. 2 0. Who alse would they reach oub to or contract with to
23 ¢. Did U.5. Signs do anything with the ¥ pylon in 2] install signs, such as the WM pylem?

4 Las Vegas, Nevada? 2 A&, I have no ides.

25 L o 2 Q. Were there othay comanies in las Vegas or -- that

Page 39 Fage 41

1 Q.  Ckay, Befcrs you joined Ad Art, the company that L would ceme to Las Vegas to assist in the installation of the pylon
1 you're referring to as the dead ccapary, who wese you working for? | 2 signs at either the M, the Mirage, the Rio, any of those?

3 A, The United States Army. 3 A& [ have o idea,

H 0. Okay. So is it fair to say that your experience in the | ¢ Q.  Did Ad Att at the time that M pylon was being

5 sign buildirg or signage industry is limited to your time at 5 comstructed, did it do its own Eabrication?

5 Ad Art, the clder company; U.3. Signs; and now Ad Art, as it 8 3. The old company did its own fabrication.

7 curzently exists? ) Q. 5o the old company would have fabricated the old M

3 A, My histary, T hava -- tha old, dead company T workad § oylen; is that corzeck?

3 for, T was in sa'es and nor oo much mamufacturing, Wit T koow § A, As far as I koW, ves.
11 basics. 10 Q.  I'm just zeading through my notes. Bear with ze for a
il U.5. Signg dees mot tuild signs, and T learmed how | 11 few minutes.
12 to uy signs, 13 Have you ever dome business or purchased items
13 Ard the new comeany, wnich doss not tuild signs, 13 from 3A Composites?
14 we buy signs, and -- sc the building ism't am dssue bers, 14 & Mt thar T know of,
15 Q. G0 at tha ourrent Ad Art, you dmit -- you dem't tuild | 15 Q. 8o just by revieving these records -- I just want to
15 signs? You buy them? 1§ xnow if you have any understanding as to this -- the permit to
7 A, That is corrsct. 17 build the sign, which is Plaintiff's Zxhibit 1, was issusd in
i3 §. Bxplain to ze how that works. | 1§ October of '93. Do you see that?
13 A, We have wiplssals coptractors who build signs for our .E 13 a. [ don't know if this was the sign. I just know that
20 custorers, After we desion them, %e get permits for them, We | 20 tils was the M, and it was a billboard. That's all i knew
21 have hired installers to install them, and then we build them. 1 becausa I'm reading it, and thac's what it says.
¥l Q. Are you familiar with 3 company called Display A, 2 Q.  And then we have a -- I'1l just represent to you that
21 Inc.? 13 wa hava a garchase order from JA for alucchend for use cn the MR
14 A, No, 24 sign in las Vegas that came in about 1998. Do you understand why
25 Q.  Back when you worked for the company you refer toas | 25 thers would be a delay or why there is a permit in '93 but an

]
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Page 42 Pags 44

L order for alucchond in '287 i A, Fo, I'momct,

2 A, The permit that showed -- 2 Q. If we can tzke 2 quick five minutes, I'll leck through
3 MR, HINTRR: Cbjaction: Calls for spemlaticn. 3 my motes, It1l likely not have any more questiona, Okay,

i A, The cermit that you showed me is for foundatien ealy. i M. Head?

& The sign itself, I have o idea who ovdersd -- or how it was [ = A, Mo problsm, I'm here.

§ bgilt, I wasn't involved, 3 MR, VRAVETERUER: a1 right. I'11 be night back.
1 Q. (3y Mr. Frametbauer] In your -- just based upen your ? {Recass taken from 3:27 ©o 3:23.)

8 mowledge of how taese signs are built in your werk hdistery with :} IR, MRAETEATER: I chink I'm gll dome. T dom't
§ this carpany, A Are, how leng does it typically take for a sign, 3 have any further questions.

0 such as the MM pylen, to be construckad and then installed? 1 MR. HUWTER: This is Tim Huncer, and we'il read
i1 a4, Tbowuld take .- 11 and giom, It -can be sent directly tome.

12 ¥R, HINTRR: Cbjectiom: Vague, ambiguovs, c3lls i2 MR, KRAETEAER: 2ddy, did you have any

13 for speculaticn. | 13 muestions?

4 A, Ddm't koow how long this sign took the old company to | 14 MR, STLVERMAN: Mo questicms, and Idon't needa
15 build bue -- 15 transcriph, Thank you.

b ¢ {By ¥r. Krapetbauer! [Co you have an estimate? 16 iend of procesdings at 3:25 p.m.}

7 A, Horcks. n

gt | §. Do you koow Lf MR or the client vas hapoy with the 13

13 product that Ad Art had -- had built for them? 13
2 A, T know they paid us. That's il T loow, 0
L §.  Did they ever make amy complaints to Ad Art regarding 2
12 the sign? 2

2 &, Mot that I am awaras of, b

L Q.  Weo would De aware of that, if those coaplaints were 24

i5 ever made? 2

Page 43 Sage 45

1 A That woeuld be Terry Lorg. 1 CHANCES AND SIGNATURE

2 Q. Are you familiar with a company called Micon Lighting & | ¢ WTTNESS NAME: DBTE OF DEPOSITION: ____
1 signs? | 3 racE LINE CHANGE REASON

i A.  The nare is familiar, 4

5 Q. ‘What -- wiy is it familiar? 5

6 A, They were a sign conpany based in las Vegas. §

7 Q. Did you ever work om projects with Micom Lighting & 7 =
8 Sign while you were in las Vegas? &

5 A, Ko, never did. 4
0 Q. At any time have you ever worked with or consulted with | 10

11 or been on a profect with Micom Lighting & Sign? 11

12 B, %o 12
13 0.  Fow sbout Interstate Electriz Compary, do you know that | 13
1 company? x4 - —
15 A, I'm familiar with the nave, A5
16 Q. Wy is that? 1§

17 A.  Because I have heard the rame Inrerstate Electric, 7
13 Q. Eave you ever worked with or consulted with, ordersd 2
13 from, third partied or subcontracted with Interastate Blectric 12
20 Coopany? e
21 A, T have not personally, ne, 2=
b4 Q.  Has amybody at Ad Act? 2
2 A. 1 have ro idea. 23
%4 Q.  Are you familiar with a company by the name of Laman, 24
5 L-A-M-A-7 s -
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1 I, DOUGLAS ALME HEAD, hawe vead the foregoing depositisn and
2 heraby affix my sigeature that same 1§ true and correct, sxcépt as

3 noted abava.

v A

DOUGLAS ALAN HEAD

4 Td3 3TAIE OF
10 COUNTY 0P

13 Sefoze me, ¢ ot this day

12 persomally appeared DOUGLAS ALAN HEAD, xnown tc me {oz proved to

13 me under oath or through ) {deacription of

14 identity card or ctber document] t the perscn #hcse name is
15 agubscribed o che fsrsgoing instrumant and ackrewledged to me that
16 they exacuted the same for the purpeses and consideration chersin

17 exprasged.

15 Givan under ny hand and seal of office thusz

13 day of —

0

it

23 NOTARY SUBLIC TH AND SOR THE
21 STATE 07 TEXAS

a

I
i

Page 47

ATATE OF TEXAS )

2 COONTY OF DALLAS ]

3 T, JUWE PATE, Certified Shorchand Reporter, in and Sor the

4 3State of Texas, do hersby certify that che foregoing depositicn of
5 DODUGLAS ALAN HERD, was taken hefcrs we ar the time and place

6 therain sat forth, at which time the witness waa put undar oath oy
T me:

8 That the testizony of the witness and all made at the tame of

§ che examinalion werd recorded stenographically by me, wers

10 chexeafter trasscribed under my direction and aupervision and that

11 the foregoing iz a trus eecord of same,
12 I further certify that I am neither counsel for nor xelated
13 &6 any party to saif action, nor in any way intersstad in the

14 oubcems theresof.

15 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, i have subscribed ay name this
15 15bh day of May, 2017,

L7

* (“d_p.‘_.{_“ ety

18

13 JUNE PATE, Texas CSR 3183

Bxpiration Date: 12-31-18
0 LITIGATION SERVICES

3770 dAoward Fughes Parkway
il 3uite 300

Las Vegas, Nevada 83169
12 §00-330-1L12
13
pL
25
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AGREEMENT
THIS ACHLBW nisdle this ﬁ day :;t‘ é@ L, 2003 between NASCO
BLBCTRIC IGN €O, LLC {"NASC,O“) and AD ART, INC, ("AD ART"i, with refaraoe to
tha fbllovm:g fuca '
RECITATY -
1. NASTO gwas the nams “AD ART" which has ebsived :mﬁurnrm'wordmukfawcc
mark/izads name status from the appmyﬂnra entitiss of the United States Govarmmont.
%, NASCO ons theright to tho islcphané mumbee (205) 5310860,
3. NASCO gwns o Infernat wols addvass, gryrer.adartaee poyt
4. NASCO owrs the huilding at 3180 N, A4 Ast Rand, Stackton, Califormta $5213,
5, NASCD holda California C-43 Cantraotors licenss ntmber 752396 vindac the dy of Ad
Art Blaaim Sign Com;:w
6. AD ARTHs xnew soqpecnion Somed by fireser 68 od omplayees of Ad Ant
Blestronts Sl Cosgoration, Which was ok to aad beeacn  ivisio of EAMAN, ING. (aer
Display Tcehnoidgyhmj s publis compazy in 1998, fater to bs Hauiduted in 5001, I the
- prooess of the liquidation of Ad At lettonis 8lgn Coppotation, NAS COpﬂmhascd the
fracamarik AD ART, the talaphpno numb«:: gl thea Iteraat wel atldrm AD ART desiren 1o
oAy on ‘rl;zc tridition and anity of'fho Ad Art narye, & compaty In e sign bishess for more
than 40 yadrs, .
7. NASCO desiren to ster into this Agroemant to sell the foademarkiword mard/secvice
. ?narkf‘tmdn name, pse of the fclnpm mumbar and Intarnel wek atdess to AD ART, |

Page | of9 . 9172005 11 17AM
79" ._.,..,...-......._......:.....'......'..,......«,....u-.n:u-' - i ADOUD-I“'T
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st 8. 2000 GO, , R TR R N

8, NASCO bad a fong i with the farmer AD ART, mamufhohuring praduct Sou tha
oompary, and donivos to promilyate o alImﬂ&r redationdtp with the newly mﬁ:rmuci ergnnlzation.
. AGRERMANT
R M The prav[sion& of the wcimls abovs uh;a.ll bopurt of thls Agreament fop
Dlrposay of imexpm (s, explunstion, irrtenﬁm:. astd are Inoarporaied oy cm
10. Term. 'lhla Agrcoment &hal yon for & baon ofm{m} Years commavioing April 1, 2003
AD ART ahall mako ths payments to NASCO s sed forth in paraponpk 12, Yulow,
11. Sals. Upon execulion of ibis Agreement, NASCO will bemuafsr to AD ART hs
following: - l
8. Thelrdemarkcivord n-t‘nﬂv'smica mark/trnce nams “Ad Act';
b The:xightto o tedegbononzber 209-53 1-0860; and

0. Tho Intornst wsb adcress, waw.adariges.com,

. NASCO shsll recoivs oty inlatest in the Rasats doseribad i subparageiphs ., b,
asd o, mbove, nt coliatoral for AD ART's shligations under i Agtopmont. The partiss Wwill,
within ter (10) days of axsoytion of this Agradment; sxeouts doopmentntion (Bﬂl of safe,
asslgnmantﬂota, seoutity agreammeit, UCC-1 aud ather appmpriaw dcmmmlom to tronafer

the akovs to AD ARTmaﬁu‘.a,ﬁr{agﬁur NASCO tho nbove sa muﬂty for payment to NASCO gs
requited by this Agreement,

;2, Pwmeﬁf’:
4 ADARTwill pay to NASCO sl of AD ART"s zrgsp rosipts for

tet yaacs.

Pagezoty . _ SIHIR003 LT AV
‘ '  AD000142

314




el 8 200 LI o180 P 3

by, Payment ;afmll be made quartarly witl the qtm&a;: commenging Assl 1, 3003,
Payment shall bs mads wihin thinty (30) days n.ﬂnt.‘tha end of tha c.llua:*.a;‘
¢. CGroms rccefpta shall e deflned 13 ansh receipte less aslog tax, Obligation to pay
ghall pitash vpoy racsfnt by AD ART ef moudes (hot bogking 2£salos o7 submtial u“invaiccs)
for saled mada,

- AD ART 5hall lesep good m:ui ncn;ﬁrhia boaks of acéolmt, An xﬁ#olmting ahall ke
rendeced with the quarterly payments h:ciicam'ng tha indivinﬁ_a] fransaetions 4nd amounty, Upon
reasopabla notica NASCO may Ingpeet the books md records of AD ART saffcient to aseartal

— aa.lw-hismr@ea, Invoias hlvieries aad pollaction Reterdas, -
& TENngl Al no longer ow*;w NASCO and/or famio longerthe principal opering
+ petsun of NASCO, the payment mrder thi agroament after six, yonra wil! ha— i)
R e .
13, Use of Promfses, As part of this Agrecinait AD ART shail hw-:-ﬂur'gm fo use, witheyt
nddxhomd ret, %Wmmm,pdl | 12RQ3 for ifs ptiposes, the offices un fha 'ldp flovr, oh
t&a west aide of 3180 N. Ad At Road, Staskton, CA 95215

14, Qann.mw;ﬂm _ .

& AD ART bhas uppiled for a corporation C-45 Coutractors Linenge. Terry Long,
CBO/Chairmen of AD ART, is 4 quelified KMD on hnotivs status, Dus t¢ eortious backlag of
tho Siate Conisagtory Loenss Board dua to Assal corsttahats of. s‘a& Stats Governmant, there ura
delaye in Ihe proosdural procoys of liaaasmg t!w applleation of AD ART, appHostion no. 200 201

224 07. NASCO, tarough itg mhs:dimf AD AR.T BIECRRIC SIGN (0., which bolda a
Californla C.45 Cmmtracr{ol:’a Hiena, will be awoontw:bng eutlty for all sign salog mqumng i
Cal:fornia cantrnutcu o licetise pendiug the granting ofs C-43 iiaamo to AD ART, -

Pagadof9 : SAR003 1107 AM
" ADOC0143
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b, AD AR agrecato indajoniy axd Hold NASCO Livmless for oy Nabilitins
fncurad by NASCO ;*aiwhcd to ths mapfters get orth in 14 (a) shove, AD ART .g_iw to dofand
nny olais, Inoluding respoustbility for conts and atforneyy fees. i
15, Prefereed Simn 8 uppler I
7. NASCD mpgnfactuces and will *:n:;am"nu& to mdntfactare alghy of the type fo b
sold by AD ART, AD ART ngrea_; te mlﬁqu:}SCO asaprafaad alan Applier of AD ART,
Snibject to the “buy out” provielen set forth In subparkgraph 0. bolow, a3 “preferred sign
stipphar”, it 5 Inteirded that AD ART Intends and will 040 its best offirts, eubfact to fha
Tialtations set focth balow, to contrnot wWith and huvc-NASCO mmudacture asd sofl to AD ART
slgus that ars rsqu;ircd by AD ART i ite businm, taking Into vonaldaration that taere acs somio
gigrns NASCO may niot desles fo or i not equippyd to mammfhetirs, Ihmitations ag NASCQ's
abillty and c&paai&y to manufaohure the signs, along with geogrmphical, I?g{ul{m!, and/or other
factors, Xis the spirit end irtust of thig pravisial; that AD ART will provide mch buginess mr
NASCO as rpalistionlly practionl, With respeot o any sigos thut NASCO slects not o
manufhenre, ot in the gvant NASCO 15 operating at full oepaeity and does nothavy the
personnal, space ad/ar equipment tecessary (o mmﬁﬁﬁm vigiage for AD ART, ar ifit I8 ot
snonarioally or taalistionlly rastinal f}'}r}i.‘t 800 10 mﬁnufas:tura thie sign(s) &4 sst forth above,
lien AD ART muy have such sigus manufsobered by ¢ third party or maufsokues such sign I

{tzalfl

whicl is competitive, Waing Indystry stwsdands for sign lrirpEﬂwa, AD ART aball fumigh to
| NASCO all neesssaryspecifications for each gl
i

' Pagedof /74003 1111 AM

b AD ART egrass to pay NASCO fov cach stgn sanndngtured by NASCO st n prics

i
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¢ Tha ”prcfe.rrcr‘ sign p-mw’er" protision af thig Agrasmenf shall mminaza gjtcr f

opton of “buying out” by tmﬂuntmg tha thove hreﬁmcd s:’gn sup'-harmla&[ambip batWaau the |

partioy by providing NASCO with wrilten notios of ita exarcles of mch option, sad by payment

to NASCO ofthe Slfowing amounis = ; A
It Optlon Bretaised EEGE P}_}:mgsimmi_n&
Pior to;

. . n
1/1/04 , _ - : {

A1/05

/06

AN/07
41703

109 o : _ ;

4. Thess provisions wlating to NASCO belng & “Breforced Sign Suppher ae .
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ndvetae eetion, Hiat the nuark bas beels pseperty sumg,ued to NASCO, MJM;!&G zight}ia: not

R e . _
b. NASCO will tranafer the radentack/word ratidbyrviae mark/hade rame to AD

ART e sxovule any decitznenty teqmieed by offbct the tansfer, -
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TIMOTHY F. HUNTER, ESQ. l
Nevada Bar No. 010622

RAY LEGO & ASSOCIATES l
7450 Arroyo Crossing Parkway, Suite 250 .'
Las Vegas, NV 89113 ‘
Tel:  (702) 479-4350
Fax:  (702) 270-4602
tthunteriditravelers.com

Altorney for Defendant,

'AD ART, INC.
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
CHARLES SCHUELER, CASE NO.: A-15-722391-C
Plaintiff, DEPT. NO.: XVII
Vs, '

MGM GRAND HOTEL, LLC. a Domestic
Limited Liability Company d/b/a MGM
GRAND; MGM RESORTS
INTERNATIONAL, a Foreign Corporation
d/b/a MGM GRAND: AD ART, INC, a
Foreign Corporation; 3A COMPOSITES USA
INC, a Foreign Corporation alk/a
ALUCOBOND TECHNOLOGIES
COROPORATION; DOES 1 - 25; ROE
CORPORATIONS 1 - 25; inclusive,

Defendants,

DEFENDANT AD ART, INC.'S REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR SUMMARY
JUDGMENT

COMES NOW Defendant, Ad Art, Inc. (“Defendant Ad Art™), by and through their
counsel, Timothy F. Hunter, Esq. of Ray Lego & Associates and submits this Reply in Support
of Defendant Ad Art, Inc.’s Motion for Summary Judgment.

I. INTRODUCTION

The key factual issue precluding liability against Defendant Ad Art here is not in dispute
— simply put, Defendant Ad Art did not purchase all or substantially all of the assets of the
company that built the MGM Pylon in 1994. Thus, as a matter of law, Plaintiff cannot make a
prima facie showing ot successor liability because Defendant Ad Art is not, by definition, a

“successor” corporation to Old Ad Art. Lamb v. Leroy Corp., 85 Nev. 276 (1969). Summary
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judgment is proper on this ground alone.

Plaintiff ignores this threshold issue. Plaintiff incorrectly assumes successorship, and

instead argues the applicability of an exception to that general rule that a successor corporation
'{is not liable for the obligations of the predecessor. But Plaintiff has failed to meet his burden
under Nevada law to demonstrate that the any such exception applies. Specifically, as discussed
infra, the evidence submitted by plaintiff does not address the two elements of the “mere

| continuation™ exception, hork of which must be present — (1) that a single corporation remains
!

| after transfer, and (2) identity of stock, stockholders and directors. Village Builders 96, L.P. v.

U.S. Laboratories, Inc., 121 Nev. 261, 267, 112 P.34d 1082, 1086 (Nev. 2005).

For these and the additional reasons set forth herein, granting summary judgment is
appropriate here.

II. SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT OF FACTS

Terry Long was the former President of Old Ad Art and was on the Board of Directors
of Old Ad Art’s parent company. Display Technologies. See, Exhibit “F” — Deposition of Terry
Long, pg. 28:20-31:24. Mr. Long was removed from his positions with Old Ad Art and Display
lechnologies in 2000. /d. After being removed as President and being removed from the
Board of Directors, likely due to financial issues of Display Technologies, Mr. Long did not
work for about 1 ¥ years. Id

After the 1 ' year sabbatical, Mr. Long then worked for another sign company by the
name of Arrow Sign Company. I at 31:22-32:20. Mr. Long had no ownership interest in
Arrow Sign Company and cventually left the company. Id Upon leaving Arrow Sign
Company, Mr. Long looked to buy an existing sign company, though he was unable to procure
one. /d. For that reason, Mr. Long ultimately decided to start a new company using the name,
Ad Art. Id

The name Ad Art was purchased by NASCO in the liquidation of Display Technologies,
Id at42:14-17. Mr. Long formed Defendant Ad Art in 2003 and purchased the right to use the
name Ad Art from NASCO around that same time frame. 7 at 69:9-22. Over a ten year period
of time, Defendant Ad Art paid NASCO approximately $1,100,000.00 for the sale of the
trademark, word mark, service mark, trade name, telephone number, and internet address. Id

Douglas Head is the currently the Executive Vice President for Defendant Ad Art
handling the Dallas office. See, Exhibit “G” - Deposition of Doug Head, pg. 9:8-13. Mr. Head
worked for Old Ad Art, but left the company in 1999 or 2000, Id 17:18-19:3. Mr. Head never

2

326




Las Vegas, Nevada 50113

Tebephone No. {702} 479.4550)
Facsimile No, (702) 270-4602

Ray Lego & Associates
450 Arroya Crossing Parkway, Suite 250

|-J

20

had any ownership interest in Old Ad Art. Jd Ie was not working for Old Ad Art at the time
of the liquidation. /d. Mr. Head was working for another sign company by the name of U.S.
Signs. fd, 1t was not until approximately 2005 that Mr. Head started working with Defendant
|Ad Art, /d

11I. POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

|| A. Defendant Ad Art is NOT a Continuation of a Selling Corporation.

The purchase from NASCO by Defendant Ad Art and the subsequent formation of a
new company was NOT a continuation of any selling corporation. In an attempt to show
“continuation”, Plaintiff’s Opposition focuscs on commonality of certain employees, proximity
of location of business operations, and similarity of goods and services offered. Opp. at 4-9.
However, as stated by the Court, “[t]he gravamen of the ‘mere continuation’ exception is the
continuation of corporate control and ownership, rather than the continuation of business
operations.” Zd. at 275 (citations and internal quotations omitted, emphasis added). As set forth
below, there is simply no “continuation of corporate control and ownership” between Old Ad
Art and Defendant Ad Art.

i Old Ad Art was Dissolved in 2001,

Plaintiff’s assertion that Defendant Ad Art is a continuing entity is contradicted by the
facts. The evidence clearly shows that Old Ad Art was dissolved based upon the NASCO
Agreement and deposition testimony. See, Exhibit “D”; Exhibit “F.” The NASCO Agreement
specifically states that Old Ad Art was liquidated, and in that liquidation NASCO purchased
certain assets. Jd at pg. 1. “In the process of liquidation of Ad Art Flectronic Sign
Corporation, NASCO purchased the trademark AD ART, the telephone number and the Internet
web address.” Id

ii. Defendant Ad Art was not Formed Until 2003.

By Plaintiff’s own Opposition and the testimony of Terry lLong, it is clear that
Defendant Ad Art was not in business at the time of the construction of the MGM Pylon. Terry
Long was President of Old Ad Art and sat on the Board of Directors for the parent company,
Display Technologies, and was removed from both positions in 2000. See, Exhibit “F” pg.
28:20-31:24. At that point, Mr. Long had no further involvement with Old Ad Art. It was not
until 2003, when Mr. Long and others purchased the name from NASCO, that Defendant Ad
Art came into existence. Defendant Ad Art paid NASCO approximately $1,100,000.00 over a
10 vear period to use the name Ad Art, after being formed in 2003.

~
2
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This is also confirmed by the California Secretary of State website as cited to by
Plaintiff. See, Opposition, pg. 7. According to the California Secretary of State website of

which Plaintiff relies, Defendant Ad Art was not formed until March 25, 2003. /4 Moreover.

|dissolved, or surrendered. [fd  That includes Old Ad Art that was “RESIGNED ON
I{]RIZS.*’EO{)I " Id. This is not evidence of a continuation, in fact it is evidence that Old Ad Art
was dissolved in 2001 and Defendant Ad Art was formed in 2003. To state that Defendant Ad
Art was formed before 2003 is simply nonsensical,

Moreover, the first prong of the “continuation™ exception requires that “only one
Jcmparation remains after the transfer of assets.” Village Builders at 274. Given the undisputed
faclb related to the dissolution of Old Ad Art in 2001, and the transaction between NASCO and
Defendant Ad Art in 2003, it is impossible that this requirement can be met, After the “transfer
of assets” in 2001 following liquidation, neither Old Ad Art nor Defendant Ad Art were in
existence. And after the “transfer of assets” in 2003, both NASCO and Defendant Ad Art were
In existence.

ifi. There is No Identity of Stock, Stockholders, and Directors.

Old Ad Art and Defendant Ad Art do not have the same identity of stock, stockholders.
and directors. The fact that Old Ad Art and Defendant Ad Art had similar employees is not the
standard established by the Nevada Supreme Court for a continuation. PlaintifT cites no case
holding that two companies with similar employees is sufficient to show continuation.

The Court is clear there must be an identity of stock, stockholders, and directors
between the two corporations. Village Builders 96 L P. v. U.S. Laboratories, Inc., 121 Nev. 261,
268 (2005) (emphasis added). A corporate transferee is not a mere continuation of the
transferor unless the shareholders of the transferor and transfaree are substantially the same. Id
at 274. See also, Commercial Nat'l Bank v. Newtson, 39 IIl. App. 3d 216, 217 (1976) (applying
the general rule against corporate successor liability where one shareholder owned 25% of the
predecessor corporation, and 40% of the successor corporation); Joseph Huber Brewing Co.,
Inc. v. Pamado, Inc., No. 05 C 2783, 2006 WL 2583719, *12-13 (N.D.IIL., September 5, 2006)
(finding that a continuity of minority ownership - approximately 15% - does not weigh in favor
of a finding for the continuation exception); Jeong v. Onada Cement Co, Lid, 2000 WL
33954824, *4 n4 (C.D. Cal, May 17, 2000) (acknowledging that under California law,
successor liability exists where shareholders are “practically” the same).

+
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Here, Defendant Ad Art has eight sharcholders, all of whom are individuals, See,
Exhibit “H” -~ Defendant Ad Art’s Inferrogatory Responses, No. 41. Of those eight, the only
person that owned stock, was a shareholder in, or was a director of, Old Ad Art and also owns
stock in Defendant Ad Art is Terry L.ong. Notably, there was not a continuation of the stock
directly from Old Ad Art to Defendant Ad Art. Mr, Long had a 20% ownership in Old Ad Art
up until approximately 1998 when the company was sold. See, Exhibit “F” pg. 24:1-25:13. At

that point, Mr. Long had shares in some of the stock of the parent company, Display

Technologies. /d. Mr, Long does not know how much or what his ownership percentage was in

Display Technologies, although it is reasonable to conclude that his ownership percentage in
Display Technologies, a parent company with multiple holdings, would have been significantly
less than 20%. /d In the end, those stocks became worthless due to the failure of Display

Technologies and the ultimate dissolution. #d Therefore, in 2001 following the dissolution,

|Mr. Long had no ownership or stock interest in Old Ad Art or the parent company that

purchased Old Ad Art. It was not until 2003 when Defendant Ad Art was formed that Mr. Long
then had ownership in Defendant Ad Art. For that reason, there is no continuity of “stock”
between Old Ad Art and Defendant Ad Art for a finding of a mere continuation.

Moreover, there is no continuity of shareholders, and directors between Old Ad Art and
Defendant Ad Art. Old Ad Art was owned by a publicly traded company, Display
Technologies, prior to its dissolution. Even before the sale to Display Technologies, the owners
were Terry Long, Lou Papais, John Papais and Dan O’Leary. Id at pg. 26:21-28:8. After the
sale of Old Ad Art, John Papais passed away, Dan O’Leary retired, and Lou Papais stayed on as
a consultant with Display Technologies. /d  Dan O’Leary, Lou Papais, and Display
Technologies have no ownership interest in Defendant Ad Art. For that reason, there is no
continuity of shareholders, and directors between Old Ad Art and Defendant Ad Art,

Obviously, some of the employees of Old Ad Art came to later work for Defendant Ad
Art, and certain of those individuals became executives and/or shareholders of Defendant Ad
Art. But, with the exception of Mr. Long, who held a minority interest in both entities, none of
these individuals were shareholder or directors in both Old Ad Art and Defendant Ad Art..

Plaintiff here has attempted to “muddy the water” herein an effort to defeat this Motion,
but has set forth no evidence sufficient to raise a material issue of fact with respect whether
there exists sufficient identity between the two companies. Because there is no such identity,

there can be no “mere continuation” exception.
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B. The MGM Pylon Sign is NOT a “Praduct” and the Doctrine of Strict Products
Liability has no Application in this Case.

This is not a strict product liability case as the MGM Pylon, as a matter of law, is not a
product. Plaintiff’s Opposition relies upen the website of Defendant Ad Art and the fact that the
MGM Pylon is not a “townhome™ to suggest that the sign is a product. The reasoning behind
both of these arguments is not persuasive. First, Cafloway addressed the application of Strict
Products Liability and laid out specific requirements on whether or not something is under the
purview of Strict Products Liability. Plaintiff failed to address any of these requirements.

Second, simply because Defendant Ad Art refers to signs as “products” on their website, does

| not mean that it is meets the legal definition of “product™ as applied to a strict products liability

| claim.

As noted in our Motion for Summary Judgment, a list of distinctions highlighted by the
Nevada Supreme Court in Cafloway were formed to support its holding that the doctrine of
strict product liability should not apply to a townhome. Calloway v. City of Reno, 116 Nev,
250, 269-270, 993 F.24 1259, 1271-72 (2000). Absolutely none of those standards were

|addressed by Plaintiff. For example, the Court held that “products are mass produced goods”,

which the MGM Pylon was not. They also noted that construction of buildings depends on the
cooperative interaction of a number of independent parties, which was the case for the MGM
Pylon. Furthermore, the architect cannot work out a design weakness in a series of prototypes
which is often done in manufactured goods, but could not be done for the MGM Pylon.

It is true that the MGM Pylon was not a townhome. In fact, the singular nature of the
design and installation of the MGM Pylon, makes it even more “one-of-a-kind” than a
townhome. At the time of the installation the MGM Pylon was the tallest sign in Tas Vegas
with no application to anyone, anywhere (other than MGM). Thus, the MGM Pylon is even less
akin to a “product” than a townheme.” Simply because the MGM Pylon is not a townhome,
does not discredit the analysis on the application of strict products liability claims as addressed
by the Nevada Supreme Court in Calloway.

Furthermore, simply because Defendant Ad Art may refer to a sign as a product, does
not mean it meets the standards for the application of strict products liability. In applying
Calloway, Judge Rob Bare found that a juke box set piece utilized during a Cirque du Soleil
show was not a “product” within the context of the strict products liability doctrine. See,

Exhibit “I" — Order on Motion for Partial Summary Judgment. This is just one item that could

330




Ray Lego & Associates

350

Parloway, Suite 250

evada 85113

Facsimile No. (702) 270-4602

Las Vegas,
Telephune No. (7021 4764

7450 Arroyo Crossin

{ 2]

Lot

[—
Ln

be considered & “product” but does fall under the purview of strict products liability. In
utilizing the factors addressed by Culloway, there are numerous other items that could be
referred to as a product, but still not applicable under the theory of a strict product liability
| claim.

C. Plaintiff’s Claims are Barred by the Statute of Repose.

Plaintiff’s Opposition only addresses the Statute of Limitations but makes no reference

to the application of the Statute of Repose. Again, the Nevada Legislature enacted statutes of

 repose 1o protect persons engaged in the planning, design and construction of improvements to |

(real property who otherwise would endure unending liability, even after they had lost control
(over the use and maintenance of the improvement. Afsenz v. Twin Lakes Vill, fnc., 108 Nev,
1117, 1120, 843 P.2d 834, 836 (1992) (citing Nevada Lakeshore Co. v. Diamond Elec., Ine., 89
Nev. 293, 295-96, 511 P.2d 113, 114 (1973). Regardless of who constructed it, the MGM Pylon
was originally constructed in 1993 or 1994, that is undisputed. Plaintiff did not file this lawsuit
until July 30, 2015. Therefore, Plaintiff is looking to assert claims based upon improvements to

real property done over 20 years earlier. This is exactly the type of lawsuit that the legislature

was attempting to prevent. For that reason, Plaintiff's claims related to the MGM Pylon are

time barred pursuant to the applicable statute of repose.

D. Plaintiff’s premises liability claims fail because Defendant Ad Art was not
the owner or occupier of the property, mor were they the designer,
manufacturer, constructer, or maintainer of the MGM Pylon sign.

Plaintiff has put forth no evidence that Defendant Ad Art was the owner or occupier of
the MGM Pylon. Plaintiff has put forth no evidence that Defendant Ad Art had any
responsibility for the maintenance of the MGM Pylon. Plaintiff has cited to no case law that an
entity that is not the owner or occupier of land can be held liable under a premises liability
theory. Plaintiff has cited to no cases where an entity who has no responsibility for maintaining
a property has a duty to maintain the premises. In fact, Plaintiff cited to no cases at all in order
to support their premises liability claims. Plaintiff simply relies on unsupported allegations.
Given that Plaintiff set forth no evidence or case law to support its premises liability claims,
Defendant respectfully requests that the premises liability claims be dismissed.

F4
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1. CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth above, Defendant Ad Art requests that this court grant summary

judgment in its favor.

DATED this 3= day of August, 2017.

Respectfully submitted,

RAY LEGC AS;'QCIA]'ES

TIMOTHY F. HUNTER, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 010622

7450 Arroyo Crossing Parkway, Suite 250
Las Vegas, NV 89113

Attorney for Defendant, AD ART, INC.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that T am an emplayee of RAY LEGO &
ASSOCIATES and that on lhc:ithd day of August, EOIZ [ caused the foregoing DEFENDANT
AD ART, INC.’S REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT (o

be served as follows:

_X___ pursuant to N.ILF.C.R. 9 by serving it via electronic service.

To the attorneys listed below:

| William R. Brenske, Fsq.. #1806
Ryan D. Krametbauer, Esq., #12800
LAW OFFICE OF WILLIAM R.
BRENSKE

630 S, Third Street

| Las Vegas, NV 89101

P: 702/385-3300

F: 702/385-3823 ;

whrenske(@whotmail.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff, CHARLES
SCHUELER

Leann Sanders, Esq., #000390

Edward Silverman, Esq., #13584

- ALVERSON, TAYLOR, MORTENSEN
& SANDERS

7401 W, Charleston Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV 89117

P: 702/384-7000
F: 702/385-7000
esilverman@alversontaylor.com
Attorneys for Defendant, 3A COMPOSITES
' USA INC,, f/k/a ALUCOBOND ,
| TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION |

1 2/
_ ol [, i, Wi

An employee of RAY LEGO & ASSOCIATES
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK J0UNTY, NEVADA

CHARLES SCHUELER, * CASE WO.: A-15-72239%1-C
Plaintiff, * TDEPT. NO.: XVII
*
Vs. * Job No.: 378143
*

MGM GRAND HOTEL, LLC, a
Domestic Limited Liability
Company d/b/a MGM GRAND; MGM
RESCRTS INTERNATIONAL, a
Foreign Corporatioa d/b/a MGM
GRAND; AL ARY, INC., a Foreigm
Corporation; 3A COMPOSITES USA
INC,, & Foreign Corporation
a/k/a BLUCCOBOND TECHNOLOGIES
CORPORATION; DOES 1 - 25; ROE
CORPORATIONS 1 - 25; imclusive,

X ¥ ¥ % A

B % A W

A

Defendants.

whdkdhxdbkrrhrrrhrrdbbddhah o hxkdhdxhsk

CRAL DEPOSITION OF
DOUGLAS ALAN HEAD
APRIL 27, 2017

khhxkadkhktkrd kb odrhodhdhhddhbadddhrkdd

ORAL DEPOSITION CF DOUGLAS ALAN HEAD, produced as a witness
at the ipdatance of the Plaintiff, and duly sworn, was taken in the
above-styled and numbered cause on the 27th day of April 2017,
from 2:19 p.m. to 3:25 p.m., before June Pate, CSR in and for the
State of Texas, reported by machine shorthand, at the Regus
Business Center, 405 State Highway 121, Suite A250, Lewisville,

Texas, pursuant to the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure.
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cate G I can't mally bell you. You koW, w2 hed lots of (12 A T mew it as M Art,
installers. We hed lots of that, Jut most of my tize T spent with | 13 & S50 you were vorking for Ad Act in 12937
the salespecple, it} LU S

(. Aot thet wiwld heve Bad been Lym Weaver sud L 2 and then in 1994, who were you warklng fox?

-
-
e

Terzy Long? . M Baras I Tmow, [ e alvays worked for — the old
A, Yeah, There vasm ethers, Dub I can'b regenber all of 11 company, 38 Zar as I ever kotw 1% was called A Aot
thelr names. 18 Q. CGezy. had then vwhen did tha old company that pow are

% And shen xad -- when were you inwlied in thie? Like, |19 referring to beceme the pew comany b you are referzing to oo
what ysars vag this -- wes this ccourriog? 10 the current coopany?

&, T bave oo reccliecticn of whet years, Imean, itwas |21 L It never becane --
zlL ancient history in the cld, dead compeny, I don't -- » MR WNTER: Object to form, vegue and ambiguous.
T don't - PH . By %, Eramsthaver) G ahead.

0 Was Lt in the 19 -~ gady 1990s7 2 &, IE never became the mew conpiny, The old company disd,

A Ialready told you. I don't remesber. 25 el [ wasn't ever with the old crmpany when it died, so T dun't

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112

www,litigationsexrvices.com

339




DOUGLAS ALAN HEAD - (4/27/2017

Page 15! Page Z0
1 oo wheo it died. I jt ke dmk 2bdid | L prlen.
i3 2. o do you imow woen the old coopany dded, i your o 1 L Thers ware 350 swplowees, oy coess,
[ 1 vons? 3 Q. Jod Tapprecists thab. I want tomov tie onss wrking
§ i Mo | 4 for the MY pvlen, |
5 9. Wrers wre yoo when, quote, WBQuote, Lie compazy ded? | 5 A I doo't reaall. |
| & 4. 0.5, Signs, 5 §.  fhers would that ieformaticg be?
|1 Q. bhen did you lesve Ad Art 2rd work for 7.3 $igua? ? A. IZave nc idea, The copuy quide. T Files sere
3 4. I Usdnk <~ if my seqory serves ne rignt. possibly & theown segy, 1 beve oo idm.
| 8 arctnd 2000, ‘58, ] § Who threw tha Hles seay?
|1 0. dboat 1993 ard 26007 19 B 1 kave no idea.
hi A Someching live shet, yes, 4 9. %o woeld kave that infarmaticn?
1 2. Ao bow dong wore you at U5, Stgns? B AR Idm'timow. Ivamn't with the cowpamy when [k
13 A, Aot bwo yeamy, I thnk 5 Imppered.
L 0. 2nd where did you go after 1.8, Slema? | 14 G Bow do ypou dmow Ehe £lles wers Hwova avay?
11 A I started bo vork with the new Ad Art, 15 A, Because ! heve ashed and locksd For -- for old
i U Taat wes after the two-year stint st UL, Simas? | 35 deowments =nd could never {ind then.
17 A Cozrect. 17 § Who did you ask for old dscuments?
b} 2. Bo abgut 29027 gl A 1 askad Terry for old domments,
15 A I lave no idm. k] 2. Aoybody elee?
il Q. 2y 0 A, Bo.
B A Thave o ldecothe tme fram. 1vas oaly qessing, |21 Q,  Wbab &d Terry say vaen yon asked hin for ol
1 9 L't vent yoo to guesa. |32 douments
b | A, Chay. Then T have oo idea. |z A, He ond e fed no idea shere they werz at.
b @. W can use your best estizate. Do you kave ap estimate | 24 Q. Awthing slse?
18 when you Joined with A4 Avk afesr leavimg 0.4, ®lgref b A Mo
1
Paga 15 “Dage 21 i
1 A& 1 thimk 2085 1 2 What all documents wexe you locking for?
2 0. 2od what wae yowr job for M Art do 20057 2 A A File on how 2 sign was muils, I &'t recall tha
3 & DGalespevarm, 3 pame.
4 4. Hewe you ever bad an owership intevast im Ad Axt? L 0. Do you koow the stats that it vas located dn?
5 R, HWNER: Uxject to fom, voque as to "M At | 8 A Ibellove it w3 in Forth Carolin,
g . T have -- T had o oecersaip of the old, desd Ad art. 6 2. And hov long ago did o maks this raquest of Teoxy
7 I have 4 stock owmersip i the new Ad Art. | 7 regarding the old documents?
8 Q0 (ByVr Reacetheser) Oky. Sodsihe Mkt that | 3 A Yees
9 buflt the M pylon beck in the 1390s, you & ok fave m {3 @ Mors than Fve yuara ag?
10 oacersbip interest in tat company; is that corzect? [10 B Yes,
1 3. That is comezch. 1 q Uid you have @y irvolvemect in the Treasuce Island
12 g 3ot yoo oowld bave an ovmership comamy - excugs ma. 12 gylm installation?
13 Strike that, |13 A K
] mthﬂmﬁdphamwkzmnasmulill 2. Did you have aoy involvemmt in the Rlo pylon
15 today; ia thabt corract? 15 inmstailabice?
15 A, Corrept, B A e
L Q.  Other than the peopls that wa huva Liabed, [ 2. Did yon bave ay involvesent in the Mirage vie
12 Gordm Kitts, Gyo Weaver and Terry bong, whc else, to the best of | 1§ installsbing?
13 your lnovledge, was lnwived in the inatallation of the MM pyle? | 15 L o
2 A, 1domet rerall, at 0. ¥Bo wag invalved with the fressure Islamd pylon
n 9. Any other namas of pecple workdng ab Ad Art at the 2L irstallatiay
1 ime? 4 A Uordon Sitto.
i) L. Tden't jmev., Horking for M At at the Sine, the oid | 23 0. Weo elsa?
24 dead A2 A7 H A I dor't know,
5 Q. Forxing for 2 Art durirg the installation of the M B 0 ¥ho was involved in the Rio pylan Installatica?
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Fage 22 Page 24
1 & Govden ¥lita. | 1 ML OBNTER: Objecziom: CAlls for speculabion.
! 2. Imybedy alaa) 2 Ao Tamot -- I wam's a1 oeer, %0 I'm oot posibive. T
3 A Idm't o ‘ 3 zlwvms saw bim as a rap of authosity,
4 0. Wio was dmvolved fn the Wimge pylen inaeallation? | 4 G (3y ¥r. Frapstbaner), But when you wes= worldng at
5 A orden fitko, 5 ud Art ab tae bine of the MM sim comatruckion, you wrderstord
H ¢ Aoybody eise? [ & that Terry Loog was an oweer of that copay?
7 A& 1 dm't kmow, ! 1 A T undecsted that Terry was oreaident,
] % A far as the WM prlon ls concerned, ware thece any " 3 @ Giay. 2ed who currently owns Ad Art, Ioo.?
¥ moboontractors hired oy Ad Are? ({3 3 I den't ‘mow whe ouns --
1 A I have oo ddes. e ¥R, WOTER: Cbiect fo fom, vague ard ambimuis
b @ ¥eers weze che zaterials purchased from? {11 asrtoRd A,
2 A, 1 hava oo idea. . n 3. (By Yr. Fremetbauer) Ts Tecry lorg a current oweer of
1 b Doyowlows I the Alucchoad or oy materlal frem 23 11 M A, Tmel?
14 was purchased by A7 Ar: fer the coratruction of the aig? | 1t A Terxy is o ourvent owner of the Md Art thab sviste aoy,
15 Ao I have oo idea. |15 @ 8o Buat's g yem?
15 2. hhera would that information de? 15 Ao Tcon't imow i 3b's ad A, Tne. S0 T'm taliing you
1 A Than, Twould baw2 no idea. Trse o don't - @ 17 s am awmer of the - part owmer of the AC ATt ase, a
18 far ms I know, dm't edst, i 18 stodkic’der,
§. Mo yould be the best perser to xzlk to sbouk getting 1‘1! U, Iz B, lom Papads stidl alive?
20 thoss recozia?d | 1 A Yes
2 A [ mwernocides. ! doa't even kmow if trey awist, | n 0. Vreere iz Mr. Papais, Lou Papuia?
5] G Mexld .- vould ik be Yarry Leng? iz B The lat tihe T heard, he was in the mospital.
23 k1 answered it once, n @, Do ym know what stazs he iives in}
H 1. Well, i'm 2sking you. Woo would be — H 4, Calliomia.
%5 B T zave po iges, F & §. When vas the last tims that you falked to fio?
— Page 23| o Pags 25
1 Q. -- ths persm at A Art to talk b oot gettirg the 1 2, Christeastise last yzar,
I docwients régarding people involved with the ¥2f pylen 1 §. e you have aoy contact informetiao?
3 irstallatica? 1 A Mo, Idoopcr.
{ A Theald M At -- L] €. Aow about Johp fapais?
5 W, WHIER: Objection: Vasue and aamiguous as ko | S A John Papals?
"M Axt | & 9. I fa stil] alive?
T R The aid, dead A Ar- doesn't exdist, mnd I have 2o idea | 7 3. He's deceaspd.
§ wiore agy reoqdd fvom the old, dead Ad Art ars. B Q. When did John Papala pass awy? b
3 2. (By ¥r, Kyemetbaver] Do you kew anything about: the 3 A 1 co ot recall che year, but It was ab lesst 20 years
10 quidabion of ad Aok, Ime.? 11 s,
Ho A ‘U0 G Bowabout B 0.,
u G, To you know arything sheut the soqulsition or mirehasa | 12 A, Dan O'Leary, he passed away.
17 of M Art's assets? 13 Q.  O'Tlemry. I eaa't rsed my own hesdriting,
5! A Mo it Is Jm D'eary 2t3ll alive? E
15 3 ¥hovas the omer of Ad Azt, Ins., when the M pylm 15 X M0, he peseed away also,
15 wvan congtrusted? 15 §-  thes did be pase oay?
17 A, Ihelleve it was Lou Papais, Ten O'leary, dobm: Papais 17 A, T'm giessing maybe six or seven years age.
18 and Tery Law, 18 2. And Tecry Long is still alive, correct?
12 0. I apelomize Gecmms Bhe phens kind of ook cub thare, 13 A Correst,
20 bub you ldstad, I think, four mames. Can you give me it ome mre | 10 Q. Bny other owera Exab yom jmew about at the time of the
21 tigs: 10 YOur best au spelling fheir last name forome. 1 B sign conatrocticn?
n A Loy Fagais, PA-R-A-T-5; Johm Papais, sums spellitg; ) A B
13 Dam O'leary, G-l-3-B-R-¥; and Terry long. ] ©. T apclogize, tut we saztier talked about =
24 9. To the bast of your lmowledge, Terzy iocg wes an over | 24 Richard Shade. Mhat was ble pomition with the compemy n 13832
35 of the -+ the Ad At #o had budlt the B3 pylow? = A A5 Irecall, he did electromizs, and at time he weeld

Litigation Serwvices | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com

341



Brenske Andreevski & Krametbauer
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500 - Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
(702) 385-3300 - Fax (702) 385-3823

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

WILLIAM R. BRENSKE, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 1806

JENNIFER R. ANDREEVSKI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9095

RYAN D. KRAMETBAUER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 12800

BRENSKE ANDREEVSKI & KRAMETBAUER
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500
Las Vegas, NV 89169

Telephone: (702) 385-3300

Facsimile: (702) 385-3823

Email: wbrenske@hotmail.com
Attorneys for Appellant,

Charles Schueler

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

Electronically Filed
Oct 03 2018 10:42 §
Elizabeth A. Brown
Clerk of Supreme G

CHARLES SCHUELER, Supreme Court No.: 75688
Dist. Ct. Case No.: A-15-722391-C
Appellant,
V.
APPELLANT AND
AD ART, INC,, RESPONDENT'S JOINT
APPENDIX
Respondent.
VOLUME 111
Exhibit
Bates Nos.
No.
14. 1 plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendant AD ART, INC.’s 246 - 304
Motion for Summary Judgment
15. | Defendant AD ART, INC.’s Reply in Support of Motion 305 - 365
for Summary Judgment
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Electronically Filed
8/22/2017 11:45 AM

WILLIAM R. BRENSKE, ESQ. Steven D. Grierson

Nevada Bar No. 1806 CLERE OF THE GQUE?1

JENNIFER R. ANDREEVSKI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9093

RYAN D. KRAMETBAUER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 12800

BRENSKE & ANDREEVSKI

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500
Las Vegas, NV 89169

Telephone: (702) 385-3300
Facsimile: (702) 385-3823

Email: whrenskeiwhotmail.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff,

Charles Schueler

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

| Case No.: A-15-722391-C
| Dept. No.: XVII

CHARLES SCHUELER,

Plaintiff, '
V. . PLAINTIFF CHARLES
SCHUELER'S OPPOSITION TO
MGM GRAND HOTEL, LLC, a Domestic Limited DEFENDANT AD ART, INC.'S
Liability Company d/b/a MGM GRAND; MGM MOTION FOR SUMMARY
RESORTS INTERNATIONAL, A Foreign JUDGMENT

Carporation d/b/a MGM GRAND; AD ART, INC., A
Foreign Corporation: 3A COMPOSITES USA INC., Date of Hearing: 09/06/17
a Foreign Corporation a/k/a ALUCOBOND Time of Hearing: 8:30 a.m.
TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION; DOES 1 - 25;
ROE CORPORATIONS 1 - 23; inclusive,

Defendants.

Plaintiff, Charles Schueler, by and through his attorneys of record, Brenske & Andreevski,
hereby opposes Defendant Ad Art, Inc.’s Motion for Summary Judgment.
/1
/1
H
I

Iy
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This opposition is based on the pleadings and papers on file herein, the attached
Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and any oral argument this Court may wish to entertain.
DATED this .,/ day of August, 2017,
BRENSKE & ANDI%E]EVSKI

* T
Hi . L

“ WILLIAM R. BRENSKE, ESQ.
"Nevada Bar No. 1806
JENNIFER R. ANDREEVSKI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 3095
RYAN D. KRAMETBAUER, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 12800
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500

Las Vegas, NV 89169
Attorneys for Plaintiff,
Charles Schueler

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L STATEMENT OF FACTS

On July 31, 2013, Plaintiff, Charles Schueler, was working on the MGM pylon sign in Las
Vegas, Nevada. He was tasked with replacing the LED displays on the face of the sign. As Mr.
Schueler was walking, a triangular panel of Alucobond on the floor suddenly gave way, causing
him to fall approximately 150 feet to the ground. Mr. Schueler survived, but suffered debilitating
injuries.

Defendant Ad Art, Inc. argues one of its predecessors built the sign in 1993/1994 and it
cannot be held responsible for Plaintiff's damages. Discovery conducted thus far belies this
argument. Specifically, in the Clark County Building Department Permit issued for the
construction of the MGM Grand Hotel/Sign, the contractor is listed as "Ad Art Inc." and not Ad
Art Electronic Sign Corporation, as Defendant argues.

e

Page 2 of 14
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24

25

26

IL. LEGAL ARGUMENT

Summary Judgment is only proper when “the pleadings, depositions, answers to
interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuing
issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law.”]

NRCP 36(c). If the evidence is such that a reasonable jury could return a verdict for the nonmoving

party, summary judgment is not proper. First National Bank of Arizona v. Cities Service Co.,
(1968) 391 U.S. 253. “All that is required is that sufficient evidence supporting the claimed factual
dispute be shown to require a jury or judge to resolve the parties’ differing versions of the truth at
trial.” Id. at 288-289.

Summary judgment must be denied if there are any genuine issues of material fact that may

be litigated at the time of trial. Wood v. Safeway, Inc., 121 P.3d 1026 (2005). In addition, the

burden is on the moving party to prove the absence of a genuine issue of material fact. Pegasus v.

Reno Newspapers. Inc., 118 Nev. 706 (2002). Furthermore, all evidence must be construed in a

light most favorable to the non-moving party. Wood at 1031.

A. DEFENDANT AD ART, INC.’S SUCCESSOR LIABILITY

Defendant argues it (Ad Art, Inc.) had nothing to do with constructing the MGM sign in
question and surmises it cannot be held responsible for Plaintiff's injuries. Despite the affidavit of
Defendant's employee, the building permit for the sign indicates this is not true. Specifically, on
the building permit attached as Exhibit "B" to Defendant's motion, Ad Art Inc. is listed as the
contractor on the job. A portion of Exhibit "B" with an added arrow and underline is pasted below:
/1
111/
1

i
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J1e parmat AumBeEr Beaw WIEn fequeshing nspachans or infarmation <anceErning s pecnnt.

PERMIT NUMBER " ISSUE DAT
93~156934 1@/@5/9%

PROJEET NAME | 5
HBN® GRAND S1GN ¢ o THRITEREE

PARCEL NO1 162-21-401-006~3a | RANGE-TOWNSHIP-SECTION E1-21-21

SITE ADDRESS: 3799 8 LAS VEGAS BLUD
TENANT NAME: MBM BRAND HOTEL/SIGN TENRNT NO: HOTEL

PROPERTY OWNER: M & M GRAMD
ONTRACTOR: . AD ART INN TR ThE

PERHiT]SISIGE;EE%;gEgRD .
N= : VELUATION: &720
ONLY Tst PERMIT DOES NOT
ENPLUDEIEEpgﬁgzn ND §s“ pDIA DIPZ anLY /
LY/DA
- UNTHIS DUEB@NDT 1Ntﬁuggesupﬁnswnugvunﬁan
A 0, STORIES ]
CCOUPANTY &, ; AHH_TYPE OF CONST: EPRIN;«-LER ﬂém: e W
FEE SUMMARY CHARGED DRID BREV
! PERMIT FEE Bi.02 Py 5%@ pnég_ma
ZONING BILLBOARD FEE 509, 9@ . ea 500, 08
ToTaL RPRID ‘581, 80

Given Ad Art, Inc. is listed as the contractor on the building permit, Ad Art Inc.'s protestations that
it was not involved do not ring true. In a Motion for Summary Judgment, all inferences must be

drawn in favor of the non-moving party. Wood v. Safeway. Inc., 121 Nev. 724, 732 (2003).

Construing the evidence in a light most favorable to Plaintiff, the building permit alone offers
evidence Defendant is an appropriate party to this lawsuit. Ad Art, Inc. was listed as the contractor
on the job - not Ad Art ESC.

Should this Court choose to ignore the building permit, which clearly states the contractor
for the MGM sign was Defendant, Ad Art, Inc., and to consider Defendant's arguments regarding
successor liability, Defendant still loses. Specifically, in Nevada, there are four exceptions to the
general rule that a purchasing corporation is not liable for the debts of its successor. Those are:

1) where the purchaser expressly or impliedly agrees 1o assume such debts;

2) where the transaction is really a consolidation or a merger;

3) when the purchasing corporation is merely a continuation of the selling
corporation; and,
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(3]

L]

14

15

16

4) where the transaction was fraudulently made in order to escape liability for
such debts.

Village Builders 96, L.P. v. U.S. Laboratories, Inc., 121 Nev. 261, 268 (2005) (emphasis added).

Here, there is nothing to suggest Ad Art, Inc. is anything less than a mere continuation of
the selling corporation. In fact, on Ad Art's website, it indicates Ad Art has been "a leader in the

industry for more than 50 years.” See below:

WELCOME TO AD ART

=&
-y

ety St [ S s R
DrovIQeErs anGg W

chaice in signage

If Ad Art has been a "leader in the industry for more than 50 vears," is it clear the company did not
come into existence in 2003. It has changed its name and continued its business for more than 50
years. Additionally, Defendant Ad Art, Inc. advertises about its experience building signs,

including the MGM Pylon from 1993/1994:

Dhzssyy brbad

Fxvcidive Yios Prosident, Natlonal 52ley

AT Y WA T

See Printout from Ad Axt, Inc. website attached hereto as Exhibit ©5”.
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In the Village Builders case, the Nevada Supreme Court indicated there are "two

requirements to justify bringing a sale of assets within the purview of the mere continuation
exception to the general rule: (1) only one corporation remains after the transfer of assets; and (2)
there is an identity of stock, stockholders. and directors between the two corporations.” Id. at 274.
According to Ad Art's website, "former Ad Art executives resurrected Ad Art from the ashes" after

the company closed due to the market crash of 2001. See below:

Who We Are

Ad Artis an award-winning national sign campany dolng business in ail 50 states. Ad Art currenily
has seven branch oFices located in Calfornia. Mevada and Texas.

e sirive for versalility in ail that we do. Ve are a full-service company that not ohly is abie o
p.awn:iﬂ channel ketiers, pole signs. awnings, and interior signs. Dut alsa able o provide cusiom
oylons, monument displays. and a wide array of ouldoorindoar LED and LCD digital signage
soluiions.

rost importantly we fake responsibility for the outcaome and performance expeciations. We are only
a5 good 2s our [ast insiaflation and the ability we have o mainiain and bulld on fong lasiing
reiafionships. We are guided by 2nsuring client satisfaction.

The Story of the Phoenix Rising

To tell the true stary of Ad Art ane n2e Js a lifetime. The fiest Ad At (known as Ad At 1.0) was
siarted in 1933 in kiodesto, CA. Inthe early 1930's the Papais brothers (Lou and John) ;::-ur::“w"xf-ﬂd
and relocated the company 15 m[les nmt_n of Stockion, CA. Throughout the 1980' Ad At grew
pecome one of the top 5 farges! sign companies in the US and dominaied ihe Las Yagas -,narket..

in the 1990's. Ad Art was purchased and taken public on the NASDAG exchange, traded under the
name Display Technologies (DTEK). in the market crash of 2001, Display Technolagias was forced
i cluse or liquidate many of their noldings in order to stave off bankrupicy. Ad Art. a highiy
profitable business, was closed as a casually of the parent company osses.

in 2003, Terry Long. Roban Kierejczyk & leremy Anderson. afl former Ad Art exacytives,
resurrecied Ad Art rom the ashes. Starting fresh, Ad At 2.0 was born and has again rlsen o
become ane of the innovative leaders in the signage industry. Appropriately, Ihe Phoenix is the
unofficial symbol of the company which telis the siory of Ad Art's coloriul past.
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In addition, according to the California Secretary of State's website, there is nothing left of Ad Art

Electronic Sign Corporation. Only one active corporation remains: Ad Art, Inc. See below:
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i kil £2503793 AD ART, TNC. BLAIR M WHITE
AFTLrTYS ¥ T
e carmrns AD BE ART SALLERY, (NG, ¥ 5 FESIGNED (M 52/12:390
"Skitinn X hainess COSOSEIS aL02/197y | Fre susreNDED AD-ART FINAMCIAL CORPORATION ROMALD R JOHNSON
it CEN TO305E83 1973 |FTR SUSPENDED | AD-ARY INDUSTRIES, INC. ROMALE & IOHNEON
- Mlshuading Busin . : : ) b ] :
Sokeiationy lcoszzisz  |pd/a0i1374 | S05/ETE SUSPENDED | AD-ART SIGNS, INC. BRENDA MCGLATHERY
T Y 8272141945 | SOS/FTE SUSPENDED | AD-ART, INC, SOLEEN § SROVAH
] | 1 '
{04/17/1962 | DISSCLVED AD-ART, INC.. OF SAN JOSE |
(0172871988 | SURREATIER |ART ‘&' AD, TNC, |
[ART 1 AD, TNC,

New Search

Given only one corporation existed after Ad Art was "resurrected” and the same executives were
involved in both companies, Ad Art, Inc. is a mere continuation of its predecessors. As such, Ad
Art, Inc. is an appropriate defendant in this action.

Additionally, many of the same officers from “Old Ad Art” arc officers at “New Ad Art.”
In fact, Terry Long, President of “Old Ad Art™ is the current CEO of “New Ad Art.” (See Pg. 27,
Lines 23-25 of Terry Long’s Deposition Transcript attached hereto as Exhibit “17; See also
Defendant Ad Art, Inc.’s Responses to Plaintiff’s Second Set of Interrogatories attached hereto as
Exhibit “2”). Mr. Long owned a 20% interest in “Old Ad Art” and currently owns 22% of “New

Ad Art.” [d. Another executive, Doug Head, was Manager of the Las Vegas Division of “Old Ad
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Art” at the time the MGM pylon was manufactured and is now Executive Vice-President of “New
Ad Art” with an 8% interest in the company. (See Deposition Transcript of Doug Head attached
hereto as Exhibit “3”; See also Exhibit “27).  According to Ad Art Inc.’s public website, the
following Ad Art employees have worked for Ad Art for several years, some since the 1960’s and

70°s:

History with Ad Art

| Terry has a long history with Ad Art after
first joining the company in 1968 . . .
Terry . . . also served as the board’s
President in 1993,

Bob began his career in the commercial
sign business in the 1970's when Joining
Ad Art as a sales representative. In the
| beginning Bob's focus was on national
repetitive accounts and during his first year
| in the business he was fortunate enough to

bring the Office Depot and Marshalls
accounts to the Ad Art team Since that time
Bob has continued his sales successes with

these types of accounts all the while
i moving onto one-off, custom sports and
spectaculars. In the most recent years, Bob
has devoted a good portion of his time
developing new talent and getting more
involved in different divisions within the
company to help ensure the continuing
growth and success of Ad Art.
Duane Contento, Senior Vice President Duane began his career in the sign
business in 1981 as a salesman in Ad Art's
San Diego office. In the early [990’s le
was transferred to Ad Art's Los Angeles
office where he became branch/regional
manager. In the early 1990's Duane was
promoted to Executive Vice President and
currently runs the LA and Las Vegas
offices. Throughout his career he has
served in a lead capacity on noteworthy
projects including Disneyland,
' Disneyworld, Staples Center, Office Depot
| Center, El Capitan Theatre,
Venetian/Palazzo, and various Las Vegas
strip gaming clientele.

Name & Current Position with Ad Art
Terry Long, Chief Executive Officer

Bob Kierej&}_k, President
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| Jeremy Anderson, Executive Vice
President of Digital/Electronics

Jeremy Anderson joined Ad Art in 1998 in

sales and project management. In 2001,

| Jeremy joined the electronic LED display |
division as a member or the research and

| development team.

' Doug Head, Executive Vice President,
| National Sales

- Douglas A. Head has served in the sign

| industry for more than 35 years. His
advancement in various capacities at Ad |
Art includes a ten year stretch as manager
of the Las Vegas division during which ‘
time it installed the MGM, the Treasure |

i Island, the Rio and the Mirage pylons.

| Doug is a member of Ad Art’s executive

! management team and leads Ad Art’s

| Texas division. He successfully developed
and manages the maintenance division of
Ad Art, AA Sign and Lighting

i Maintenance.

David Esajian, Senior Account Executive

| David . .. has been a member of the Ad
| Art team since 1997.

Brian P. Connolly. Senior Account
Executive

Brian. .. has been with Ad Art since
1997.

Jack Dubois, Executive Art Director

Jack heads up an Art Department that for
over 40 years has been a defining industry |
Jerce in cutting edge sign design. He has
been at the design forefront of some of |
Las Vegas' major casino-resort signage as |
well as numerous retail and co-opted city
projects across the country, often covering
both initial branding and wayfinding
| solutions.

Ad Art, Inc. has been in the business of manufacturing pylon signs, channel letters,

architectural signage, monument signs and wayfinding signs since long before 2003 and cannot

escape liability by allegedly liquidating assets in 2001,

As depicted below, “New Ad Art” operates its business only a few hundred feet from “Old

Ad Art.” According to CEO Terry Long, when “Old Ad Art” was liquidated, NASCO purchased

various items such as the name, website and telephone number. NASCO is just feet from both
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“Old Ad Art” and “New Ad Art.” All three business are located on Ad Art Road in Stockton,

California.

Ad Art Road: Stockton, California

According to the purchase agreement between Ad Art, Inc. and NASCO (attached hereto as
Exhibit “4”), Ad Art, Inc. agreed to continue utilizing NASCO as its preferred sign supplier.
Despite its nuanced argument that it is a different company, Ad Art, Inc. is liable for the defective
waork it did back in 1993/1994 with regard to the MGM pylon sign.

B. THE MGM PYLON IS A DEFECTIVE PRODUCT

Defendant argues the MGM pylon is not a “product” subject to the doctrine of strict

products liability. In support of its argument, Defendant Ad Art, Inc. cites to Calloway v. City of

Reno, 116 Nev, 250, 993 P.2d 1259 (2000) wherein the Nevada Supreme Court held a townhome

is not a product for the purpose of strict products liability. The MGM pylon sign 1s not a

townhome. It was manufactured by Ad Art, Inc. in its Stockton, California factory and shipped to
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Las Vegas, Nevada for installation. It is not a dwelling or place of residence, rather a fabricated
structure used solely for the purpose of advertising. As outlined by the Court in Calloway, “one is
strictly liable for damages from a dangerously defective product only if one is a seller “engaged in

the business of selling such a product.” Calloway v. City of Reno, 116 Nev. 250, 270 (2000)

(citing Restatement (Second) of Torts, Section 402A, [1965]). By definition of the Nevada

Supreme Court in Calloway v. City of Reno, Defendant Ad Art, Inc. is strictly liable for damages

Srom its dangerously defective pylon sign because it is a seller engaged in the business of selling
such products (i.e. pylon signs).
Despite its argument, Defendant Ad Art, Inc. calls its signs “products™ via its website:

https://www.adart.com/traditional-signage/. In fact, Ad Art’s website includes a section dedicated

to its “Products & Services” which includes “Pylon Signs” as a “product category.”

i PLAINTIFF'S CLAIMS ARE NOT BARRED BY THE STATUTE OF
REPOSE

Pursuant to NRS 11.190 and NRS 11.220, the statute of limitations on a product liability|
action is four years. NRS 11.190 (2015) and NRS 11.220 (1929). In addition, in persuasive

precedent, the Nevada District Court for the District of Nevada held in Fisher v. Profll

Compounding Ctrs of Am.. Inc. that "Nevada has a four-year statute of limitations for product

liability cases.”" Fisher, 311 F. Supp. 2d. 1008, 1017-18 (D. Nev., 2004). Furthermore, that period
does not run from the date of injury, rather it starts when the "injured party discovers or reasonably]

should have discovered facts supporting a cause of action." Fisher at 1018. The question is when

the plaintiff discovered facts that suggested a potentially negligent cause of harm. Winn v. Sunrise

Hospital & Medical Center, 277 P.3d 458, 62 (Nev., 2012). Here, Plaintiff's claim was brought well

within the four-year period, so the time of discovery is irrelevant to the four-year statute.
Regardless, Plaintiff’s complaint stems from the personal injuries he suffered as a result of

Defendant’s defective product. N.R.S. 11.190 (4) outlines the period of limitations is “[w]ithin 2
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years (e) . . . [for] an action to recover damages for injuries to a person . . . caused by the wrongful
act or neglect of another.” Plaintiff fell from the MGM pylon on July 31, 2013 and his Complaint

was filed on Julv 30, 2013, within the two-year statute of limitations. As such, Plaintiff’s claims

are not barred by the statue of repose.

D. PREMISES LIABILITY

In addition to strict products liability, Plaintiff included a cause of action against Defendant
Ad Art, Inc. for premises liability. Plaintiff alleged Defendant Ad Art, Inc. “. . . implemented
and/or designed a certain MGM pylon sign located within Clark County, Nevada.” Additionally,
Plaintiff alleged Defendant Ad Art, Inc. “had a duty to provide a safe and defect free environment
upon the premises of the MGM pylon sign. . .” Lastly, Plaintiff alleged, “Defendant [Ad Art, Inc.]
failed to use rea.%cnable care in the design, construction, inspection, maintenance, upkeep, control,
repairing and/or maintenance of the premises, rendering the premises unreasonably dangerous.”
Plaintiff’s allegation of premises liability does not require Defendant own or currently control the
premises in question, rather that Ad Art, Inc. breached its duty to provide a safe and defect free
environment upon the premises of the MGM pylon sign. As such, Defendant’s Motion for
Summary Judgment on premises should be denied.
1IV.  CONCLUSION

[n a Motion for Summary Judgment, all facts must be construed in favor of the non-moving
party. Given Ad Art, [nc. was listed as the contractor on the job for the MGM Sign, it can now be
held responsible for Plaintiff's claims. Alternatively, even if the present corporation is a successor
to the Ad Art, Inc. that manufactured the sign, it is still responsible under the mere continuation
exception to the general rule that successor corporations are not liable for the debts of their

predecessors.
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Plaintiff respectfully requests this Court deny Defendant Ad Art, Inc.’s Motion for

Summary Judgment in its entirety.

AN

DATED this* ./ sday of August, 2017,

BRENSKE & ANDREEVSKI

s,
7 i ;
d = e
;a‘ ,_w'_;--'f/”; s
AF : i
v e

"__}r"”\?\-’l_,bf;, AMR. BRENSKE, ESQ.
“Nevada Bar No. 1806
JENNIFER R. ANDREEVSKI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9065
RYAN D. KRAMETBAUER, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 12800
3800 Howard Huéhcs Parkway, Suite 500
Las Vegas, NV 89169

Attorneys for Plaintiff,
Charles Schueler
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ am employed with Brenske & Andreevski. I am over the age of 18 and not a party to the
within action; my business address is 3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 500, Las Vegas, NV
89169. I am “readily familiar” with the firm’s practice of collection and processing correspondence
for mailing. Under its practice mail is to be deposited with the U. S. Postal Service on that same
day as stated below, with postage thereon fully prepaid.

I served the foregoing document described as “PLAINTIFF CHARLES SCHUELER'S

OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT AD ART, INC. MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT"]

nel
on this w',,l day of August, 2017, to all interested parties as follows:

[0 BY MAIL: Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I placed a true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed
envelope addressed as follows:

J  BY FACSIMILE: Pursuant to EDCR 7.26, I transmitted a copy of the foregoing document
this date via telecopier to the facsimile number shown below:

) BY ELECTRONIC SERVICE: by electronically filing and serving the foregoing document
with the Eighth Judicial District Court's WizNet system:

Riley A. Clayton LeAnn Sanders

HALL JAFFE & CLAYTON, LLP Edward Silverman

7425 Peak Drive ALVERSON, TAYLOR, MORTENSEN & SANDERS

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128 7401 West Charleston Blvd.

Attorneys for Defendants, Las Vegas, Nevada 89117

MGM Grand Hotel, LLC, Attorneys for Defendant,

Faesimile No.: 702-316-4114 34 Composites USA Inc.,
Facsimile No.: 702-385-7000

Timothy F. Hunter

RAY LEGO & ASSOCIATES

7450 Arroya Crossing Party, Suite 230

Las Vegas, Nevada §9113

Atrorney For Defendant,

Ad Art, Inc.

Facsimile No.: 702-270-4602

i = .

! _J',. !q
. W A

'Jl ‘\ i,\ i \ I‘I/i L"E ,' LJ L, E

An empigyee of Breﬁske & /Andreevski
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DISTRICT COURIT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

= win . m-

CEARLES SCHUELER,
Plainrite,
Vs . CASE NO. A-15-722381-C

MGM GRAND HOTEL, LLC, a Domestic
Limited Liability Company, d/b/a MGM
GRAND; AD ART, INC., Foreign
Corporation; 3A COMPOSITES USA INC.,

a Foreign Corporation a/k/a ALUCOBOND
TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION; DOES 1 - 25;
ROE CORPORATIONS 1 - 25, dinclusive,

Defendants.

DEPCSITION OF TERRY J. LONG

Thursday, April 27, 2017

Reported by:
JOAN B. MERTEN
CSR No. 6922

Job No.: 378066
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TERRY J. LONG

04/27/2017

Page 2 Page 4
1 BE IT PEMEMBERED that, pursuant to Motics of | 1 EXAMINATION TNDEX
1 Depesiticn, and on Thursday, April 27, 2017, commencing at 2
3 the howr of 2:1¢ pm,, at REGUS - SAV FRANCISCC SEoWpracs | O WITESS: Temy J. lorg R
) 5 inn ¢ Cramethauer 0
4 Z(UAFE, 350 Pheds Island Styset, Souch Building, Suizs ? m@'ath Ly :(_:rm:l..: L, S_
) — 5 Zxamiration by Mr. Silverman 74, 83
S 240, San Francisco, Califormia 34103, pefors ne, ‘
§ JUIN B. MERTEN, Certifiad Shorthand leporter authorized 7 e
7 te administer caths, there personally appearsd 8
8 TERRY J. LONG, 9 EXHIBTTS
9 called a5 a witness by the Flaintif?, who beirg by me | 10 Tor the Plaintiff PRGE
10 first duly sworm, was theraupon sxamined and cestifiad as Ak S e iaue MA"ESE scaled Clges ?
e County Building Departient PERMIT,
T SRR 12 ISSUE DATS 10/05/93"
i 13 Exhipit 2 Thrss-page cocument entitled 5
13 "ARFIDAVIT OF TERRY J. LONG,
14 14 Hatas Nog, ADOODLISD - ADDGOLS2
15 15 Exhibit 3 Forty-Iour-pags cocumsat entitled 33
16 "DEFENDANT 3R CCMPCSITES USA IRC.,
17 15 f/k/a ALUCCROND TECHNCLOGIZS
[ CORPCRATION'S ZARLY CASE CONFERENCE
" 17 DISCLOSURE STATEMENT'
13 1
20 19 -=-gi- ==
1 20
22 21
23 &
| 23
24 24
25 | 25
|
Page 3 | Page S
;« APPEZARANCES | 1 {A one-page document entitled Clark County
3 For the Plaingiff: HBRENSHE & ANDREEVEXL 2 Building Cepartrent FERMIT, LSSUE DATE 10/05/93,"
. 2800 Hoverd Buches Pariomy 3 was marksd for idemtification as Plaintiff's
Suite 509
Las Vegas, Nevada 35153 4 Exhibie 1.}
L) (7021 385-3300 _ G
g BY. RYAN D. g;mmv_;q' EZ0. 5 (A three-page document antitled “AFTIDAVIT OF
{Appearing Telephonically) £ TERRY T a - ATV =4
- binaein, “t'l it & TERRY J. LONG. ® Bates Nes. ADGOG1SD - AD000152,
8 7 was marked for ideatificaticn as Plaintiff's
For the Ceponent: AD ART i
9 150 Ewscutive Park Boulevard 8 Bdubit 2.)
San Francisce, Californda 94134 g N, ) -
19 {415) BEI-5436
11 2Y: [2NA LONG, Vice President amd 10 WY J. LONG,
Ceneme, counms 11 sworn by the Cowrt Reporter, testified as follove:
12 dara . longdadart . com 2 e - 5 A 2
13 12 EXAMINATION BY MR, KRAMETHAUER
For the Defsndant 3A Composites USA Inc.,afk/a Alusobcoed " ’
12 Technologiss Corporaticn: 13 MR. HRAMETBAUER: Q. Mr. Long, my nams is Ryan
15 RLNERSON, TAYLOR, YORIEMSEN & | 14 Xrametbauer. I rspresant the plaintiff, Charles Schueler,
16 7401 West Charleston Soulevard 15 in this case. I'm with the law Firm of Brenske &
Las Vegas, Newads 83117 s 4
17 “32,""322.1009 8 186 Andrsevsici here in Las Vegas, Nevada. Okay?
+ BEz (DD SLIVERON,: 550, 7 Can [ ou to please state and spell your rame
{Bppearing Telephomically) 3 get y R :
13 251 lvermardal versantaylor. com 18 for the record.
20
Tor the Defendant Ad Mk, Tog.: 13 A. Terry, T-e-r-r-y; Long, L-0-n-g.
21 28 . Mr. leng, have ever had your depcsiticn taken
RAY LEGO & ASSOCIATES . ¢ i an
22 7450 Brroya Crossing Pariway 21 before?
Suice 2850
2 Las Vegas, Nevada 83113 2 A, Yes.
(702) 479-4361 23 Q. When was the last time you had it taken?
24
BY: TIMOTHY ?, HUNTER, ESQ. 24 A. Maybe four for five years aco.
25 {Appearing Talephonizally| by &
- Tk i 25 Q. Okay. I'm just going to go real briefly through
Litigation Services | 800-330-1112

www.litigationservices.com

262




TERRY J. LONG

[]

04/27/2017

Page 5!

Page 8

1 the ground rulss of the depesiticn process. 1 Q. Txcuse ma?
2 The lawyers like to call them the admomitions, 2 A, Yes.
3 but esmemtially it's just a long list of rulas that wa go 3 Q. At the conclusicn of the depoaitiom, you'll be
4 over at the beginning ¢f the depc. Scmetimes depositicns 4 given an opportunity to what we call read and sign your
5 can turn into conversations between me, you and coungel, { 5 depasitien trarscripk. At that point in time, you can
§ but it's impertant o ncte that we need to not talk over | & make changes to your testimomy. Hewever, I'll advise you
7 cne another, and this is so that the court reporter 7 that if you maks substantive changes -- and like in the
§ doesn't gat mad at us and alsc so we can have a clear 8 plaintiff's persomal injury world we use the example of
9 record. 9 changing, you know, a green light in an auto aceidant to a
1o Chay? 10 red light when you're reviewing your depesitien
12 A. Ckay. 11 transcript, that is semething substantive that I can use
12 Q. Thera's going to be times when sither your 12 to impeach your testimemy at the time of trial.
13 attorney or the attormeys for the other parcies that are 13 Do you understand that?
14 on the line want to lodge an cbjecticn to cne of my 14 A, Yes
15 questicns. Go ahead and let them make their cbjectiom and | 15 Q. Peel free to taks a break at any time, you know,
15 then answer my questiom. Ckay? The only time you don't 1§ whether or not you're going to go to the bathroem, get a
17 have to angwer cma of my questions is if yeu are 17 drink of water, I don't care, It's your depesitien. I
13 specifically instructed by your lawyer not to amswe. 18 want to make sure you're comfortable. If there's a
13 Okay? 15 questicn pending, please answer my guesticn and we can go
20 A, Yes, 120 off the record and you can take your time.
2L Q. You'ra doing great so far. But what I want to l 21 Cleay?
22 make you aware of is because we'rs over the telephome and | 22 B, Ckay.
21 we've -- we'ra making 4 written transcript of everythirg 23 Q. ¥r. Long, is there -- have you reviewed amy
2§ that's beirg said here by the court reporter, please avoid | 24 documents in preparaticn for ycur deposition today?
25 answers like uh-huh and hch-uh because they just don't | 25 A, No.
. Bage ?i - Dage §
1 make a clear record, Okay? So do me a f{aver and use 1 Q. Did you review your affidavit pricr to teday in
2 yes-or-no type answers and, of course, elaborate, 2 preparation for your deposition?
3 Ckay? 3 A, No.
4 A, VYes. 4 Q. Did you review any of the deposition testimomy in
5 Q. What was that? 5 this cage?
6 A, Yas, & A, HNo.
7 Q. Thank you. | 7 Q. Have you reviewed any of the records with regard
8 Scmetimes the phone cuta out, so if you can do me | 8 to the MM sign or the M2 pylon, which is the subject of
9 a favor and just speak up, I would greatly appreciats | 3 this lizigation?
10 that. 12 4 I 't have any records available, no.
1i &, Okay, 11 Q. Other than possibly having a conversation with
12 2. I want to make sure that yecu understand my 12 your lawyers in this matter or the lawyers for Ad Art,
13 questions here todsy. So if at any time you can't hear me | 13 Ine., did you talk to amybedy elis regarding your
14 because the phrme cuts out or you just don't imderstand my 14 deposition today?
15 question, please ask me to either raphrage or repeat the = 15 A, Not really, roc. I mean, you xnow, with Doug.
16 gquestion. Because if you answer one of my gueations, I'm 15 Doug and I toth know we had depesitions today, tut no real
17 going to assume that you understcod the question; is that 17 discussion.
18 fair? iB @, What did you and Doug talk about?
13 A. Yes. 13 A, Just the timing of the depositions.
20 Q. Do you understand that you're under path? 20 Q. Okay,
2L A, VYes. 21 So you didn't talk to Doug about amything
22 Q. And that that cath carries the same penalties and | 22 substantive about this cage, you were just talking to Doug
23 weight of perjury as if you were before a judge and jury., |23 about the timing of the depcs?
24 Do you understand that? 24 A. Correct.
25 A, Okay. 25 Q. At agy point in time, have you talked to Doug
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Pags 10| Page 12
1 about chis case? 1 MR. ICNG: Hang om. I'm golng to objsct for a
2 ME. LOMG: Without counsel. 2 secend.
3 ME. BWTER: I'm just going to cbijact to the 3 Can yoit vead back his first answer to that
4 extent it calls for attorney-client privileged 4 guestion. He said it right the Eirst cime, but ik got
5 commrications. | & messed up in the trapslation.
S THE REPCRTER: I'm sorry, who said that? | & {The rzcord was rzad by the reporter as follows:
3 MA. HNTER: Tim Runrer. | 7 "Gussticn: What was the name of that company?
8 THE REPCRTER: Can you identily yourselves when {3 “inswer: Basically Ad Art Zlectronic Sign
9 you speak, please? Thark yeu. 3 Corporvation. ‘hen it was a division of the mblic
10 VR, SREMETRAUER: Q. 2And Mr. Lorng, I want to : 10 company. |
11 rmake scmething very clsar. I'm mot asking you to regeat 11 MR, LONG:  Thank you.
12 anyrhing that you talked about with your lawyers. I'm i2 VR. XRAMETHAIER: (. Ckay. 3o I=c's fust back
13 sirply asking you what, if anything, you and Doug ever 13 on.
14 talxed about regarding this case. 14 So you're currently the CEO of Ad Art, Inc.; is
15 MR. HINTER: I'm going o instruct him not to 15 that correct?
16 angwer -- this is Tim Zunter -- if any of the 18 A, Yes.
17 comversations were had with Doug while T was present and n Q. And you have ownership in that compamy; is that
13 Dana Long was present. 18 corrasct?
15 WR. RAVETHARR:. That's fair erough. 13 A. Owrership in Ad Art, Tnz., yes.
i0 Q. 8o other than conversations where counsel was 20 Q. The ccapany that you'rs referzing to as Ad Art,
21 present, what did you and Doug tall about? | 2L Ing. that you'ze (EO of and have ownership iz, wien was
22 A. We haven't discussed or talked sbout this case. | 22 that canpany creatad?
A Q. Anybody else that you talked to about this case 2 A, Rpril Ist, 2003.
24 other than Doug? 24 Q. And then before you became the CEO of Ad Art,
5 A WMo, 25 Ime., you worked at a company called Arrow Sign Company,
Page 11| Page 13
i Q. ¥r. Long, what is your current job? 1 corzect?
2 A. Cuwrrently with Ad Art, Inc. 2 A. Yes,
3 Q. Yes. Wrhat's your jeb with Ad Ast, Inc.? 3 Q. and you were running sales for Arrow Simn
4 A. The CED, ¢ Company?
5 Q. And before becaming the CEO of Ad Ark, Inc., what | 5 B, Yes,
6 were yeu doing? 6 Q. How lomg were yoeu woridng at Arrow Sign Company?
7 A, Youmean the jcb preceding Ad Art, Imc.? 7 A. Roughly cwe years. A little less than two years.
8 Q. Yeah. ] Q. 5o from 2001 to 20037
3 L. T was with Arrow 3ign Company. 9 A, ¥Yas. Veah, mavbe from -- maybe April or May -- I
10 Q. And what were you doing for Arrow Sign Company? 10 think May of 2001 tc March or february, March 2003, It's
1 L. Rumning their salass., |11 a litrle less than twa years,
12 Q. Did you have an cwnarchip interest in Arrow Sign | 12 Q. And it's my understanding from your testimony was
13 Corpany? 113 that you wers juat running salee for Arrow Sign Company,
14 A. No. | ze you didn't have an cwnership interest, correct?
15 Q. And before Arrow Sion Company, who were you 15 A. Yes, corrsct.
16 working for or working as? 15 Q. And then prior to your positiom in rumning sales
17 K. Would have been che old Ad art. 17 for the Arrow Sign Campamy, you had a job with what you
18 Q. What was the name of that company? | 18 refer to as the cld Ad Arc?
i9 A. Basically Ad Art Elactrenic Sign Corporatiom. | 13 A. Cid Ad Art, yes.
20 When if was a division of the public company. ! 20 Q. Which you're rafarring to Ad Art Blectric Sign
21 Q. Ad Art Blectric 5ign Corporation, is that the | 21 Company; is that correct?
22 name of the ccmpany? ‘ 22 MR. LOAG: Cbjection. Mischaracterizes his
23 4. VYes. | 23 testimony.
24 Q. And what was your positicn with Ad Art Electric 24 MR, MRAMETRAUER: Q. Feel fres to correct me if
25 Sign Copany? 25 I['m wrong.
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i YR. LONG: Ad Art Slectronic Sign Corporation. I | 1 from 1975 until December of 2000,

2 had har read the answer back. I 2 Q. Okay.

3 MR. (RAVETSAUER: vhat did I say? k] 8o back ir 1568 to 1570, did you own any intersst
4 MR, LONG: You sald “Ad At Zlectric Sicn 4 in Ad Art Electric -- excuse me, Ad Art Electroniz Siem

5 Conpany.t 5 Cerperation?

5 VR. MREMETEAUER: Okay. I apoleglize. | g A, The neme wasn't that back then, but let's just

? Ad Zxt Electric Sign Comrenv, ' 7 call it Ad Ari the old comparry. And mo, I didn't cwa

B MR, LoNG: No. 8 anything frcm 1968 to 1370,

5 MR, XRAMETEAUER: Incorporated. 9 Q. I can't refar ko it as that because I'va been

19 MR, LONZ: Ne. Try again. 10 corrected by your lawyer multipls times, So I want to

11 MR. KRMMETRRUER: Ad Art Rlectric 3ign 11 make mure we've very clear that we'rs talking about the

12 Corporation. 12 right corporation. Olay?

13 MR, LONG: Eehh. »Ad Art Blackronic Sign 13 5o back in 1968 to 1370, what was the company

14 Corporazion was the originsl znewer to the gquestion. 14 that you wers working for that yecu're referring to as

15 MR, KAMETRAGER: ALl right. Let's go off the 15 ad Art?

16 rzcord reai quick here. is A. Tne company that [ worked for was Ad Art, and I
17 MR, LONG: Are you off the rscord? 17 doa't know the -~ I don't Jmow che legal name of the

13 THE REFCRTER: Vea, 18 company then, it Che company's rame that I worked for was
18 YR, LONG: ALl right, We'rs off. 19 ad Art,
20 (Ciscussion off the record.) ; 20 Q. Did yeu have any ownership interest in that
21 MR, KRAMETHAUER: &ALl rignt, Let's gC on. . 21 company in 1968 to 19702
2 g. 8o Mr. iong, the company that you worked for l22 K. Mo,
23 prior to running sales at Arrow Sign Company was Ad Art 23 Q. Who owned that company back then?
24 Electzonic Sign Corperaticn; is that correct? 24 A. Thers wers three owners,
25 A, Yes., The company I worked Sor had several names, | 25 Q. What are their names?

Page 15 B FPage 17

1 buc cne of them was ad Arc Electrenic Sign Corporaticn. 1 A. Lou Zapais, John Papais and Dan O'Leary.

2 Q. What were tke gther names of Ad Art Electronic 2 Q. And then £rom 1970 to 1976, what were you doing?
3 $ign Corporatim? 3 A. I was in che sion business from 1370 to 1975,

+ A. The old company had meny names for the years I 4 Q. and who were you working for during that time?

5 worxed thers and I don't remember them all, franily. | 3 A. Coast 5igns and QRS Slons.

1 Q. Do you remenber amy of them? 5 Q. QRS 5igns?

7 A Basically A3 Art. You keow, I was in sales with | 7T A. Yes, (RS Signs,

3 the company, 50 ot on che naming side. i 8 Q. You worked for twec companies, Cocast Signs and QRS
] @ﬂMWmmmmmmhmmMMmu?jﬁmm
10 A. Ikt was primarily referred to as Ad Art. 10 L. Yes.
11 Q. Anything else? i1 Q. Did yeu work for beth those companies at the same
1 A, You koew, it had various legal names throughour . 12 time, or was it cna for a couple of years and then the
13 the years, and I don't ramesber all of the names. 13 other ane for a couple of years?
14 Q. Do you remember any of the names? 14 A. Coast Signs from '70 to '72, and then QRS from
i5 A, No, not suffisisntly to state them and be certain |18 '72 tao ' 75.
1§ that T'm stating them morrscely. 16 Q. I just want to pack up a little bik.
17 Q. Okay. 17 When you worked for the company that you referred
18 When you warked for Ad Art Electronic Sign 18 to as Ad Art from 1968 to 1970 and that corcany was owned
19 Corporation, did you own a part of that corpamy? 19 by Lou Papais, John Papais and Dan 0'Leary, what was your
20 MR. LONG: Obiection. Vague as to time. | 20 job from 1368 to 13707
al THE WITNESS: Yes. Give me the years you're 2l &, I wag in sales in the San Jose office.
22 talking about. 22 Q. Arnd then you moved from working at Ad Art in 1970
23 MR, KRMMETBAUER: G. How long were you with A2 | 23 to start working at Coast Sigms from 1970 to 1972; ia that
2% Art Electric Sign Corporation. 24 correct?
25 A. I was with Ad Art from 1968 to 1570, And chen 25 A. Yes, '70 to '76, really.
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1 Q. Well, I thought yeu worked at Coast Signs from i 1 you ceasad cperaticns in 19782
2 '70 to '72 and QRS Signs from '77 to '76, 2 &, Perhaps 30.
3 A. In 197) I was the prime purcheser -- the prime 3 Q. why did you close the business?
4 gerson who Dought Coast Signs, And in '72 bought GRS, So | 4 A. We -- 111372 -- in '73 and '74 when essentially
¢ from '70 £o '75 it was Coast QHS. 5 the econcmic crisis hic this arsa, the accounts we had
§ Q. Okay. & stopped expanding, so we stopped making money and decided
7 What did you do for Coast Signs? 7 to close the business.
E A, Sales. And ran the compary. 8 Q. Did anybedy puzchase Ccast QRS --
3 Q. Okay. P9 A Yo
10 ¥hat does that entail? i1 Q. -- cr did iz just dissolve?
11 A I'm sorxy? 1 A. Dissolved,
12 Q. What does that entail? As part of your job 12 Q. Did you sell any of your equipment?
13 description, what were you doing from day te day? 3 A, Tes,
14 A, Maraging the busicess and selling. h s Q. Who was the equipment scld ta?
15 0. BAnd whers was Ccast Signs located? 15 A, Idon't veeall.
18 A. Redwood City, Califormia. 15 Q. How abeut your cliantas, where did yeur clients
17 2. And then did you leave Coast Signs to work with : 17 go?
i8 QRS or did they merge? 113 A4. T wmld think that -- well, most of the clients
1% A. We bought CRS in 1972. RS of San Francisco in E 13 at tkat time had stopped expanding, so I don't woiow whers
20 187, we beught that, and changed cur nars to Coast CRS. 20 they went.
i1 Q. Did yeu own Coast Signs or were you a part owner | 21 Q. A1l right.
22 1in Cpast Signs? 22 Let ask you this: wWhen you stopped operaticns
23 A, Yes, I owned Coast Sigms. 23 for Coast GRS in 1376, did those clients then became
24 Q. Were you the sole owner? 24 clients of Ad Art?
25 A, No, I nad cne partmer. 25 R. Scme may have, but, you lmow, not any kind of
Page 13| Page 21
1 Q. What was your partner's name? | 1 primary account.
2 A, Tom Cooper. 2 Q. fCan you give me an estimate of how many accounts
3 Q. 1Is Mr. Cooper atill alive? 3 went from Coast QRS whem it closed to Ad Art?
e 4, o, 4 A. Mot really. I den't recall,
5 Q. 2nd then Coast Signs bought QRS Signs to them | 5 Q. 350 when you closed Coast QRS in '76, your next
§ became Ccast QRS; is that correct? 6 jcb was with Ad Act; im that correct?
7 Yes. 7 A, Yes. Yms,
8 Q. Ard did you cwn Coast QRS? | 8 Q. And do you know the legal name of Ad Art in 13767
9 A. I was a partnsr -- primary partner in Coast QRS. | § A. Tome again, Ad Arc. But T don't. I don't
10 Q. Weo was your other partner? 13 regall the legal name. But it was Ad Axt, old ad Art.
1 5. Floyd Troyer. [11 Q. BAnd when they hired you, what was your positicn
12 Q. Can you spell Lloyd's last name Eor me? 12 in 19767
13 A, T-r-g-y-e-r, 13 A. Sales in the Bmeryville office.
14 Q. 1Ia Floyd Troyer still alive? | 14 Q. In the Emeryville office?
15 A. No. 1 A. Yes.
15 Q. So aftar 1976, what did you do? 15 Q. And them after ycu were in charge of sales in the
17 A. T went back to werk for ad Art and closed down 17 Emeryvilie office, what did you do?
18 Ccast (RS. 18 A, Meaning -- I mean, [ basically was in sales in
19 Q. 5o you closed Coast QRS im 13757 19 the Emeryville office and worked account work.
20 A, Yes, 120 Q. I mean, let's do this: So from 1576 omward, what
¥33 Q. Did yeu file bankmuptey? Did you just liguidate | 21 wers your jobe at Ad Act?
22 it? What happened? 22 A. I was in sales at Ad Art from 1976 to 1930. And
23 A. Essentially liguidated it. T gquess that would ke |23 then in 1980 I went to Saudi Arabla to work a project in
2¢ the proper answer. No, we did not file bankruptcy. 24 Saudi Arabia at the airport in Riyacdh for Ad Art. And
25 Q. Eow many erployees did you have at Coast QRS when | 25 GChen came back and worked in sales for Ad Art, and then
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1 actually went t3 Saudi Arabia and lived in Saudi Arabia | 1 Q. So in 1986 you acquired cwmership in Ad Art; is

that corrsct?

Ves. ¢ld Ad Art, yes.
what was your ownership interest in 13867
what
How much of the company did you own, if you lmow?
208,
Did that mmber ever inoreass as the years went
ol to 20007

A. Mo

So up until 2000, you still ovmed 20% of Ad Art?

Acteally, Ad Art scld in '38, roughly

dp you mean “interesc??

e rere

A, Well, mo,

*8B.
Q. Okay,
So in 1998, roughly, who was Ad Art sold to?
A. In '98 it was scld to a public corperation ramed
La-Man.

3. And did you have any ownership interest in La-Man
after the sale?

A. T had shares, some sharss of stock, yes.

Q. How mch? How many shares of stoeck in Le-Man did
you own?

A, I dom't recall.

Q. Were thers any shares -- was Ad Art its own
corporation with public shares or was it only La-Man?

2 Zor a couple of years, '84 to ‘86, 2
3 Q. So you frem 1376 o 1980 you worked in sales for

4 Ad Art in the Emeryville cffice; ia that corxect? [
3 A Yes, 5
5 Q. And then in 1380 you went to Saudi Arabia Jor an 5
7 Ad Art project? 7
3 A, ¥es, In 1978 the Zmeryville office, and they 8
5 alsc hought Federal Signs and moved the Emeryville office | §
10 to the Cakland office, eo it was Emeryville/Cakland, so... |10
53 Q. I appreciate the clarification. 11
12 Hew lomg were you in Saudi Arahia tuilding the 12
13 project an bahalf of Ad Art? 13
14 A. How Iong did T live thevs or how long ddd I -- 1

15 Q. Yeah. Se ycu said you went to Saudi Arabia 15
16 specifically for a prodect Zor Ad Art, What was that 18
7 again? {1
18 A. I wenc o Ssudi Arabia for the projact in Saudi 18
19 Arabia for Ad Art. It was the airport in Riyach, Savdi 13
20 Arabia. 0
21 Q. Adrport in Riyada. Got it, I apologize. il
22 And how long éid it take Ad Art to conduct the 22
23 project in Saudi Arabia in Riyadh? 23
24 A. 1980 to 1385, 4
5 Q. S¢ it was a six-year project? i 5

“Page 23

1 A. Essentially, yes. 1
2 Q. Sc it sounded to me -- I'm not trying teo trick 2
3 you or acthing. I'm really trying to get a timeline here. 3
4 So from 1980, did you ever -- to 1386, did you 4
5 eaver came back to the states and work for Ad Ast in the 5
§ states for a period of time, or were you solely in Saudi 5
7 Arabia fram 1980 to 15862 7
8 A. From '80 to 'S4 I went back and forth. From ‘84 8
9 to '88 I was in Saudl Azabia. 5
10 Q. Okay. Thank you. 10
1 Ard then what did you do aftsr 19867 11
12 A. Came back tc the office in Cakland for Ad Art. 2
13 Q. Ard what was your jcb them, still in sales? 13
14 A, VYes, 14
15 Q. And hew long did you stay in -- from 1386 coward, | 15
16 bow lorg did you stay in sales in Oakland? 16
17 A. From '85 -- stayed in sales from '8¢ until 2000. 17
18 Q. Did ycu ever acquire ownership in Ad Act from '85 | L

15 ko 20007 13
20 A. Yes, 20
21 Q. When? 21
22 A. In '88. 2
23 Q. So in -- did you ever acquire ownership prior to | 23
24 '867 24
25 A No. 25

Page 25

A. Was ad Art sold --

Q. Let me ask yocu this:
La-Man and, at the same time,
Ad Art?

A. Mo, La-Man bought A4 Art.

Q. Ohay.

In roughly 19587
i ST B
Q. And after the sals, you owned shares of La-Man;

Did you own gharss of
still have an interest in

ig that correct?

A. Correct.

Q. You dom't recall how mamy?

A. [ dom't recall how mamny.

@. Do you know whers you'd be able to find that
information?

4. I mean, I might have that information scmewhere,
but I don't -- you kmow, in the end it was worthless, so
ro, 1 don't know what happened to those shares.

Q. So how long did La-Man own Ad Art?

A. La-Man became Display Technologies, changed its
aame to Display Techrologies.

Q. So La-Man wasn't sold to Display Technologies, 1t
became -- it changed its name to Display Technologiss?

&. (Changed its name to Display Tachnologies. And
Display Technologiss cwned Ad Art untdl it dissolved.
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1 €. Ias it fair to say that when La-Map purchaged |1 1 Q. You were president of Ad Art before the sale, and
2 Ad Art, La-Man wes the parent corperation of Ad Art or did | 2 you were president of Ad Azt after the sale and you alse
3 2d Art beccme [a-Man bhecause it purchased it? 3 owned shares of stock in La-Man, the parent corporatice,
4 A. La-Man was a parent corporation of Ad Art. 4 i3 that corzect?
S ILa-Man was 2 public company that cwmed -- 5 A, Yes,
f Q. Okay. 6§ Q. Do you imow if Dan O'Leary, even though he
7 And then when did La-Man change its name to 7 retired, cwned shares of steck in La-Man?
8 CDisplay Techmologies? 3 A. Ee did not.
3 A, Maybe '78, '73 -- I mman, '88, '89, scmswhers in | 3 Q. nd Lou being cn the board of directcrs, do you
il there [ 19 lorow if he owned any shares of stock in La-Man?
11 Q. Did you have a hand in the name change? F11 A, Yes, he 4id.
12 A, No. Mot me persomally, no. ! 12 Q. Do you znow how many sharas?
13 Q. Whose deciszion was it to make the pame change? 1l 13 A. No.
14 A, it was the chairman of Za-Man, and sore of the | 14 Q. Then in zhout 1338, 1593 La-Man makes the
15 beard of directors of La-Man that made the pame change. 15 decision to change its name to Display Technologies; is
16 Q. In 1938 when La-Man purchased Ad Art, Ad Art {16 that correct?
17 still cperated :mder the name of Ad Art; is that correct? 17 A, Yes,
18 A. CTorrect. 18 Q2. And 24 Art is still operating as a subsidiary of
153 Q. Now, I just want to back up here. And I ! 19 that corporation; is that correct?
20 apologlaze, bub thal's just the way my wind works. l el A Tes.  Ad At was wwosld Dy Chab conpocation.
i But back in 1986, you had acquired 20% gwpership |21 Q. And you were still president of Ad Art even
22 interest in Ad Arty is that correct? 22 though La-Man had changed its name to Display
23 B. Yes. 23 Technologies, correct?
24 Q. Who else -- or wiho were your partners at that 24 A, Yes,
25 time? i Q. What happened after 1338 -- or, excuse me, 1998
Page 27 Pag= 23
1 k. Lou Papais, John Papais and Dan O'Leary. 1 or 1399 when the name change was made? Take me Iforwaxd
2 Q. And when La-Man purchased Ad Art, where did Lou 2 now, What was your jcb at Ad Art?
3 Papeis, John Papais and Dan O'leary go? Did they go along | 3 A. President.
4 with it? 4 Q. After the name change to Display Techmnologies,
5 MR. LONG: Obdecticn, Vague, 5 you're still president of Ad Azt? Do you ever bave
5 MR. KRAMETBAIER; Q. ©Go ahead and answer, § another positicn at Ad At other than presidant?
7 4. Dan O'leary retired. John Papais had passed Y A. 1In 1993, 1999, no other positiom, no.
8 away. And Lou Papais stayed on as a consultant and on the : 3 Q. Going forward to 2000.
§ beard of divectors, | 3 3. I was president in 2000 umtil Bugust or
10 Q. Stayed on the board of directers of Ad Art or on : 10 September.
11 the board of directors of La-Map? i Q. Of 20002
12 A. Let me restata that. Actually, I think he was on ' 12 A, Yas.
13 the board of directors. On the board of dirsctors of 113 Q. Okay.
14 Ta-Man. 14 And during the time that Display Technologies was
15 Q. Okay. 15 the parent corporation of Ad Art where you were president,
18 So when Ad Art was sold in 1358 to La-Man, Lou | 16 did your -- did the mmber of shares that you owned in
17 atayed on and was a consultant and on the board of 17 Display Technologies increase during that time?
18 directors of La-¥an, Jobn had passed away and Dan O'Leary | 18 A, No.
19 retired, correct? 13 Q. If you xmow, who were the main owners of Display
20 A, Yes. 20 Technologies?
21 Q. What was your position? L MR. LONG: Objection. Eacks foundation.
22 E. In Ad Art? 22 THE WITWESS: I dem't rscall. It was a public
23 Q. Yeah. In 1998 when La-Msn purchased Ad Art, what |23 corporation.
24 became your positicm after the sale? 24 MR. KRMVETBAUER: Q. De you kmow who owned a
25 A, T was president before and after the sale. 25 majority of the stock?
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1 B. Icen't. 1 at Arrow Sign Company?

2 Q. Were you ever cn the board of dirsctors for Z A. No. Mo erployment, no.

3 Display Tachnologies? 3 Q. Ckay.

4 A, Yes. 4 Who owned Arrow Sign Corpany?

5 Q. #hen did you become a member of the board of 3 A, Chuck sterm.

§ directors for Display Technologies? H Q. Anybody elge?

7 A, In '98, ki A. AL the time his brother still owned a piece of

] Q. 5o when it was first purchased -- when La-Man 8 1it, but wasn't thers.

9 £irst purchased Ad Art, you were cn La-Man's beard of 2 Q. And you worked in sales or running sales for
10 directors, and then when they changed their name, you were 10 Arrow Sign Company until 2003. And then what happened?
11 also 3 member en the board of directers for Display pal A. I had werked there for the couple of years

12 Technologies; ia that corract? | 12 pecause Thuck had promisad to sell the company. And when
13 A. Yes. | 13 he didn't, ultimately I left.

i4 Q. And you sat an tae board of directors of Display | 14 Q. 5o when you left Arrow Sign Cempany, what did you
15 Technologies until the year 20007 ! 15 de?

15 A, Uncil, I would say, about August or Septembar of | 16 A. Leoked for -- lecked to buy sicn companies.
17 2600, yes. |1 Q. Did you end up buying a sign company?
18 Q. What happened in Auqust or Septezber of 20007 |13 A o

15 4. I was removed as president of Ad Art. 13 Q. What did you do?

20 Q. wWhy? 20 A. Ulcimately started Ad Art. New Ad Art.
21 MR. LONG: Chiectiem. ILacks foundsticn. Calls 21 Q. ¥ho did you start Ad Art or new Ad Art,
22 for speculatian. 2 quota-unquote, with?
23 MR, KRAMETBAUER: (. You can answer, a A. Say it again.
24 A, Most likely because Display Technologies stock Ll Q. Who did you start the new Ad Art with? Was it
45 was not doing well. 35 just you?

Page 31 Pag= 33

1 Q. Now, were you also removed from the board of 1 It was myself and Javamy Andersom.

2 directors of Display Technologies? 1 Had Jersmy worked with you at the, quote, old Ad
3 B, TYes, 3 Art?

4 Q. At that same time? & A. He had worked not with me -- well, he had worked
5 A, Yes. 5 at the old Ad Art.

§ Q. And then what happened? § Q. Do you know what be did?

7 MR, LCNG: Chjection. Vagque, |7 A. He was in some type of project managerent.

g MR, SINTER: Cbjscticn, Vaque and ambiquous, ] Q. 2Anybedy else other than you and Jersmy create

g MR. ¥KRAMETEAUER: Q. What happened afrer you the, guote, new Ad Art?

10 were removed as president of Ad Art and lost your 10 A. Bob Misrsjcmyk.

11 membership on the beard of directors for Display 11 Q. It's my understanding that Bob Riasrejczyk also
12 Technolagy? | 12 worked at the, quote, old Ad Art; ig that correct?

12 MR, LONG: Same abjectiem. 13 A, Ves.

4 THE WITNESS: I was dismissed, let go in Dacamcer | 14 Q. Anybedy else start at the new, quote, Ad Art with
1= of 2000 15 you?

1€ ME. {RAMETEAUER: Q. And where did you go work 3 A, GStarting it -- so we startad in Aprdl of 2003.
17 after that or at that time? 17 Are you saying right at the start-up, at the beginning?
18 A. From that time until about Mey of the following 18 Q. Or shortly thereafter.
19 vyear I was not employed. 19 A. I mean, shortly thersafter Bob joined and Joy
20 Q. So from Decamber 2000 to May of 2001 you were 20 Turnipsesd joined.
21 unemployed. L Q. What abcut Duane Contento?
22 And then it looks like you took a jcb at Arrow ' 22 A. GSpecifically what about Duanz?
23 Sign Corparmty running sales; is that correct? ' a3 Q. Y%hen did Duane join Ad Art?
24 A. Correct. 24 A. I think about a year later. Maybe nine momths to
25 Q. Anytaing in between being unemployed and your job | 25 a year later.
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1 Q. Had scmecne also worked at the, quots, old Ad | 1 A, It was definitely Ad Art. Definitely ad Art.

2 Art? | 2 Q. Are you testifying that you don't xnow the legal
3 A, Yes. | 3 name of the capany at the time arcund 1893, 1934, or are
4 Q. Weat about Loug Head? 4 you testifying that the corpany's name was Ad Art?

i A, He jolned 3 year, year and a half later. 5 A, I'mtsstifyving that while Ad Art Elsctrenic Simm
§ 2. And Doug had also worked at the, quote, old Ad § Corporaticn was 2 nsme that was used, basircally it was Ad
7 Art? | 7 Art. And so, you imow, it probably was at chat time a

g A, ¥es. 2 orcoer name.

3 Q. What about Jack Dubois? 8 Q. And you're referring to Ad Art Elsctronic Sign
16 A, Jack Dubois -- you mean when did he join the new | 10 Corporation?

11 2d Axt, is that what you're asking? 11 A, Yes.
32 Q. Yaah, 12 Q. Now, during this time, 1993 ko 1934, correct me
13 A. I donm't remenber swactly when Jack joined us, but | 13 if T am wreng, you were working in sales in Calkland?

14 somecime aftsr -- I don't raverber when. i 14 A. T was based in Cakland. T was president of the
1 ¢. Jack had also worked at the, quota, old Ad Art 115 compamy. T wes working in sales in all of the divisicns.
15 A, Yes, I 15 Q. When did you become president of the company?

7 Q. Now, I'm locking -- 17 A. 1985,

18 Madan Couct Reporter, hava we received the 13 0. So at the time that Ad Art was involved in the
18 exhibits yet? 19 original desgign and construction of the M@ gylen in or
20 THE REECRTER: No. You wanc me To go look? 20 about 1933 to 1994, you wera president of that comparny; is
21 VR. ¥RAMETBAUER: No, don't worry apoutb it. 1 that correct?

22 Q. M. Long, do you remember authoring an affidavit |2 A. Yes.
23 on or about November 18th of 20152 23 Q. What, if anything, do you recall about the design
24 A, TYes, 24 and construction of the M3 pylom in or about 1393 er

25 Q. And I belisve you have a copy of that handy; is 25 15942

Fage 35/ Bage 137

1 that correct? It's been previously marked as Plaintiff's 1 ¥MR. LONG: Objecticn.

2 Exhibit 2. 2 MR. HUNTER: Cbjection. Vague ard ambigucus and
3 Do you see that? | 3 owerbread.

4 B, Yes. 4 MR, LONG: Go abead and answer.

5 Q. bow, we've gene through this just by virtue of 5 THE WITNESS: Please ask the question again,

6 going through your work history., It states that "Ad Art g MR. KRAMETBAUER: Madam Court Reporter, can you
7 Electronic Sign Corporation” -- this is paragraph 3 of 7T read that back for me?

B youwr document s0 you can follow along. 3 [The rscord was read by the reporter as follows:
g Do you see that? 9 Questicn: what, if anything, do you recall
ib A, ¥es, 10 about the design and constructicn of the M3 pylon ia
13 Q. -- "wag invelved in the original design and 1 1L or about 1993 or 199477)

12 construction of the MG pylen in or about 1993 or 1994.° 12 THE WITNESS: I mean, [ rzcall the develcpment

13 Do you see that? 13 and the design of the M sign with the company that owned
14 A, VYes. 14 it with MGH.

5 Q. And you were working for Ad Art Eleetromic Siem | 15 MR, ¥RAMETEMUER: Q. What company was that?

1§ Corporaticn at the time; i that correct? ] A, It was Kerkerian.

i7 A, Cefinitely was working for Ad Art at the time, 17 Q. Did you deal directly with M2@

16 yes, Ad Art. 18 A. I dealt divectly with Fred Benninger, who
18 Q. 5o it appears to me -- I mean, it appears from 13 represented MGM; and Kerkorian, who owned it.
20 your affidavit that the legal name of the company at that | 20 MR, LONG: Let me stop right there. Hang om,
21 time was Ad Art Electronic Sign Corporation; is that 21 Ryan, Your exhibits are here, You want me to hand them
2% corzect? 22 to the court reporter?
23 MH. LONG: CObjection. Mischaracterizes tha 23 MR, KHAMETHAUER: That's fine. We!'ll do that

24 document. The document speaks fer itself, 24 later.

25 MH, KRAMETBAUER: . You can answer, 25 Q. You dealt with Fred Benninger. Can you spell his
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1 last rame? 1 A, Qld Ad Art, no.  Mew Ad At?

2 A, B-z-p-i-n-n-g-e-r [sic]. 2 Q. No, new Ad Art?

3 THE REFCRTER: I['m sorry, <an you Iepean that? 3 &, Mew Ad Art fas an office in Stockton, yes

4 THE WITNHSS: B-e-n-i-n-n-g-g-r {sic]. 4 Q. Is it the same offica?

3 MR, CEMETRATER: {. Wow, Fred, do you have 3 A. M.

5 lmowlecge iF he was working at M7 5 Q. Is it near the old office?

Vi A I'm sormy? 7 A, Yes.

3 Q. Was he working for M3 or on behalf of MaM? a Q. Hew cloge is it?

3 A, On behall cf M3, yss. § A. Maybe a ccuple hundrad f2et.

10 Q. Do you kmow if Fred is still alive? | 16 Q. Sc it's right pext door?

11 A, He is not alive. b1 A, Essemtially.

12 Q. Do you know when Tred passed away? 2 Q. Weat hagpened with all these ald recorda?

13 A, Mo |53 A. Youimew, I left -- ITwasl

14 Q. Had you and Prad worked together om other | t4 2068, and escentially what happened after that was a

15 projects? | 15 liguidacion. So I don't kmow what happerned ic all of the
16 A, Mo. 16 records.

17 Q. I mean, thig bappened scme time ago, and it's odd | 17 Q. So acgerding to your affidavit, there was a

14 to me that you remember dealing with Fred Benminger. How | 18 Lliguidatiom of the Ad Art Electric Sign Corporatior

19 do you know him? 19 assets. Ard it looka like NASCO Electric Sign Oo., LIC
20 A. He was the person designated to manage the design | 20 purchased the name Ad Art, the telephone mumber and the
21 of the sign and communicate with Ad art and with th Il Web address; is that your understanding?
22 oweer. 2 A %85,

23 Q. Now, did you deal dirsctly with Rizk Rezkorlan or | 23 Q. What else --

24 juat Fred? 24 MR. LONG: Ryan, can we taks a bresak here?
23 A. Just Frad, 25 MR. XRAMETBAUER: Sure.

Page 39 Page 41

1 Q. Who else would Fred talk to at Ad Art besides L MR, LONG. 1It's been an hour.

2 yourself? 2 MR, MRAMETBAUZR: Let me just get my last

3 A, As T recall, primarily just myself. 3 guestion cut.

4 Q. Were you the lead gquy on the M project? 4 MR, LONG: Fine.

3 MR. LONG: Objection. Vague. 5 MR, KRAMETRRUER: Q. Mrat slse was purchased in
5 THE WITWESS: When you say "lead”. .. i & that transacricn, to your knowledge?

7 MR, KRAMETBAURR: Q. Yeah. Would you classify | 7 MR. IONG: Objecc. Objection. Vague.

8 yourself as the lead person on behalf of Ad Art that was E 8 THE WITNESS: When you say ‘purchased"...

5 handling the M® pylon sign construckion and installation? 3 VR, MRAMETBATER: . Yeah, what alse was

13 VR. LONG: Same objection. |10 purchased in that liquidation by NASCC?
1 THE WITNES3: I was president of the company and | 1l A, I don't know.

12 with Fred put sogether the contract, the design camtract. i2 Q. Do you know if anybody purchased Ad Art ESC's

13 MR. YRAMETRAIER: Q. Do you have a copy of that | 13 equipment?

18 contract today? 4 A, It was liguidated, but I den't Jmew -~ I have no
15 i %. 15 koowledge of how or to whom -- whers Chat sguipment went,
16 Q. Where would a copy of that contract be? 16 ro, I don't kmow.

17 MR. TONG: Tacks foundarion. Calls for 17 MR, XRAMETBAUER: Okay. We'll go ahead and take
18 speculation. 18 a quick break.

13 THE WITNESS: All of the records -- I have mo 119 MR. LOWG: OFf the record.

20 rzcords from Ad Arc. ‘The old A4 art. 0ld A Mt ! 20 {4 recess was taken from 3:13 pom. te 3:25 pam)
21 MR, ERAMETBAUER: . Where would the records Fal ME. ERAMETRAUER: Back on the record.

22 from the old &d Art be? a2 Q. So Mr. Long, do you have any knowledge as to the
23 A. They would have been in Stockten, at che old Ad | 23 whereabouts of the records kept at the Stockton facility
24 Art office in 3Stockton. | 24 of Ad Art after the sale to NASCO?
25 Q. Ad Art still has an office in Stocktom, correct? | 25 A, No.
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1 Q. Because it's my urderstanding that records of the | 1 Q. 2nd what is the building that Ad Azt is in now in
2 ¥OM pylon sign would have been housed in Steckton; ia that | 2 Stockten?
3 correct? 3 A. I don't have the mumber, but it's on Ad Art Road.
i MR, LOMG: Zalls for sperulation. lLacks 4 0. You said 3133 North ad art Road?
5 foundation l 5 A, Was the old address, the address for old A Artc.
3 THE WITNESS: Records of the M3 -- say that | & 2. Okay. Bear with me here for a mimute.
T again, plaase. 7 Do you know what business is at 3133 now?
8 ¥R. IRAMETSAUER: (. Records regarding the :} A, Yes.
9 construction and design of the M3 pylan from 1993 or ] Q. What iz it?
10 1994, those would nave been kept at the Stockicn office of | 19 A, Arrow 3ign Conpary.
11 M Ar: E5C? [ 12 0. Did Arrew Sign Cempamy purchase the building from
12 A, Yes. It would have been kept at thas 3teckton ' 12 Ad Art or from Display Technologiss?
13 office of M axk, yes. | 1 MR. LONG: Lacks foundation, Calls for
11 Q. And ther at scme point in time Ad Art ESC -- the i1 spamulation.
15 name vas purchased by MNASCO; is that correct? 15 Go ehead.
15 A. MASCO purchased tae Ad Avt nasme duving the 15 THE WITMESS: No.
17 liguidacion. 17 MR. MEAVETEAUER: Q. Do you lmow if Arrow Sign
18 Q. Let me ask you this: Do you know who cwned the | 13 owns 3132 Ad Art Road?
19 building in Stocktcn where those records would have been 13 A, Idom't kow.
20 xept prior to the sale to MASCO? 20 g. Do you know who owns it oow?
23 A, I belisve -- you xnow, I'm not sura who did at P33 A. I don't know who owas it now,
22 tre time, i22 Q. But 3133 Ad Art Road is where Ad Azt opezatad out
13 Q. Did Display Technologiea or Ad Art cwm the {23 of in 1353 and 1334; is that correct?
24 building in Stockton? 24 A. Was the headguarters of the compary, yes.
25 A. If Ad Art cwoed the bwilding ab the time, it was |35 2. Do you know what the pames of che campaniss are
Page 43 . R Page 45
1 3old to Display Techmologiss or fa-¥an -- it became | L currently in that area? It locks like there's abcut four
3 Display Technologies, then they would have owred ik, But 2 or five buildings in that area. Do you know the names of
3 I don't kow -- | 3 the cupanies in that area?
4 Q. OCkay. I apologize, I didn't mean to intermupt Py &, which area?
5 you. You sald no -- 5 Q. Ia Stockion, in that 3133 Ad Azt Road area.
g A. Igon't recall at the time who owned the property | 6 In 3133 there's Arrow Sign Company, correct?
7 for surs, 7 A. Ye2ah, the name of the company i3 Arrow Sign
8 Q. Because NASCO is now in that building that Ad Art 3 Corpany.
§ or Display Tecknologies used to be; is that correct? 3 Q. Okay.
16 A. No. ;10 And that's the company you used to work for; is
11 ¢. That's not correct? | 11 that correct?
12 . Yes, rhat's not correct 12 A, ¥esm,
13 §. I thought that NASCO and Ad Art had buildings |13 Q. Did you work for them when they were in that
14 right next deor to cme another. 14 building?
15 A. Next door, yes. 13 4. Yes, I belisve so0.
15 Q. Olay. | 18 Q. And them Ad Art currently has a building or
17 A. But nct -- separate properties. 17 operates cut of a building in that same area; is that
13 Q. Right. | 1 correct?
15 The old Ad Art, their office or their Imilding in | 19 & New A Art has an office on Ad Axt Road in chac
20 Stockzon is not the building that NASCO is in now? 20 area, vyes.
21 A. Correct. The old Ad Art building in Stockton is | 21 Q. And WASCO is right next door to it?
22 npot the huilding thet A0 is in. 22 A XYes,
23 Q. What is the address of the old Ad Art building? 23 Q. Do you rmow what the other -- therse's two other
24 A. 3133 North Ad Art Road, I'm doing that off the 2¢ buildings to the south of Ad Art and NASCD,
25 top of my head. 25 Do you imow the name of those companies or the
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Page 48
cempanies that are in those buildinge?
R. I think the buildings to the south are Arrow 3ign
Compary buildings.
R Day.

Page
Ad Art oifice in Las Vegas?
A, Possibly, but not crobable.
2. %o when you left Ad Art in 2000, were those
documents still located at 3133 Ad Art Road?

1

2

3

4

5 When you worked at Arrow Sign Company, o you 3 MR. IONG: Objecticn. ILacks foundatien.

§ Jmow when -- strike that, 8 THE WITWESS: When T was let go 13 2004,

7 When Ad Art moved cut of 3133 Ad Arc Read, Arrow 7 presurably those records were still there.

8 moved in? 8 FR. KREMETRAUER: €. Who at Ad Art would have

5 MR. LO¥G: Objection. lacks foundation and $ maintained these vecords wnen you left in 2060, when yeu
1% mischaracterizes the testimony. 10 wers let go?

11 TEE WITNESS: I mean, [ worxsd at Ad Art uptil i1 A. T have no idea.

12 Decerper 2000. Ad Art was liguidated aftsr that. I dom't |12 Q. Like where in that office wera they kept? Weze
1) ‘'wow when M Art moved cut of the Stockton facility 13 they ir scmecne's office? Werse they in a file roem? Did
14 MR. YRAMETBAUER: (. So yeu leit im, I | 14 you have a file clerk? Tell me a little bit about that.
15 apologize, 2000; is that right? 5 A. Rascords wsre kspt -- large jobs and joos were

1€ A. I was let go in December of 2000. 16 kept in job folders In cabinets. There wasn't somebody in
17 Q. [Decerber of 2000. And then in 2001 you started 17 charge of it. It was just all in cabinets rurerically.

18 up with Arrow; ia that corract? i3 Q. And when ycu were lat go in 2000, do ywu lgwow who
19 A. In May of 200% I started working for Arrow, (13 was raspensible for the upkeep of those files? Like, for
i Q. &rd it would have been out of that same building 20 example, if bthers was a new document to De added to cne of
21 in Stocktcn, is that corzect, 3133 Ad Art Read? 21 those files, who would be responsible at Ad Azt at that
2 A. Ko, mo. 22 time for adding it to the file?
23 Q. Where was your office when you first staried with | 23 MR. TONG: Lacks foundatien.
24 Acxow? 24 THE WITNESS: Wharewver project manager was
25 A, Caxlad. 25 working on whatever job would be the person respensibls to

Page 47 Page 49

1 Q. Did Arrow work out of the 3133 Ad Art Road when 1 adding to the file.

2 you started with Arrow? 2 MR. WRAMETEAUER: Q. Who was the project manager
3 A. Arvow did -- no. Arrow dida't, nop ne. 3 on the ¥39 pylon?

1 Q. So while you were with Arrow, do ycu have 4 A. I would thirk the project manager -- you mean in
5 knowledge as to when they moved into the building at 3133 5 ths fabrication and installation?

& Ad Art Read? g R. Yes, sir.

7 A, It would have been maybe the beginming of 2002, 7 &, Gordon Xitte.

8 roughly. 8 2. So, so far you had dealt with MGM through Pred

8 Q. Mnd you, during that time, kad an opportunity to 9 Benmingar, correct?
10 work out of that 3133 Ad Art Road office? 1 4. Correct.
11 A. No. {11 ¢. And did you appoint Gorden Kitto as the project
12 Q. Did you ever visit that office? 12 manager?
13 A. When Arrow bought it? 13 A. Cordon ¥itte was the proiect manager for large
14 Q. Yeah. 14 projects, ineluding that disolay.
13 A. Perhaps. But I don't recall. 13 @. Wha alsa, other than you and Gordem Ritto, at Ad
16 Q. How Jany times? 16 Art worked an the MM pylon?
17 A. I primarily worked ocut of Cakiand, so I dom’t 17 ME. LONG: Cbisction. Vague.
18 recall -- mayte a few times. I don't recall. g THE WLINESS: Thers would have besn many people
19 Q. Let me ask you this: So the documents regarding | 15 that worked on it.
20 the M3 pylen built in 1993 and 1394 by Ad Art Blectromic | 20 MR. KRAMETBAUER: 2. Do you recall any of their
21 Sign Corporatiom, they were housed in the Stockton office |21 names?
22 at 3133 Ad Art Road; iz that correct? 22 A, wWell, yes. It would depend on -- ves, yes.
21 A. Y¥es. At that bime definitely. 23 Q. List as mamy of them as you possibly can. Take
24 Q. Were thars alsc copies in an office in Las Vegas | 24 your time.
25 or documents regarding the M@ pylen in Las Vegas, at an 25 A, Paul Brengle.
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1 Q. Can you spell his last name for me? i 1 Kitto, Paul Brenglz, Jack --
2 3. Fer:e-meg-lee | Z Q. Right, And I appreciate that, I lmwow that those
3 3. Go zhead. 3 are pecple that -- in your mind that you're certain -- you
i L. Other zhan thac, I mesn, the staff, the workers, 4 were certain that worked on it. But I want b2 lmow pecple
53 vyou koow, the factory. Paul Brangle was the enginesr, 5 in your mind that may have worked on it, that peeple
5 Gordon was in charge of the prodect. 6 you'rs thinking of right now that may have worked on the
7 Q. Wbo was the designer? 7 project, but you're not certain,
3 A. Jack Dubois, I kelieve, I think Jack ard -- Jack | 38 Mk, HIWTER: Cbjscticn. Calls for speculacion.
3 Dubois, | 9 VR. CGAMETRAUER: Q. Co shead.
10 Q. Is Paul Brengle atill alive? : 10 A, #d Mebonald might have worked on it.  Jofn Papais
11 i, Va3, ' 11 couwld have. I meam, thers's lobs of names I could threw,
12 Q. Is he still with <he company? 12 out I don't kmow -- I'm just speculating because I don't
13 A Mo 13 know if they worked oo it. T know that Cordeon workad on
14 Q. Iz ke atill with Ad Art ag it iz today? t4 1it, and Paul worked on it amd T worked on it.
13 A, ko 15 Q2. Ckay.
15 Q. whera iz Paul at now? 18 Ed MoDonald, what did he do for the company?
1 A He's in Florida, [ 17 A. Installatien.
18 Q. Is he ratired? i 18 . What about John Papais?
19 A Yes. |19 A, Was the owner and sstimator,
20 Q. Do you have his contact information? |20 Q. Is 2d McDonald still alive?
2L A, M. 21 R. I belisve sq.
2 Q. When ia the last time you talked to Paul? 22 Q. Does he work abt Ad Art now?
23 A, ¥aybe eight, ten y=ars ago. | 23 A, Mo
2 Q. How do you kmow he's in Florida? | 24 0. Do you know where 84 McDonald is?
25 4. The pecple I work with who kmew him, xmew that he 'l 25 3. I believe in Henderscn or Las Vegas.
N - Page 51 ! - Page 353
1 left Stockton and moved to Florida. 1 Q. 5o Ed waa an -- he was an ingtaller for Ad Ast at
2 Q. And Jeff Dubois, he's still with -- he's at Ad 2 the time?
3 Art now? 3 3 He was an installsr and an installation manager.
4 A. Jack Dubois, yes, 4 Q. During the time the ¥@f pylon was built in 1953,
5 Q. I apologize, I don't know wizy I said Ceff. But 5 1394, how many pecple did Ad Act have in the Las Veges
6 it's Jack Dubois? b office?
T A. ¥es, 7 A. About 40.
8 Q. Anybedy else other than Gorden Ritto, Paul 8 Q. who was the head of the Las Vegas office at that
3 Arengle, Jack Dubols, yourself, anybody else whose name 9 time, '33, '542
10 you recall that worked on this project? And I understand 1 A, I was in chavge of the las Vegas office at that
11 that there's mary people, but I want you to do your best 11 time,
12 to recall as many pecple as possible that weuld have 12 Q. WNow, in the conatructiom and installation of the
13 worked cn the M2 pylon project on behalf of Ad Art. 13 M pylon in '93, 194 by Ad Art, it's my understanding
14 A. Thers sre many pecple I can think of, but I'mnot | 14 that it was manufactured or fabricated out of the Stockten
15 certain that rthey workad on the projsct because we wers 3 | 13 office and then it was brought to las Vegas and then
1 large company. There wers 350 people at the time, so.., 15 installed cn the property: is that correct?
17 Q. If you can please list for me pecple that you 17 A, Yes.
18 think it was likely that worked on that project? 18 Q. How long did that process take, approximately?
o A, That I what? 19 MR. LONG: Cbjection. Vague.
20 Q. Pecple that you think it was likely worked om the | 20 MR. ¥REMETRAUER: (. Probably fcur menths,
21 project. I know you're not sure if they worked on it or 21 five months.
22 not, but who are the people that you're thinking of that I' al Q. who waa in charge of ordering the materials used
23 may have worked on it? 23 in the construetion of the sigr?
24 A, I mean, I can't come up with namss for sure of 24 A. It would depend on the material, and I --
25 peopls who worked on it, cther than primerily Gordon 25 Q. Are you familiar with the Aluccbond material?
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1 A. Yas, 1 Q. Can you tell if this is the building permit for
2 Q. Woc was in charge of crdering the Aluccband 2 the M3 pylon, which is the subject of this lawsuit?
3 material for use on the sign? 3 A. T can's tell if it's the pexmit for the large
4 VR, LOWG: Cbject oo form. Calls for 4 sign.
5 speculation. 5 3. Is it fair to say that it was issued om or about
g THE WITNES3: Probably Gorden Xitto. § the same time that fabrication and irnstallation of the M3
7 MR, KRAMETRACER: (. You can go ahead. 7 pylen was dere by Ad Arc?
8 A. Prcbably Corden ¥icto. 8 A, Yes,
El Q. Anyone else? 9 0. And the property owner is lisred as MM Grand
v} A, et chat T know of. 10 Hotel, Inc.; is that corract?
1 Q. Now, this was puilt or constructed in 1593 and 11 MR, 1ONG:  The document speaxs for itself
12 1994. So¢ is it fair to say that that Alucobend would have | 12 MR. XRAMETBAUER: Q. You can answer the
13 bsen oxderad in zbout the same time 1363, 15947 | 13 guesticn.
id YR. HINTER: Cbjection. Tacks fcwndaticn. Calls 14 A. M3¢ Grand Borel, Inc. is listed as the propsrty
15 for speculation. 1 15 ouner,
i8 MA. ¥RAMETREAUER: Q. Go zhead. i 15 Q. And the contractor is listed as Ad Art, Inc.; is
17 L. Yes, it weuld have been ordarsd in the time it 17 that correct?
18 was instailed. 18 A, That's wiat the document shows, yes.
19 YR. HONTER: Same ctiection. | 18 Q. And at the very bottonm thers‘s the "LICENSED
2 YR. RAMETEAUER: {. Let re ask you this: Afrer | 20 CONTRACTOR'S DECLARATICN," do you see that, and there's a
21 1324, after comlertion of the pylon sign, did Ad Art do 21 signature there?
22 any revisicns to the sign, to your kncwledge? | a2 B. TYes.
23 MR, 1LM5: Cbjection. Vague as to *revisions.” bE] Q. Chkay.
24 THE WITNESS: Mo, mot to my knowledge, ;24 Is that the Richard Shade's signature there?
25 MR. KRMMETBAUER: Q. To the best of your 25 4. Yzeh. Dick Spade, yeah.
Eage 55 Page 57
1 kmowledge, Ad Art was dome with the MGM pylen at the 1 ¢, Do you koow him or did you know him?
% latest at the and of 1994, correct? 2 &, Yz5. He was an smploves of Ad Art,
3 MR, LONG: Chjecticr. Vague. 3 Q. Did ke work cut of the Las Vegas office or the
4q THE WITNESS: Yes, essentially arcurnd that time, | 4 Stockton office?
5 MA. KRAMETEAUER: Q. And Ad Art didn't do | S A, las Vegas.
§ amything slse to the sign thereafrer; is that correct? 8 Q. Do you know what he did for Ad Act?
7 B, Not that I recall. 7 A. He did a varistcy of things.
8 Q. Did Ad Art in 1393 or 1334 do any other projects 8 Q. Give me zome examples.
5 for MM other than the BaM pylon? g A. He was in service. He managed varicus service
1e A, I think we did a smell entrance simm. 10 pecple. Ocrasicnally ran permits,
11 Q. And where was that? 1 Q. And ha's deceased; is that correct?
12 A. Or the property. 12 A, T would -- Idon't -- I would think so, but I
13 Q. Was that done arcund the same time as the bigger |12 don't kmow for sure.
14 pylem? 14 Q. Why do you think so?
18 A, I den't recall exactly when it was done. 15 A. Well, he was precty old then, sO...
16 Q. Ard do you imow if Alucchond was used on that 16 Q. Ckay, Fair encugh.
17 project, the amaller entrance sign? 17 Do you hmow what pia involvement was in the
18 A, Idon't recall that. 18 Eabrication, construction and imstallation of the M@
18 MR. SILVERMBN: I'm just going to object to the 19 pylon in 1933 or 13947
20 extent it calls for speculaticn, This is Bddy Silverman. 20 A. He might have assisted sore -- you know, assisted
a1 MR. FRAMETBAUER: Q. Mow, if you can look at 21 in the Las Vegas, but no, I don't lmow directly.
22 Bxhibit 1, which is the "Clark County Building Department | 22 Q. Yow, I dom't think this is part of the records
23 PERMIT.P 23 that were provided to you, but I'll reprasent to you that
24 Do you see that, Mr, Long? 24 I have -- gtrike that.
5 A, Ves. 25 You have an understanding that Alucobord is
i
1
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1 marufactured by a company named 3A Composites, corTect? 1 for speculaticn.

2 MR, ICNG: Obj Lacks foundation. | 2 THE WITNESS: I have = secollection that

3 1HE WITNES3: T don't vecall -- I zecall ]' 3 Alucorord was usad in the fabricaticn, yes.

4 Alucobond, I don't recall that specifically. P4 MR. KRAVETBAUER: 0. Just bear withme. I'm

b MR. KRAMETRAUER: (. Have you ever placed an $ just locking through my exnibits. I apologize,

§ order for Alucckond? 1 &0 Mr, Tong, if I wantsd to vaquest the old Ad

7 A. Psrscmally, ro. 7 RBrt records and shop drawirgs and things of that nature

2 Q. Mho ab Ad Art now is responsible for placing 8 regarding the M2 pvlon from 133, '94, how weuld T ge

3 orders of Alucckbend, if at all? | 5 sbout getting these?

10 A, Ars you taiking sbout at Ad Art today? ! 10 MR. LONG: Objecticn. Lacks foundation. Vagua.
1 Q. Yeah, 1L Go ahsad.

12 A. I den't think we would be placing an ordsy for 12 THE WIDESS: I don't koow,

13 Alucsbond today. 13 MR, KRAMETRAUER: Q. If you meeded them, where
b Q. Wty iz thar? 14 would you go to find them?

15 A. Because we'rs not fabricaring signs dirsctly. 15 A. I don't believe they =¢ist, so I wouldn't go

15 Q. Now, nack in 1992, 1994, who would have, at Ad 15 lock.

17 Art, besn rasponaible far crdering Alucobend? 17 Q. Mhy do you have that belief?

18 A. Would have been the procursment depariment in 13 B. Becauss the company was liquidated.

19 Zrockton. 13 Q. 50 because the company was liquidated, you think
a0 Q. Who headed the procurement department in 10 that their docmencs were destroyed?

Z1l Steckton? b 2. T don't know of anything that was left there

22 A. John Papais would have been the primary person cn | 22 after the liquidation,
23 procursment. 23 Q. Do you have knowledge of the individual
24 Q. wWho else worked in the procurement umder Juhn? 24 resperaible for getting rid of the documents when the
25 A. Pardon? 25 company was Liguidated?

Page 59 ~ Page 61

% Q. Who slse worked in the procurement department 1 ¥R, 10N Chbjection. Lacks foundation.

2 under Jobn? 2 Mischaracterizes pricr testimemy.

3 A. I don't r=call. 3 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, say that again.

4 Q. How nany pecple were in that deparmment, to the 4 ¥R, FRAMETBAUER: (. Yeah. Do you have

5 best of your knowledge? 5 lnowledge of or do you know of anvbedy that it was their
6 A. Typically three. 5 rasponsibility to get zzd of or to destroy the documents
7 Q. Do you know their nares? 7 after the company's ligquidation?

3 A, ¥o 8 A Y.

3 Q. %Now, in this litigation I've been provided some 9 Q. o why is it that you think that those documents
10 invoices Fram 3A Composites -- or they were formally known | 10 are no longer available?

11 as a company by the name of Alusuisse Composites, 11 3. I left the company -- or was let go by the

12 Incorporated. And this is -- what they've given to =me 12 oompany in Decerber of 200¢. And basically had very

13 represents the order of Alucobend for the M@M sign, And |13 little interaction. But when we started working with
14 the dates on the order ars in 1948, 14 Arrow, there was nothing out there.
15 Do you have any krowledze as o why there would 1 Q. Do you imow where -- let me just grab my records
15 be an order of Aluccbond in 1998 when thes sign was 15 here.
17 cemstructed in '93 or 94?2 7 So in the liquidaticn of Ad Art ESC, do you know
18 MR, IONG: Chjection. Iacks foundation, Calls 13 who purchased their Eabrication equipment --
13 for speculaticn. 19 A. 1 do not.
20 MR, HOWTER: Join. 20 Q. -- when it wea liquidated?
21 THE WITNESS: No, thet doesn't sound righe. i 2l A, Idon't,
22 MR, (RAMETBAUER: Q. Would you have a |22 Q. Do you have any knowladge as to whether or not
Z3 recollscticon that green Alucobond was usad in the 23 Arrow purchased amything from Ad Art 25C in the
24 fabrication of the MM sign in 1993, 1394, correct? 24 ligquidation?
5 MR, LONG: Objection. ILacks foundation, Calls |25 A. Ident.
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1 Q. Who was left at Ad Art BSC when you left, but i A Q. -- paragraph 6.

2 before the liquidation? | 2 B Yes.

3 MR, LONG: Objecticn. Vague. 3 Q. 7It's on page 2. This talks about the liquidaticn
4 THEE WITNESS: Thers wers several pecple a: Ad Art | 4 of Ad Art 2SC, and the purchase by MASCO of the name Ad

5 still there. 5 Art, the trademark, work mark, trade servica mark, trade
3 MR, KAAMETEAUER: (. Lat me ask you this: Uhen 4 names, ard then Ad Art E50°s telephone mumber and Web

7 vou wers removaed as presidant, who ook over as president? | 7 address.

8 A. I was removed as prasidert ir August or September | 3 Do you kmow if ¥MASCO purchased anything else

8 of 2009, ard basically the chairmen of the corpany ard Lo | 3 other than those thres things?

16 Papais ran it, to the best of oy kanowledge. 13 A, T don't know.

11 Q. Who was the chairman? 11 Q. Do you kmow who would have been in charge of

12 L. I don't recall his name. Bill semething. [12 MASCO at this time when they purchased these things from
13 §. Bill scmething? 13 Ad Art ESC?

14 A. Y=ah. i A, Mas.

15 Q. Anybody else that took over your respansibilities ' 15 Q. Who?
16 at Ad Art ESC when you were lat 307 15 A. Nagt Ali,

7 YR. IONG: Llacks foundation. Calls for 17 ¢. Can you spell his pame for me?

18 specuiaticn. 18 A. N-a-g-i A-l-i,

19 THE WITNESS: When I was let go, [ havs no idea 19 G. 50 his first pame iz Nagi and his last name is
20 urat happened after that. 20 Ali?
21 ¥R. ¥RAMETBADER: . Do you lmow if the company |21 A, Yes.

2 filsd bankruptoy or if it was just liquidated? 22 Q. 1Is he still allve?
3 A, To the best of my lmowledge, it was liguidated. 23 A, Yes,
24 Q. Do you kmow who was in charge of the lLiquidation | 24 Q. Does he still own NASCO?

25 of Ad Art ESC? 5 K, Yes.

Page 63 [ Page 65

1 A. There wWas a quy from the East Coast that the 1 VR, LCMG: Lacks Eoundation,

2 chairman had brought in, and he was in charge -- he and 2 MR, YRAMETSAUER: Q. Was that a yes?

3 his company were in charge of the liguidacion, but Tdom't | 3 A. VYes.

4 recall their names. 4 Q. And then it says in paragraph 7 that scmetime in
5 Q. Do you know the name of the company? 5 March 25th, 2003, a new corporaticn ad Art, Inc., was

5 A, I don'k. § formed via filing articles of incorporaticn with che

7 Q. This would have been sometime after your 7 secrstary of state. And you wers the CBO of that

8 departure in 20007 ‘ 8 corporation; is that corrsct?

3 A. Ee was brought in when I was still there in the -i E A, Yas,

10 fall of 2000. And ke was thers Irom -- during the time i 10 Q. And then shortly therssfzer, you acguired through
11 where I was no longer president. And then affer that, I'm 11 an agreement with MASCO the name Ad Art, Inc., use of a
12 sure he was still there, and wltimately did the | 12 telephone mumber and the Intermet Web address; is that
13 ligquidation. I don't remember his name. 13 correct?
14 Q. Do you Jmow who weuld have that informaticm? ‘ 1 WE. LOW3: Objection., The document speaks for
15 a. ¥o. |15 itself. Mischaracterizes the document.
18 Q. Do you kmow Lynn Weaver? 18 ¥R, KRNETBAUER: Q. You can go ahead.
17 A, lLymn Reaver? 17 A. We acquired the right to the name, and w2 fcrmed
18 Q. Yeah. 18 a new corporaciom; Ad Art, Inme.
19 A, I don't recall. | 19 Q. So you filed for articles of incorporaticm with
20 Q. In sales. I 20 the name Ad Art, Inc. prior to cbtaining permissicn from
1 A. Lynn ¥eaver, no. 21 MASCO to the trademark, work mark, service mark, trade
22 Q. Yeah, 22 name, telephone murber and Web addreas of Ad Art, Inc.?
23 A No. {23 ¥R. LOWG: Objection. Lacks Fourdaticn.
24 I'm looking at your affidavit, Mr. Leng -- 24 THE WITNESS: It was done in comcert with —- T
25 A, Yeah. 25 deon't remember the exact dates, but it was done together.
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1 MR. ¥RAMETBAURR: Q. I'm just locking at your 1 {a recess was taken from 4:13 pom. to 4:18 poa)

2 affidavit. It appears that the filing of the articles of i 2 VR, XMETEAUER: Q. 3o I've got im front of you

3 ingorporaticn was in March of 2613 and your agrsement wi 1 3 the agreenent heve between NASCO and Ad Art; do you see

4 MASCO for che rights to those things was dome in April; is * 4 that?

5 that correct? 55 A, Yes.

& A. March of 2023 | & Q. And that's your signaturs cn the last page of

? Q. Right. | 7 tnis document, along with Bob and Nagi Ali?

3 A. Nob 2013, 3 A, Yes.

8 Q. I apologize, 9 ¢. Do you reverber how zuch it cest for Ad Art to
0 Your filing with the state of California for | 10 acquire these ltems from MASCO?

11 articles of incorporaticn with the name of the cerporation | 11 MR, LOWG: Objection. The document speaks for
22 as Ad Art, Ine. wes done prior to the axecutiem of your 12 itself.

13 agreement with NASCO to acquire the trademark, work mack, | 13 Laed?

14 service mark, trade name, use of the telephone mmber and | 14 :  It's crossed out.
15 Internet Web address to ad Art, Inc.; is that correct? | 15 VR, (RAVETEAUER: Mo, ik doesn't, because those
6 . Yo, I think we had the agrecment signed that wert | 16 wumbers have been blocked cut.

17 iato effsct Ppril 1, 2003, so the two were done in 17 MR, LONG: Tim, did you redact chis?

18 concert. 18 VR. BNTER: I did. It's financial information
13 Q. Now, when I lecked at the permit from Clark 13 that I don't belisve is relavant in any way.

20 Comnty, which ig Exhibit 1 -- 0 ¥R, FRAMETBAUER: Well, if he deesn't recall what
a1 k. Yes. 21 the numbers are, or we don't get an unrsdacted copy, I'm
2 Q. -- it said that the contractor is Ad Art, Inc. 22 going to reserve my right to refdepose this witness on this
23 Do you see that? 23 inforyacion, pecause T belisve it is relzsvant.
24 ad Art -- 24 MR. HONIZR: 2nd I'm rot Soing to agree to that.
3 Q. Your affidavit says that "Ad Art, Inc. was not 125 Idon't believe it is relevanc.
o Page &7 Page 59 |

1 involved in the design, comstructicn or subsequent i If you want to file a wotion to compel with the

2 paintemance of the ¥ pylon." 2 discovery commissioner and she cxders me to give you a

3 Do you ses that? 3 redacted ooy, I'll give you one. But I don't believe you

4 A, The permit says "Ad Art Sign, Inc.' It do=s say 4 peed the financial information about the purchase.

3 A4 Mrt, Inc.,” but I'm mot sure that that's s correct 5 MR, XRAMETEAUER, Are you going to allow the

§ name, & witness to testify 1f he recalls how much IC cost?

7 Q. I'm specifically referencing where it says, ? MR. HUNTER: If he remembers off the top of his

8 ‘*Contractor: Ad Art, Inc.” 8 hbead, chat's fipe.

9 Do you see that? 2 MR. KRAMETRAUER: (. Mr. Lemg, do you remember
13 A Yes. 10 how much it cost, or approximately how much it cost, for
i1 Q. Do you know if at the time in 1993 that the 11 Ad Art to recover these items from NASCO?

12 corpany was referred to as Ad Axt, Inc.? 12 MR LOME: I you kmow.

3 A. The company in '93 was referred toag 2d Art. I |13 THE WITNESS: Over the tem-year peried it costs
14 den't inow the eme of the -- that the corpany would have | 14 us sbout 1,100,000,

15 used for the business in Nevada. It could have been a 15 M. KRAMETRAUER: ¢. And that was paid over a
16 differsnt name, 16 term of ten years?

17 MR. KRAMETRAUER: Hey, Dana, 19 the agreement 17 A, Yas.

138 there in the pile of documents thal you've got, the 18 Q. And I just want to make sure that that was for
19 agreement between MASQO and Ad Art? 19 the sale of the trademark, work zark, service mark; trade
bl MR. LONG: Yeah, it's here. 20 name, quote, Ad Art; the telephone mmbex listed on the
21 I'd like to tzke a break first, though. 21 agreement; and the Internet Web address, www.adartesc.com;
12 MR. KRAMETRAUER: Mo problem. lLet's go abeac and |32 is that correct?

23 take five mimutes, or if you reed more, that's [ine. 23 MR, LONG: ¥ow the document does spesk for

21 MR. LONG: WNo, five minutes. 24 irself. And it's acked and answered.

25 Off the recod, 25 Go ahead.
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1 THE WITHESS: Yas. 1 installation, wers there any subcontractors or cthird

2 MR, YRAMETEAUER: . And over the temm of | 2 parties involved in the installation in Las Vegas of the

3 approxivately ten years it cost Ad Arc §1.1 milliom? i1 sign?

4 A, Yes. 4 A, Yes.

5 ME. ICNG: Asked and answered. 3 ¢, Who?

B MR, KRAMEIEAUER: §. And maybe this is because I | & A, I den't lmow who.

7 naven't revizwed the sntire agreement, but it appears o 7 Q. Do you recall any of the names of the pecple you

3 me that it's over a six-y=ar period of time, bub according § used in las Vegas for the Installation of the M@ pylen?

9 o you it was actually over a ten-year pexicd? g a, 'The irssallacion of the M3M pylon was done by our

10 MR. 10NG: The documen: speaks for itself. And 10 pecple. But you asksd about, would there be others. 2nd

11 you've had this agreement for a long time, sc I don't Jmow | 11 thers would have been others to perform functions

12 why vou need =o review it in the middle of a deposizicn 13 recessary to ersct the display.

13 MR, XRAVETHAUFR: Zou can go ahead and answer | 13 Q. What ars other functicmg that werse needed for the

14 the guestion, ¥r. Long, 14 installation other than by folka at Ad Art?

15 A, Ye 15 A. The excavation of the foundation would have been

15 Q. Do you inow why it toox ten years rather than six | 16 done by a local sxcavator,

17 years? i7 Q. What alge?

13 MR, LMG: Lacks foundaticn. Mischaracterizes 18 3, Fabrication of the steel would have heen dore by

19 the decument. 19 = stesl company. The cranes necessary to arect it wouid

20 MR, (RAMETBATER: Q. You can answer the | 20 have zeen -- the cranes necassary to ersct it would have

22 uestion, Mr. Long. 21 been large cranes provided by others.

22 A. It was a Cen-year agveament based on saiss. 12 Q. Anybody elgze you can think of?

23 Q. Gotcha. Al right. 23 A. Oo.

24 Now, going back to the building of the sign in 24 2. Aand you don't recall any of the names of the

25 Stockton, the M@ pylom, would the materials for the 25 excavating company, the steel fabricater or the crane
Page 71 Page 73

1 comstruction of the sign had been shipped to Stocktom and | 1 folks?

2 then put together and then you would hava shipped the sign [ 2 A. No.

1 in pieces out to las Vegas? Could you tell me a little 3 ¢. Did you happen to visit the sign while it was

4 bit about that process? 4 being instaliled?

5 MR, LONG: Lacks foundation. A, Y¥ss,

8 THE WITNESS: Yes, the sion was fabricaced in Q. How many times?

7 Stockton in sections and chen trucked to Las Vegas for A. I was there svery week.

§ installation. Q. How long would you stay when you would wisit

9 MR, KRAMETRAUER; 0. It weuld have been trucked svery wazk?

10 in pleces; is that correct? A. One night and two days in Las Vegas.

11 A, Yes. 11 Q. Were there amy problems, to your knowledge, with

12 Q. Becausa it's a fairly large sign. I don't -- I'm |12 the installation?

13 just a laypersen. I dem't have any experience oz 13 A. Mot that [ recall.

14 fmowledge in sign building., But it just sesms tc me it 14 Q. Wazs MM gatisfied with the product?

15 wouldn't be Feasible to build the entire thing and ship it | 13 MR. IONG: Objection. Vague. Lacks Ecundation,

16 in one big bundle, correct? 15 THE WITMESS: Yes.

17 A, Correct. 17 MR, LMe3: Calls For speculation.

18 8, Do you kmow how many piecss it was shipped cut 18 THE WITNESS: Yes.

19 in? 113 MR. FRAMETSAUER: At this time, Mr. Lomg, I don't

20 A. No. 20 believe I have any further guestions. T really do

21 Q. Do you know how long it tock to install the aign 1 appreciate your time, and I apologize for not being there

22 once it was brought to Las Vegas? 22 in person.

23 A. The installacion from the time it would have 23 Zidy, do you have anything?

24 starced would have been at least a two-momth process, | 24 MR, SILVERMAN: Let's go off the rsrord for a

25 Q. Other than Ad Art amployees working ca the | 25 second,
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1 {Discussion oif the record.) 1 directly Erom 3A?

2 EXAMIRTION Y MR, SILVERMAN 2 A, I don't recall 3A.

3 MR SILVERMAN: Q. ¥r. Long, oy nme ls Edward k| Q. So that would mean that you de not recall AZ Art
¢ Silvemman, I represent 3A Composites USA, Inc., and I just . 4 -- any iteratien of Ad Art purchasing Alucchband directly
5 want o ask you 2 faw questions regarding the comversation | 5 from 3A; is that correct?

5 that che parties just had off the record abeut 1 & MR. XRAVETBAIER: This is Ryan Krametbaier.

7 trvamsactions that Ad Act may have probably heen involved | 7 I'm going to cdojsct to the form of the guestien,
8 in at some other time that involved my clisnt 3. | B Misstates testimony, Assumes fazts.

3 let me begin Dy asking, Mr. Long: You alluded to | § MR. SILVERMRN: (. You van answer, Mr. Long.

10 this earlier, but to what extent are you familiar withmy | 10 A. T rsrall Ad Art puzchasing Alucobond several

11 clienz, 3A; meaning, do you know what they do? 11 times.

12 A. 33, no, I don't know whnat 2R is. 12 Q. But yeu do not recall Ad Art purchasing Aluccbond
1 Q. And do you know what 3A Comgosites USA, Inc. is? | 13 directly frem 3A; is that cervect?

i1 A Mo, |14 MR. MRAMETBAUER: This is atformey Ryan

15 Q. Do you koow what 3A Composites USA, Inc. does? 15 Kramethavsr.

15 A Moo [ 18 Same cojection,

17 Q. Or I ghould say —- let me clarify that, {17 MR. SILVERMAN: ©. I am also rot trying to trick
18 Do you imow what 3R Composites USA, Ine. 18 you, Mr. Long. I'm just asking for your recollsctiom.

19 mamufactures in terms of products? 19 Tike Mr. Krametbauer -- go ahead.

20 A, Well, po. I'm assuming it's Alucchond. a0 A, Me.
21 Q. Now, from your depositicn testimomy earliar, I 2 Q. No, you do not remember?

22 understand that thers were varicus iteraticns of what 22 A. Idon't recall 3A. T recall Alucchond.
23 tecday is mown generally as Ad Art. And I don't want to 23 Q. Have you sesn the invoice in this case that
24 get intc all the various iteratioms and different 14 purports to concern the Aluechond that 3A manufactured
25 corporate entities. So if I refer to "Ad Act," I'm | 25 that was ultizately incorporated on the MM pylen sign
!
Page '?5? Page 77

1 referring to it holistically, and I'm referrirg to it in 1 that we've been discassing?

2 terms of any time that you ever were working focr a company ! g A. Mol

3 with the name Ad Art in the title. 3 Q. Are you personally aware of amy cther invoices
4 Is that glear? 4 for materials that 3A sold that were ultimately

s A, Yes. | 5 incorporated cn the M3 pylan sign?

g Q. So im the time that you worked for Ad Art, were 4 A. Mo,

7 wou ever perzcnally inwolved in a transaction in which Ad 7 MR. HINTER: Object to fomm.

8 Art ordered Alucchond from JA Corposites USA, Inc.? 3 MR. SIIVERMAN: Q. IE you need her to read it
3 MR. LONG: Lacks foundation. 9 back, Mr. leng, I can have her co that.
13 MR. KRAMETBAUER: Same cbjection. Jein. 19 MR, IONG: He answered.
11 This is Ryan Xrametbauer, by the way. {1 THE WITMESS: No.

12 THE WITMESS: Personally irvolved? I was [ 12 MR. SILVERMMN: Ch, I'm scrry, I didn't hear.
13 personally inwolved -- when you say "perscnally imvolved,” | 13 THE WITMESS: No.
14 rpleass define what you mesn. | 14 MR STLVERMEN: Q. Mr. Long, if T asked you
i5 ¥R. SILVERMRAN: Q. Are you aware of any iteraticn | 15 whether or not thers wers other invoices comeceming
16 of 3 Brt placing an order for Aluccbond directly from 33 | 1§ products chat 3A sold that were incorporated cn the M3
17 Composites USA, Ine.? 17 pylon sign, would you be speculating in response to my
18 4 I'maware in gereral of Ad Art purchasing 18 question?
19 Alucobond several times. | 18 MR. KRAMETEAUER: Obj=ct to the form of the
20 Q. Do you lmow where that a -- I'm soxry, you can 20 question.
21 £inigh., I apologize for interruptirg. . 21 This is Ryan Krametbausr.
22 A, I recall Ad Art -- in THE WITNESS: Yes.
23 Q. Did you say scmething? | 23 VR, SILVERMAN: Q. Yes, you would be
24 A. -- purchasing Alucobond many times, 24 spaculating?
25 Q. Do you recall Ad Art purchasing Alucobend | 25 A, Yes, I don't recall -
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1 MR. HINTER: Same cbijscticn. D1 MR. KRAMETBAUER: Back cn the record.
2 THE WITNES3: Yes, I don't recall 3A. | 2 FURTHER EXAMDRIION BY WR. FRAMETZAUZR
3 MR, SILVERMAN: Q. And T'm mot trying to give 3 MR. MRAMETSEDFR: Q. Mr. Iong, ars you still
4 you 3 hard time hers, Mr. Long, I'm just trying to get an 4 chere?
§ answer to my guestion. § A- ¥es:
£ And my guestion was: You would be speculating if | § Q. 8o I've e-mailed the court reporter who iz taking
7 I asked you, comrect? 7 down the testimeny today the exhibit which contains the
& ¥R, HUNTER: Same ob’ecCion. Asked and answersd. | 8 Liowvoices which have been Bates SALE 00001 through 12,
9 THE WITHESS: Yes. If you'vs asking me about 34, | 9 I'Ll represent to you that these were the documents
i¢ I have oo recollecticn of 3A. 10 provided to me, to my office. I represent the plaintiff
11 MR. STIVERMAN: 0. ALl righe. 11 in this case, Mr. Schueler. These were provided to me by
12 A Ts it fairte Iong, that you wowld be 12 defendant 3A Comcomites USA, Ime., formally kmown as
13 guessing if you implisd or otherwise representad that 13 Alcechond Technologies Corporation. These wers provided
14 cthera ars other invcices for products that 3A marufactursd | 14 to me to represent the Alucchberd transaction to either
15 which may have uirimaraly besn incorporated cn the M3 15 Interstate Electric or Miken Lighting regarding the
16 sign? |16 Alucobend used on the MR pylon.
37 MR, ¥RAMETERUER: This is Ryan Xrametbauer. bl Mew, it's my understandieg frem your depositien
18 I objact to the form of the question., This has 18 testimomy today, that Ad Arc and amy variation, like
19 bpeen asked and amswersd, It assumes facts net in |19 Mr. Silverman was tallking anout, was the manufactursr and
0 sridence. | 20 the ingtaller of that M@ gylom sign in or about 1393 and
21 Mi. LONG: It's vague to0. 21 1994; is that correct?
22 MR, YRAMETEAUER: Ard it's vague. 2 A, Yes.
23 MR, SILVERMAN: Q. Does tha questicn make sense, | 23 Q. YNow, the document that I'm showing you now, which
24 M. Long? 24 we'll mark as Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 3, you're reading
25 THE WLTMESS: 0. 25 these off of your lawyer's phome, correct?
= Page 73 | Page 81
1 ME. SILVERMAN: Q. Previocusly I asked if you'd i B, Yes.
2 be speculating. I'm now asking if wou would be guessing. 2 MR. LOMG: Off the court reporter's phone.
3 THE WITNESS: I don't recall the neme of the 33 3 MR. FRAMETEAUER: Q. I apologize, off the court
4 cosposite corpany. I don't recall that name. I zecall 4 reporter's phons.
5 Alucchond. 5 Are you comfortable reading those and you're able
& MR, SIZVERMAN: Q. 5o it's fair to say that you § to read the letters and numbers?
7 would have no knowledge of any transactions imvolving 3A | 7 E. Yes,
8 whatsosver? | 8 Q. And we're going to go ahead and attach it after
E MR. HONTER: Object to the form. Misstates 5 the conclusion of che deposition; is that fais?
13 testimony. 10 A, Yes.
11 THE WITMNESS: I remember Alucobord. 1 Q. [If at any point in time it's too small or you
12 MR, SILVERMN: . But you do not remember 3A7 12 can't zoom in on anything, lat me imew and we can go about
13 A. Correct. | 13 this a different way. I just want to make sure that
14 2. Would you represent that you have any xnowledge 14 you're comfortable being able to read this document.
15 whatazoever of 3A's Mainess dealings with respect to the 15 Ckay?
16 M pylon aign? 16 A, Okay.
7 A. ¥o, VMot with 3R, no. 17 Q. Now, these were imvoices provided to my office to
i3 MR, SILVERMAN: Ckay. That's all I have. 18 me 33 the lawyer for the plaintiif that represent the
i MR, KRAMETRAUER: Tim, duid you have anything? 19 Alucchond sold for the purposes of the pylon sign.
20 MR, HIMTZR: Ho. Are we cene? 20 Okay? Do you understand that?
21 MR. ¥RAMETBAUER: #Well, I e-mailed the ivoice to | 21 MR, LoNG: The document speaks for itself., Do
22 the court reporter. 22 yecu have a question in here? What's the guestion?
23 Could we go off the record for five mimtes. 2 MR, XRMETBRAOER: Q. Yeah, I'm just naking sure
24 MR. LOMG: Yes. 24 that ne understands that these documents, Mr. long, wers
25 {Discussion off the recozd.} 25 provided to me by the defendant 3A Composites to represent
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1 the Alvcobord transaction in this case. % VR, SILVERMAN: Q. Well, you kuow what? Sure.
2 Cleay? *: 2 The Alueckond that was incorgorated on the sign. You can
3 MR. 10NG: Well, ['ll objsct they may have been | 3 strike what [ said previcusly.

4 produced to you by 3B, but what they rapresent is what B Do you know waen the Alucckond was affixed to the
5 they say. I den't kmow what the intention is of the : sien?

5 documents. | & A. Are you talking abeut the Alucobond in these --
7 MR. KRAVETBAER; Fair encugh. 7 that was shipped to Midon?

3 ¢. Dc you see on page Wo. 2, sale 000027 8 Q. Mo, I'm asking you. 2d Art put the Alucchbond on
3 A, Yes, | 9 the M@ pylon; is that correct?

10 Q. This is an invoice, right, to the best of your | 10 A, As I recall, when we fabricated the sign it had
11 lewvledge? {11 alucobond, yes.

12 i vae, 12 Q. And Ad Art fabricated the sign and put the
13 Q. And you see the ordar date? | 13 Aluccbend on the sign; is that correct?

14 . =S, ' 14 A. In 1893 and ‘84 when we erected the sign,
15 Q. It says April 6, 1398? | 15 correct.

13 E. Y=s. 15 Q. Do you lmow where that Aluccbond came frem?

1 Q. Thiz would have been after the completian of the 17 A. Los Angeles? I don't kmow. I recall them be:ing
13 sign by Ad Act in 1393 or 1934, correct? | 18 1in Los Angeles.

13 i, Yes, E 1 Q. You say you "recall them being in Los Angeles.®
i ¢, And this is for anm order of Alucchend 21, Do you @ 20 Who's them?
21 sea that in the descriptiom? 121 A. Alucabord.

iz A. Yes, 2 Q. Alucohbond i3 a product name, Mr. Long. Do you
23 Q. Do you see the name 3A Composites anywhere on 23 know who provided the Aluccbond?
24 this form? Taks your time. 2 A. No. BNo, T dem't.
25 ME. LOWS: The docurent speaks for itself. bL Q. But your racollection is that it came from Los
Page 83 Page B85

1 THE WITMESS: MNo. 1 BMngelas?

7 VR, BRAMETEAUER: 0. In fact, the only companias 2 A Ves.

3 I see on here ars Intersiate Electric Company. I ses 3 ¢. Aod you don't recall the name of the sntity fram
4 Miken Lighting & Sign. And I see -- down at the bottom T 4 whom Ad Art acquired that Aluccbomd?

5 328 Alusuisse Composites, Incorporatad. 5 A. No.

5 Do you see that? 6 Q. 8o if your testimery, Mr. Long, is that the

7 A. Yes, 7 subject sign was campleted in 1893 or 1994, locking at

3 Q. I den't see 3A Compcsites anywhers oo here, do 8 these documents sale 1 through sale 12, is it also your

9 you? § testimerny --
10 MR. LONG: The document speaxs for itself. | 10 THE REBCRTER: I'm sorxy, I can't hear you.

11 THE WITNESS: No. | 11 Could you repeat that?

12 MR, XRAMETEMUER: T den't have any further 12 MR. KRAMETRAUER: Object to the form of the

13 cuestions. 131 question. Calls Zor speculation on the rpart of the

14 MR, SILVERMAN: I have some follow-ups. 14 witness.

15 FURTHER EXAMINATION BY MR, SILVERMEN 15 THE REPCRTER: ['m sorzy. I didn't get the

15 MR. SILVERMAN: Q. This again is Fddy Silverman. | 16 question. The phone cutb out.

17 M. long, do you know for a fact that what I will wefer to | 1 MR. LONG: You've got to vepeat the question.

18 as the subject pylon sign wes completed in 1992 cr 13947 | 18 The chone cut out.

L &, Yes. 19 ¥R, SILVERMAN: . Mr. long, how do you koow
20 Q. Do you kmow precisely when the Aluccbond that was | 26 that the siom was completed in 1883 or 15347

21 used on the sign was affined or otherwise incorporated 4 A. I was managing the project with respect to the
22 into the M3 pylon sign? 22 oconcxact, the collection, It was completed and collected.
23 A. The Aluccbond by Ad Art? 23 Q. What doeg that mean?

24 Q. The Aluccbend that Alusuisse manufactured. 24 A. That we sold the sign to MM. They paid us. We
25 MR, LONG: Okay, 25 erected the sign. They paid us for the sien in full.
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Fage 36 Pags 2%

1 Q. What are you lecking at, toough, specifically to 1 A. No.

2 cepiizm chat the sigr was c¢ompisted on the date thab you 2 3. ©Could you t=11 me one way or another whether the
3 raeprassnc? 2 product desoribed on chiz invoice is the product that's on
4 A. It's mot w date that @ represent. We balked 4 the MGM sign?

5 about ‘93 and 'F4. I don't kpow the dake it was E MR, LONG; Lacks foundatiom.

g ceo 3 MR. FRAMETBAUZR: Calls for speculstion on khe

7 Q. That's what T'w trying to underscand. Because 7 part of the witness.

8 you hava to sea that by testifving that tie sign was k| This is Ryan Kramethauer.

3 complazsd in 1993 or 1394, you implicitly are testifying 3 and :'1l join the objectise by Counsel,

13 that these documencs don't represent the material thakt was § 12 MR. LONG: Yes. Jaoia,

11 ipnluded on Che siogn, so that's what T'm rrying to it THE WITHESS: WNot specificaily, np.

12 underscand. 12 MR. SILVERMAM: 3. I think Mz. Xrametbauer asked
13 How da you know that the sicn was complaced in 13 you thiz earliar, but you saild that you wezre Zam:liar with
14 1923.5r 1358 =- 14 Interstate Blectris Jompany in nams onlv; i3 that sorrechk?
13 MR. LONG: Objacticn. It's azgumentakive. | 15 MR. LONG: Mischaracterizss the csatimony.

15 MR. SILVERMRN: 0. -+~ and not in 19967 16 MR. SILWZRMAN: §. Let m2 ask ysu: Ars you

17 MR. XRAMETRAUSA: Same obj=ction. Calls for 17 familiar wich Interscace Elsctric Company?

18 speculaticp on the parl of the witnesy, i3 A. Y=s. The compasy then that existed yes,

13 This is Ryan ¥-ametbauer. 1% 1Interstate Elsctric, yes.

20 MR SILVERMEN: ¢. Ifm not trying ke beat you 20 2. Had any iterstion cof Ad Art ever purchased

21 ug, Mr. Long 2% Alupechond from Interstat= Blectric Company?

2z In 1993 or 1934, where is that coming £rom? : 12 A. I dom't pecall,

23 A. wWell, the contract zhat we had with MGM was 23 MR. LONG: Misstates tastimony.

24 compietad in *53 or '94 and collected. And after that, 24 MR. SILVEAMAN: Give me a coupls of minutas

25 md Ar: didn'c work on the sign. Ad Ark didn't do any 23 Let's go 2Ef the wecord.

Page 87 Page 893

1 changing cf the sign, 1 {A recess was taken from 4:57 to 4:53 p.m.!

2 Q, which contract specifically are you referzing zeo? 2 MR, SILVERMAN: I don't hava any further

3 Has it been produced in this caze? [ 3 gussrtions.

4 A, %o, it hasn't besn produced. [L was the original |4 MR. LOWG: Okay. Thank you.

5 conktract that we had to Fabricate and install the sigs for I 5 MR, XRAMETHAUER: Dans and Terry, thank you vary
& MGM when they opened | & much for your time, I appreciats it.

7 Q. Sa it's your testimony thalb Ad Art, im any of its | 7 A 44-pase document entitled “DEFEMDANT 3A

3 various lterations, aéid net do any farther work with kne ] COMPOSITES USA INC,, f/fx/a ALUCOBOND TECHNGLOGIES
2 MCHM or on MCM signage hayend 13347 9 CORPORATION'S EARLY CASE CONFERENCE DISCLOSURE
10 A, Correck. Qther than the swall ane small -- 1a STATEMENT, " was marked for identification as

11 one sther small aige that T dsn't zeeall, bur a amall | 11 Piaintiff'z Exbibit 3.}

12 sign. But no sther work on that main pylon. 12 [Whereupcn, the proceedings adjourned ab

13 Q. ¥%hen you say “zhat main pylon " do you remember 13 i:58 pom.)

14 what colox che Aluschond panels on the main pylen are -- 14

15 A. Mo 15 === GQ- -~

16 Q. -- or werz for that lsttering? 1s

i7 A. Mo, I don't remerber. i1

18 . Loaking here au the sales foquments, ['11 refer 18

12 you specifically Lo SALE -~ E'11 omit the 0's. Look at 19

20 sale 2. 20

21 A, You're talking about che Mikan? 1

a2 Q. Corrteckt. 22

23 Under the description thers when you read what it | 23

34 says, "Alucobond 21," do you recognize that praduct 24

28 ‘descriprion? EL}
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Zage 90 Page 92

i {ERTIFICATE OF DEPOSITION QFPICIR | 1 EARATA SHEE
2 | @ Page Lime Should read: Reasen for Change:
3 I, JOAN B. MERTEN, CSR ¥o. 5912, duly suthsrized ‘ b
4 t3 administer oaths Pursuant to Seccion 2033 () of the ik i el
5 California Code of Qivii Procedurs, hersbhy certify chat I 5
5 the witness in the foregoing depcsiczion was by me duly : &
7 sworn to bestify the Lruth, the shole bruch and nochiog 7
8 bur kha truth ia the within-satislsd cavse; that said B e
% deposition was taicen ab She bie and piace thersin statad; 3
10 zhat the tectimepy of the said witnass was regortad by me w
11 and thersafter trangcribed by we or under my direction 11
12 into typewriting, that the forageing is a full, complace T
i3 and brus recozd sf said cestimcny; and thab the witness 13
13 was given an opportunity Ec read and corracr sald 4
15 depesition and co subscribe the same. 13 ——r
18 I further certify thac I am not of counssai nor o oo
17 attornay for either =r any of the parties in the 17
18 deposition and caphion named, or in any way interested in w
19 the putoome of ths cause namsd iz said eaption. 15
20 %?.7’,@;&1}3_,,\\ ©
31 " o 21

DEPQSITION OFFICER, CSR 5322 22
2 23 fate
23 Signature of Witness
4 L

Date: 9th day of May, 2017
iz [ 25 ¥ame Typed ar Printed
Page 391

L ZRRATA ZHEET
2
3
4
5 I declare undar pamalty of perjury that [ have read the .
& foragoing __ pages of my testimony, taken
T ooen [date) at
B fextyl, fscabe),
g
10 and thak Ehe same is 3 true recerd of the kastimeny given
11 by ma at the tize and place hezaln
12 above yet forth, with the following exceptisns: |
13
14 page line Should read: Reason foy Change:
15
e
17 |
18
i3
B s s
21
2
3
4
25
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ANS

TIMOTHY F. HUNTER, ESQ.

Mevada Bar No. 010622 ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
RAY LEGO & ASSOCIATES 10/17/2016 10:39:26 AM
7450 Arroyo Crossing Parkway, Suite 250

Las Vegas, NV 89113

Tel:  (702) 479-4350

Fax: (702)270-4602

tthunter@travelers.com

Attorney for Defendant,

AD ART, INC.
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
CHARLES SCHUELER, CASE NO.: A-15-722391-C
Plaintiff, DEPT. NO.: XVII
VS.

MGM GRAND HOTEL, LLC, a Domestic
Limited Liability Company d/b/a MGM
GRAND; MGM RESORTS
INTERNATIONAL, a Foreign Corporation
d/b/a MGM GRAND; AD ART, INC, a
Foreign Corporation;, 3A COMPOSITES USA
INC., a Foreign Corporation a/k/a
ALUCOBOND TECHNOLOGIES
CORCPORATION; DOES 1 - 25; ROE
CORPORATIONS 1 —25; inclusive,

Defendants,

DEFENDANT AD ART, INC.’S ANSWERS TO PLAINTIFE'S INTERROGAT
SET TWO

Defendant AD ART, INC. ("Defendant™) by and through their counsel, Timothy F.
Hunter of Ray Lego & Associates, hereby answers the second set of Interrogatories propounded
by Plaintiff CHARLES SCHUELER (“Plaintiff”) as follows:

GENERAL OBJECTIONS

I Defendant objects to Plaintiff’s Interrogatories to the extent they seek documents
or disclosure of information that is protected from disclosure by the attorney-client privilege in
accordance with Rule 26 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure and NRS 89.095,

% Defendant objects to Plaintiff”s Interrogatories to the extent they seek documents

1
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.

or disclosure of information that is protected from disclosure by the work-product exemption in
accordance with NRCP 26(b)(3) and applicable case law.

% 8 Defendant objects to Plaintiff’s Interrogatories to the extent they seek documents
or information protected from disclosure pursuant to the consultant/expert exemption in
accordance with NRCP 26(b)(4) and applicable case law.

4, Defendant objects to Plaintiff’s Interrogatories to the extent they seek trade
secrets, commercially sensitive information, or confidential proprietary data entitled to
protection under NRCP 26(c)7). Also see NRS 49.325.

5. Defendant objects to Plaintiff’s Interrogatories pursuant to NRCP 33(d) in that
Plaintiff seeks a compilation or summary of information which can be gleaned from voluminous
documents Defendant has already produced to Plaintiff herein.

6. This response is made on the basis of information and writings available to and
located by Defendant upon reasonable investigation of records. There may be other and further
imformation respecting the Discovery propounded by Plaintiff of which Defendant, despite
reasonable investigation and inquiry are presently unaware. Defendant reserves the right to
modify or enlarge any response with such pertinent additional information as may be
subsequently discovered.

7. No incident or implied admissions will be made by the Answers set forth herein
below. The fact that Defendant may answer or ohject to any Interrogatory, or any part thereof,
shall not be deemed an admission that Defendant accepts or admits the existence of any facts set
forth or assumed by such Interrogatory, or that such response constitutes admissible evidence.
The fact that Defendant answers any [nterrogatory is not deemed a waiver by Defendant of its
objections, including privilege, to other parts of such Interrogatory.

8. Defendant objects to any instruction or Interrogatory to the extent that it would
impose upon Defendant greater dutics than those which are set forth under the Nevada Rules of
Civil Procedure. Defendant will supplement is snswir 6 those Interrogatories as required by

NRCP 26(e).
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9. All answers are made solely for the purpose of this action. Each answer,
including any answers to any Interrogatory, or document produced in lieu of a writfen
ANSWER TO same, will be subject to all objections as to competence, relevance, materiality,
propriety and admissibility, and to any and all other objections an any ground which would
require the exclusion from evidence of any statement herein if any such statements were made
by a witness present and testifying at trial, all of which objections and grounds are expressly
reserved and may be interposed at such hearings.

10.  Defendant adopts by reference the above-objections and incorporales each
objection as if it was fully set forth below in each of Defendant’s answers.

SPECIFIC OBJECTIONS

Wherever Defendant objects to an item of discovery on grounds that said item of
discovery 1s unduly burdensome and oppressive, Plaintitf’s attention is directed to the following
cases: Riss & Co v. Association of American Railroads, 23 FR.D. 211 (D.D.C. 1959); United
States v. Loews, Inc., 23 FR.D. 178 (S.D.N.Y. 1959); Green v. Raymond 41 F.R.D. 11 (D.
Colo, 1966); and Flour Mills of America, Inc. v. Pace, 75 F.R.D. 676 (D. Okla. 1977).

Further, wherever Defendant objects to an item of discovery on grounds of vagueness
and overbreadth, Plaintiff’s atlention is directed to the following cases: Jewish Hospital Assn.
of Louisville v. Struck Construction Co., 77 F.R.D. 59 (D.C. KY. 1978) and Stovall v. Gulf &
So.Am. 8.8, Co., 30 FR.D. 152 (D. Tex. 1961).

Wherever Defendant objects to an item of discovery on grounds that said item of
discovery is irrelevant and not calculated to lead to admissible evidence, Plaintiff’s attention is
directed to the following cases: Green v. Raymond, 41 F.R.D. 11 (D.Colo. 1966); Burroughs v.
Warner Bros. Pictures, 15 F.R.D. 165, 166 (D. Mass. 1963).

Wherever Defendant objects to an item of discovery on grounds of attorney-client
privilege, Plaintiff’s attention is directed to the following cases: Sperry Rand Corp. v. IBM, 45
F.R.D. 287 (D. Del. 1967); and Jewish Hospital Assn. of Louisville v. Struck Construction Ca.,
77 FER.D. 59 (D.C.KY. 1978).
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ANSWERS TO INTERROGATORIES

INTERROGATORY NO. 40:

Please list the names, business addresses, and positions of Defendant’s corporate
directors and/or corporate officers from the date of incorporation to present.

ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 40:

Defendant incorporates each General Objection by reference herein. Defendant further
objects to this interrogatery on the grounds that it is compound. Defendant further objects to
this interrogatory on the grounds that the term “position” is vague and ambiguous, and on that
basis unduly burdensome and oppressive. Subject to and without waiving tae foregoing
objections, Defendant responds as follows:
The following individuals have been corporate officers and/or directors from the date of
incorporation to the present:
e Terry Long, CEC/Chairman — 150 Executive Park Bl., Suite 2100, San Francisco,
CA 94134,

» Jeremy Anderson, VP, Secretary/Treasurer, Director — 150 Executive Park Bl., Suite
2100, San Francisco, CA 94134; and

e Robert Kierejezyk, President, Director — 5090 Eruit Ave., Suite 101 — San Francisco,
CA 93711.
The following individuals are Defendant’s current corporate officers, but did not hold
those positions at time of incorporation:
e Dana Long, Vice President & General Counsel - 156 Executive Park Bl,, Suite 2100,
San Francisco, CA 94134,

# David Esajian, Branch Manager & Director — 5090 Fruit Ave., Suite 101 — San
Francisco, CA 93711;

e Duane Contento — Executive V.P., Director, 2321 Rosecrans Ave., Suite 1250, El

Segundo, CA 90245; and
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